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P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  go back on the record. We 

were i n  a b r i e f  recess t o  ensure tha t  we allowed any consumers 

who might want t o  t e s t i f y  a chance t o  ar r ive.  

we d i d  have some consumers who have arr ived, but none have 

indicated a desire t o  t e s t i f y  a t  t h i s  time. I would l i k e  t o  

j u s t  confirm tha t  f o r  the record tha t  there are no consumers 

here who would l i k e  t o  t e s t i f y  a t  t h i s  time. I f  there are, 

please stand. Let the record r e f l e c t  t ha t  no one has come 

forward. 

I understand tha t  

A t  t h i s  po in t  we a re  now prepared, I assume tha t  a l l  

par t ies are here, we are now prepared tha t  we can move i n t o  the 

technical por t ion o f  the hearing a t  t h i s  po int .  Before we do 

tha t ,  counsel f o r  Nocatee U t i l i t i e s  has asked fo r  an opportunity 

t o  give a general overview o f  the pro ject  t ha t  i s  anticipated foi 

t h i s  service t e r r i t o r y ,  and I understand tha t  has been agreed t o  

by a l l  the part ies? 

MR. WHARTON: It has, M r .  Chairman. The only th ing  

tha t  occurs t o  me i s  whether we want t o  get i n t o  prel iminary 

matters before we do that .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do you want t o  deal w i th  prel iminary 

matters before that? 

MR. WHARTON: We are  going t o  move r i g h t  now ore tenus 

t o  continue t h i s  case. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I t  sounds l i k e  i t  may be useful t o  
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lo tha t ,  t o  have tha t  discussion f i r s t .  That w i l l  be 

lot ion. Now you d i d n ' t  have a w r i t t en  motion t o  cont 

/ou? 

MR. WHARTON: NO. 

5 

your oral  

nue, d i d  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It was j u s t  S t .  Johns County. Okay. 

[hat being the case, why don ' t  you go ahead and make your 

notion, M r .  Wharton. 

MR. WHARTON: Commissioners, we do move a t  t h i s  time 

;o continue the case. Perhaps technica l ly  what I ' m  asking f o r  

i s  a b i furcat ion,  because I understand the not ice has gone out 

md I cer ta in l y  would not be adverse t o  the taking o f  the 

:ustomer testimony tonight. These a r e  some facts and 

5 rcumstances tha t  t o  some extent Commissioner Deason i s  

fami l iar  with. M.L. Forrester i s  a witness who f i l e d  well  over 

la1 f the testimony fo r  Intercoastal . 
M r .  Forrester i s  a person w i th  40 years experience i n  

the u t i l i t y  business. He i s  a person who has been wi th  M r .  Budd: 

James f o r  27 years, who i s  the president o f  Intercoastal.  He ha! 

Deen w i th  Intercoastal since i t  came i n t o  existence. Thursday 

night M r .  Forrester was i n  a m a l l  purchasing s h i r t s  t o  attend thc 

hearing and had a seizure and was taken by ambulance t o  a 

hospital where he remains r i g h t  now wi th  blood c lo t s  i n  h i s  lung, 

M r .  Forrester i s  a very vigorous person. He i s  a 

person who works through lunch. He and h i s  w i fe  own f i v e  book 

stores. He goes home every night and works on those book stores, 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

6 

but he obviously has not been around t o  help us prepare i n  t h i s  

case or obviously t o  present h i s  own testimony, and t h i s  i s  not 

j u s t  a minor witness fo r  Intercoastal .  Mr. Forrester f i l e d  well 

over h a l f  o f  the p r e f i l e d  testimony tha t  we have f i l e d .  

There was absolutely no delay i n  br inging t h i s  motion. 

As soon as I learned o f  M r .  Forrester 's condition, I d i d  contact 

the s t a f f  and the par t ies and B i l l  Berg. And it was j u s t  not 

possible f o r  Commissioner Deason t o  accommodate a hearing on that 

day on such short notice. And I understand tha t  completely. 

I want t o  emphasize something very carefu l ly .  F i r s t  01 

a l l ,  we don ' t  know anything about why the county got out of t h i s  

case, and any inference t o  the opposite i s  patent ly incorrect .  1 

learned o f  t h a t  Saturday morning when I went i n  my o f f i c e  and sa\r 

the withdrawal. And, f rankly,  I t h ink  tha t  i s  a l i t t l e  

outrageous t o  withdraw l i k e  tha t .  But fo r  the purposes o f  t h i s  

motion, I j u s t  want you t o  know we had nothing t o  do w i th  that .  

No advance not ice or anything else. 

We have no hidden agenda. We opposed the continuance 

tha t  Commi ss i  oner Deason determined shoul d not be granted on 

Tuesday, vigorously opposed it. On the other hand, the only 

reason we are s i t t i n g  here today was tha t  t h i s  case was supposed 

t o  go t o  t r i a l  a month ago and a continuance tha t  was requested 

by the county and tha t  a l l  the other part ies joined i n  and tha t  

we vigorously opposed, was granted. I have since seen a 
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rlr. Scott Ke l l y ,  t a l k ing  t o  the S t .  Johns County Commission aboul 

3 proposal he was making tha t  would involve JEA providing r e t a i l  

service t o  a l l  o f  northern S t .  Johns County, including Nocatee. 

4nd he said r i g h t  there on the tape, you know, i t  would a l l  be i i  

3ur best in terest  i f  we moved t o  continue. 

Now, I d i d n ' t  see tha t  tape a f t e r  the continuance was 

already granted and everything had been f i l e d .  What got f i l e d  

das something from the county saying something r e a l l y  b i g  i s  

going t o  happen a t  the next County Commission meeting, and I am 
here t o  t e l l  you, nothing happened. Nothing happened. So i f  

that continuance wouldn't have been granted, we would have had 

the t r i a l  back then and M r .  Forrester would have been f ine .  

Now, t h i  s hasn ' t j u s t  affected Mr . Forrester ' s abi 1 i t y  

t o  come i n  here, i t  has affected the preparation t h i s  weekend. 

Mr. Forrester i s  the most l i k e l y  person, i n  fact ,  he had assignec 

tasks fo r  the way we were going t o  do t h i s  weekend when we were 

working with the witnesses and what he was going t o  look a t  and 

read and what we were going t o  t a l k  about. He i s  the person mosl 

l i k e l y  t o  whisper i n  my ear during cross examination i n  t h i s  

case . 
And cer ta in ly  he i s  a person whose testimony needs t o  

be presented l i v e .  

demonstrated by the fac t  tha t  say members o f  the s t a f f  have 

chosen t o  attend t h i s  hearing. It i s  j u s t  not the same t o  read 

i t  i n  a t ranscr ipt .  There i s  a lso  no way t o  j u s t  put i n  h is  

I th ink  the value o f  l i v e  testimony i s  amply 
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cross 

I know we are a l l  here, and I 

inconvenient, but I don' t  t h ink  tha t  i s  

d r ive  t h i s  decision. This i s  not specu 

County Commission i s  going t o  do, i t  i s  

some future event, i t  i s  something tha t  

8 

ed testimony. They are going t o  say tha t  deprives them o f  

examination. If  we put i n  the depositions then not only 

are the depositions f u l l  o f  things tha t  are inadmissible, i t  

deprives me o f  red i rect ,  and tha t  i s  j u s t  on the issue o f  h i s  

t e s t  i mony . 
I am here t o  tel l  you it affected preparation 

substant ia l ly .  M r .  Forrester i s  a major player. He i s  a person 

who i s  extremely knowledgeable. 

He i s  the person I have coordinated w i th  the e n t i r e  time i n  

preparing t h i s  case. Certainly not t o  have M r .  Forrester t e s t i f ]  

i n  t h i s  hearing means you are not going t o  hear h a l f  o f  our case. 

I t  ce r ta in l y  a f fects  the cont inu i ty  o f  t h i s  case. 

His testimony i s  far-reaching. 

know tha t  i t  i s  

the factor tha t  ought t o  

a t ion  about something thc 

not speculation about 
has occurred. Mr. 

Forrester i s  i n  the hospital r i g h t  now hooked up t o  machines. 

And I don ' t  want t o  overstate the case, but  he has got IVs i n  

him, e t  cetera. 

It cer ta in ly  has affected our t r i a l  strategy and i t  ha2 

affected the a b i l i t y  t o  cross-examine and i t  has affected our 

a b i l i t y  t o  put on our case e f fec t i ve ly .  This case has been 

pending for almost two years. We are s i t t i n g  here because o f  a 

continuance tha t  NUC and the other par t ies got just f o r  a hearins 
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that  should have occurred a month ago over our vigorous 

objection. They w i l l  agree tha t  the development has now been 

delayed according t o  t h e i r  own testimony u n t i l  the end o f  2002. 

This i s  not obviously, Commissioners, anything o f  our 

own making. Again, i t  was t imely  brought, i t  i s  a substantive 

objection, i t  i s  something tha t  cannot be cured by any other 

machination I can th ink  o f .  We believe there i s  no harm i n  dela: 

and tha t  the prejudice t o  Intercoastal i s  great. While i t  i s  no1 

a basis f o r  our motion, perhaps the Commission would want t o  

consider the fac t  t ha t  S t .  Johns County's motion tha t  was denied 

on Tuesday, and tha t  was a motion tha t  we d i d  object to ,  stated i 

fact ,  and tha t  i s  t h a t  a week ago Tuesday the S t .  Johns County 

Commission d id  vote t o  hold a 125 hearing, which i s  a s ta tutory  

prerequis i te t o  making an o f f e r  t o  Intercoastal.  And tha t  i s  

going t o  be on June the 6th. 

The l a s t  continuance we would suggest i s  the reason we 

are here today. It was one we opposed. It was a continuance 

t h a t  the record w i l l  show and no one w i l l  be able t o  demonstrate, 

and I don' t  th ink anyone will suggest was for nothing. Nothing 

came o f  it. That County Commission meeting, the one tha t  was 

expressly l i s t e d  i n  the county's motion tha t  a l l  the par t ies 

agreed too . 
Again, t h i s  i s  not something tha t  i s  speculative. It 

It is  the k ind o f  th ing  tha t  I i s  something tha t  has occurred. 

t h ink  courts do grant continuances f o r  even when they are 
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-eluctant t o  do so. We bel ieve tha t  the other things tha t  might 

>e done, some o f  the ideas I have heard do not cure the problem 

that Intercoastal w i l l  suf fer .  This case has been going on a 

long time, I know i t i s  not easy t o  get the f i v e  o f  you together. 

Ylaybe i f  the customer testimony goes forward today the hearing 

Zould be held i n  Tallahassee. Clear ly we are not t a l k i n g  about t 

delay i n  the end o f  the hearing, because M r .  Forrester i s  going 

t o  have t o  t e s t i f y  when he i s  w e l l .  And we assume tha t  i s  going 

t o  happen very quickly. And i f  i t  i s  not going t o  happen very 

quickly, I am going t o  need t o  do something else i n  tha t  regard. 

So, Commissioners, again, we th ink  tha t  the prejudice 

t o  Intercoastal o f  going forward f a r  outweighs the prejudice t o  

any other par ty  o f  granting the continuance. We have brought 

t h i s  continuance in a t imely fashion and, again, we wouldn't be 
here i f  we hadn't had a phantom continuance a month ago from 

those who are very l i k e l y  t o  oppose t h i s  continuance. Thank you, 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . We w i  11 hear responses 

t o  the motion. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Before we hear the responses, 

could I ask a question? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: By a l l  means. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Have you spoken t o  the other 

counsels as t o  whether or not they would waive cross examination 

o f  Mr. Forrester? 

MR. WHARTON: I have never asked them tha t  par t i cu la r  
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luestion, M r .  Palecki . We have spoken about - - o r  Commissioner 

Ialecki . We have spoken about some - - they have f loated some 

ideas, but t ha t  wasn't one o f  them. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Because I would l i k e  i t  hear 

From the other par t ies on tha t  issue, because I th ink  tha t  i s  

:he most important issue as t o  t h e i r  r i g h t  o f  cross examination. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: While we are i n  the questioning 

stage, do you have an idea, M r .  Wharton, i f  we were t o  grant 

four motion, when M r .  Forrester would be available? 

MR. WHARTON: 1 would th ink  tha t  i f  M r .  Forrester - -  

md, again, I don' t  want t o  represent t o  you tha t  I have any 

nore knowledge than I do, but I don ' t  ant ic ipate tha t  Mr. 

-orrester w i l l  be i n  the hospital,  unless there i s  some k ind o f  

inforeseen complication, t ha t  much longer i n  terms o f  the number 

I f  the days. Then I would ant ic ipate tha t  he would need some 

time t o  get completely back on h is  feet. 

I cer ta in ly  bel ieve M r .  Forrester 's health as I 

mderstand it r i g h t  now could accommodate a hearing before June 

the 6th. I f  you be ieve t h a t  holding the hearing a f te r  June the 

5th has some meri t ,  then I would say, once again, tha t  I believe 

Hr. Forrester would be available a t  t ha t  time. So I don' t  th ink  

de are t a l  k ing about an inordinate delay. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . M r .  Me1 son, you may 

proceed . 
MR. MELSON: Commissioners, Rick Melson f o r  Nocatee 
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J t i l i t y  Corporation. Our prayers and best wishes go out t o  Mr. 

rowester. I th ink  everybody s i t t i n g  a t  the tab le w shes tha t  

i t  hasn't happened f o r  a whole host o f  reasons, not the leas t  o f  

vhich he i s  a f i n e  gentleman. We do, however, oppose the 

:onti nuance . 
We believe tha t  t h i s  case has gone on - -  our case was 

i r i g i n a l l y  f i l e d  i n  June o f  1999. There have been two p r i o r  

:ontinuances. A t  t h i s  po int  we are f inished w i th  the discovery 

irocess, we have got the momentum, we are ready f o r  hearing. 

I believe I proposed t o  M r .  Wharton, and i f  I d i d n ' t ,  1 

3pologize, t ha t  we s t ipu la te  Mr. Forrester 's testimony i n t o  the 

record and put h i s  deposition i n  i n  l i e u  o f  cross examination. 

Iocatee U t i  1 i t y  Corporation i s  w i  11 i ng  t o  waive cross and t o  l e t  

the deposition i n .  We recognize tha t  i t  probably has some 

naterial i n  i t  tha t  i s  not relevant, and i t  i s  not exact ly the 

cross examination we would do a t  hearing, but we bel ieve tha t  

gives the Commission enough information t o  make an informed 

deci s i  on. 

As you a l l  know, the county, S t .  Johns County withdrew 

from t h i s  docket l a t e  Friday afternoon. 

one t o  f i n d  out about it. 

afternoon. And 1 i ke Intercoastal , Nocatee had absolutely nothin! 

t o  do wi th  tha t  decision and we have been unable as we s i t  here 

today t o  f i n d  out what prompted that .  

I th ink  I was the l a s t  

I d i d n ' t  f i n d  out u n t i l  Saturday 

I do know tha t  l a s t  week when the county had moved for 
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I continuance, they indicated - - t h e i r  counsel indicated i n  

:onversations w i th  me tha t  i f  the continuance was not granted 

they were considering a host o f  options, including going t o  

z i r c u i t  court f o r  some type o f  re1 i e f .  A t  t h i s  po int  a 

:ontinuance, I believe, serves - -  i s  unneeded and simply creates 

mother two week, month long window i n  which the county could 

take procedural steps i n  other forums, i t  could operate t o  the 

jetriment o f  my c l i e n t .  

With the f i v e  day p r i o r  t o  the hearing provision on 

intervention, the county might even t r y  t o  get back i n t o  the 

Ease. 

hearing and would urge you very strongly t o  do something t o  

accommodate M r .  Forrester 's s i tuat ion.  Put t ing i n  h i s  p r e f i l e d  

testimony and deposition seems t o  us t o  be the r i g h t  solut ion, 

although we would be open t o  suggestions tha t  others might have, 

and go forward w i th  t h i s  hearing as we have got i t  scheduled f o r  

the next three days. 

I don ' t  know what could happen. We are ready t o  go t o  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  + Hoffman. 

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. F i r s t ,  l e t  me 

say tha t  the JEA and those tha t  are w i th  the JEA have a 

longstanding relat ionship w i th  Mr. Forrester, and our hear t fe l t  

thoughts are w i th  M r .  Forrester. 

Secondly, the JEA would support Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  

Corporation's opposition t o  the motion f o r  continuance, and I 

th ink  tha t  i s  s o r t  o f  our bottom-l ine posi t ion.  We are also 
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i i l l i n g  t o  abide by the o f f e r  made by M r .  Melson on behalf o f  

docatee U t i 1  i t y  Corporation t o  waive cross examination and put 

:he deposition o f  Mr. Forrester i n t o  the record. 

Two other things j u s t  t o  clear up what are i n  my view 

2xtraneous matters. The most recent motion f o r  continuance tha t  

vas f i l e d  by S t .  Johns County tha t  was denied, t ha t  motion was 

ipposed by Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, and the JEA joined 

iocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation i n  opposing the motion for 
:ontinuance. My reco l lec t ion  o f  the motion t h a t  was f i l e d  

Johns County i s  tha t  Intercoastal could not decide what i t  

i o s i t i o n  was, not t ha t  i t  was vigorously opposed. 

by S t .  

We cer ta in ly  have a d i f f e ren t  recol lect ion concerning 

statements tha t  Mr. K e l l y  made before the S t .  Johns County Board 

D f  County Commissioners. We do not reca l l  t ha t  he ever said 

anything tha t  i t  would be i n  everyone's best i n te res t  t o  continu( 

the hearing. But j u s t  f o r  the record, the pleadings f i l e d  beforc 

t h i s  body the JEA joined Nocatee i n  opposing the most recent 

request for continuance by S t .  Johns County. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well . M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. On behalf o f  

Sawgrass Association, we s tand  i n  a s l i g h t l y  d i f f e ren t  pos i t ion 

than I th ink  a l l  the other par t ies since we don't have any 

designs on the t e r r i t o r y .  We don't  have a dog i n  tha t  

par t i cu la r  par t  o f  the f igh t .  

be pa r t  o f  the case as t o  Nocatee Ut i l i t y  i t s e l f .  

I n  fact ,  we are not - -  tha t  can 
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I spoke wi th  M r .  Wharton on Friday when he f i r s t  

alerted me t o  M r .  Forrester 's sudden and very t rag i c  i l l ness ,  anc 

I am very sympathetic t o  t h e i r  posi t ion.  

sympathetic t o  the pos i t ion o f  the other movants, Nocatee U t i l i t j  

and JEA as intervenor. Because o f  the pos i t ion that  we hold, 

dhich i s  p r imar i l y  one i n  opposition t o  In tercoasta l 's  

appl icat ion fo r  c e r t i f i c a t i o n ,  I'm not sure tha t  we take a stronc 

posi t ion on e i ther  side o f  t h i s  issue. 

body t o  make the determination. 

I do think,  j u s t  an observation, t ha t  there may be somc 

methods tha t  could be used t o  - - i f  a continuance were t o  be 

granted, fo r  instance, i f  there were some potent ia l  problems that 

were discussed, then I cer ta in ly  th ink that ,  again, consistent 

with your rules and regulat ion there could be, perhaps, some 

basis t o  prevent other extraneous part ies from intervening a t  a 

l a t e r  t ime  who could have intervened a t  t h i s  point  i n  t ime which 

could po ten t ia l l y  avoid any type o f  mischief tha t  was suggested 

as i t  being a potent ia l  issue. 

I am also very 

I w i l l  leave i t  t o  t h i s  

As I said, we are sympathetic t o  a l l  o f  the concerns, 

and frankly a l l  the arguments that  have been made today I th ink 

are va l id ,  and we stand ready t o  e i ther  par t ic ipate i n  t h i s  

hearing f o r  the next three days or  t o  take whatever steps t h i s  

body determines t o  be appropriate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  Thank you. 

MR. WHARTON: B r i e f l y ,  Mr. Chairman. May I close on 
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my posi t ion? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. Before you do tha t ,  M r .  Korn, 

I assume you don ' t  oppose the o f f e r  t o  waive cross and enter Mr. 

Forrester 's deposition i n t o  the record? 

MR. KORN: No, Mr. Chairman, I do not oppose tha t ,  as 

I said. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . 
MR. WHARTON: F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  and I appreciate you 

terming i t  tha t  way because I th ink  t h a t  i t  brings the issue 

r i g h t  t o  the f ron t .  Four o f  t h i s  panel are attorneys, t h a t  i s  

not an o f f e r  t o  waive cross. Every s ingle cross question I am 

going t o  ask i n  t h i s  hearing i s  from a deposition. That i s  the 

opportunity t o  put i n  a l l  o f  your cross and a ton more. Maybe 

we would l i k e  t o  see M r .  M i l l e r  f o r  NUC not be crossed and I 

w i l l  put in a l l  o f  h i s  depositions and we w i l l  put i n  h i s  

testimony. That i s  not an o f fe r  t o  waive cross. That w i l l  not 

have the opportunity fo r  red i rect  . 
We w i l l  have tons o f  s t u f f  coming i n t o  the record tha t  

doesn't belong there because o f  the way depositions work, and 

tha t  is  t o t a l l y  d i f f e ren t  than waiving cross. 

t o  Commissioner Palecki 's real question, these part ies are not 

w i l l i n g  t o  waive cross. They are w i l l i ng  t o  subst i tute the 

deposition i n t o  the record i n  the place o f  cross. Thus, again, 

they are denying me the opportunity f o r  red i rect ,  pu t t ing  i n  a 

very th i ck  deposition tha t  i s  probably f i l l e d  wi th  extraneous 

I th ink  i n  answer 
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inadmissible and outside the scope s t u f f .  And i t  was t o t a l l y  

j i f f e r e n t  than what Commissioner Palecki asked, and I th ink  tha t  

you a l l  appreciate tha t .  

I ' m  looking a t  t h i s  motion tha t  said tha t  something b i !  

i s  going t o  happen on March 6th. And nothing happened. And t h i :  

i s  the motion tha t  the county f i l e d .  And Mr. Hoffman was 

re fe r r ing  t o  Tuesday's motion t h a t  JEA opposed. I am re fe r r i ng  

t o  the motion s i x  weeks ago tha t  resulted i n  t h i s  hearing being 

s e t  today. It was o r i g i n a l l y  set f o r  Ap r i l  the 6th or something 

l i k e  that .  This says NUC i n  bold, the or ig ina l  applicant seekin! 

c e r t i  f i c a t i o n  t o  provide water and wastewater service t o  Nocatee 

has joined i n  t h i s  motion t o  give NUC time t o  evaluate JEA's 

proposal. And JEA's proposal was t o  take them out o f  the 

picture,  by the way. It also says counsel f o r  I C U  objects, so I 

don't agree w i th  the characterization there. 

But, again, Commissioners, I don' t  see how you can put 

i n  the unsworn testimony o f  a witness, he i s  not here t o  swear tc 

it. 

and j u s t  c a l l  i t  even. Certainly tha t  doesn't even go t o  the 

issue o f  preparation, i t  doesn't go t o  the issue o f  assistance a- 

the time o f  t r i a l ,  and i t  doesn't even solve the singular problei 

o f  pu t t ing  i n  the testimony i n  a way tha t  affords us due process 

I guess we could s t ipu late,  and then put the deposition i n  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1. S t a f f  . 
MR. MELSON: Commissioner Jacobs, I feel  l i k e  I need 

t o  ask t o  be able i t  respond on two b r i e f  points. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I think I can guess what those might 

be, and I ' m  guessing tha t  those are superfluous points, but I 

w i l l  g ive you a very b r i e f  moment t o  close. 

MR. MELSON: Very b r i e f .  F i r s t ,  the JEA proposal t ha t  

Mr. Wharton has talked about twice was not a proposal t o  provide 

r e t a i l  service t o  Nocatee, and t o  that extent I j u s t  wanted t o  

clear tha t  up. Secondly, Rule 1.330(a)(3), Flor ida Rules of 

C i v i l  Procedure provides tha t  the deposition o f  a witness can be 

used fo r  any purpose. 

because o f  age, i l l ness ,  inf i rmity,  or imprisonment. And so 

whether M r .  Horton regards our o f f e r  t o  put the deposition as 

waiving cross or  not and whether he chose t o  red i rec t  a t  the end 

o f  tha t  deposit ion or not, t ha t  i s  the purpose for which the 

deposition l aw fu l l y  can be used. 

I f  the witness i s  unable t o  t e s t i f y  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1. S t a f f .  

MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  would recommend tha t  the hearing 

not be continued and t o  allow M r .  Forrester 's deposition i n  i n  

l i e u  o f  cross examination. However, s t a f f  would also suggest 

t ha t  maybe M r .  Wharton could go through the deposition and point  

out the par ts  o f  the deposition t h a t  he would be opposed t o  and 

we could redact those port ions o f  the deposition before i t  i s  

entered i n t o  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Commissioners, any 

further questions? 

I COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I have one fur ther  question. 
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The par t ies tha t  had agreed t o  waive cross and have the 

deposition introduced i n  1 i eu  o f  l i v e  cross examination, would 

you be w i l l i n g  t o  waive cross examination without the 

introduct ion o f  the deposition? 

MR. HOFFMAN: One a l te rna t ive  might be t o  put the 

p r e f i l e d  testimony i n ,  t o  put the deposition i n ,  and give M r .  

Wharton the opportunity t o  f i l e  w r i t t en  red i rec t  t o  the 

deposition o r  t o  portions o f  the deposition as he deems 

appropriate. 

MR. MELSON: Commissioner Palecki, I th ink  bottom l i n e  

Nocatee thinks i t  would not be a good idea t o  put the p r e f i l e d  

testimony i n  without the deposition. We believe the cross 

examination in the deposition i s  necessary t o  get a f u l l  p ic tu re  

o f  the proper import o f  M r .  Forrester 's testimony. We would not 

oppose JEA's suggestion t o  al low Intercoastal t o  f i l e  something 

wr i t t en  i n  the nature o f  red i rec t  on the questions tha t  were 

asked i n  the cross. That probably ge t ' s  us as close t o  a l i v e  

presentation as we could be. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: M r .  Wharton, wi th  the o f f e r  

made by s t a f f  t o  go through the deposition t o  delete what you 

consider objectionable port ions, as w e l l  as the o f f e r  by the 

par t ies t o  a1 1 ow wr i t ten  red i rec t  o f  Mr. Forrester I s testimony, 

would tha t  eliminate your concerns? I understand you have 

others w i th  regard t o  your strategy here today and having Mr. 
Forrester here t o  advise you, but i t  seems tha t  those two 
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;elutions provide p r e t t y  much a f a i r  an equitable means t o  go 

‘orward without a cont i  nuance. 

MR. WHARTON: Sensing which way the wind i s  blowing, 

ierhaps tha t  - -  and t h a t  red i rec t  i s  going t o  be subject t o  some 
;ind o f  objection, o r  - -  I mean, i t  j u s t  gets a l i t t l e  more 

Zomplicated than that .  But, yes, tha t  w i l l  probably do it. 

Now, we are going t o  get some k ind o f  - - what i s  going 

:o have t o  happen i s  I am going t o  have t o  get some kind o f  

-u l ing  on the deposition, then I w i l l  know the scope o f  the 

led1 rec t  . Because ce r ta in l y  you never woul d have to1 erated e i  ghl 

lours o f  cross examination. This deposition went u n t i l  l a t e  i n  

the evening. It i s  probabl: 

7ot going t o  occasion any quicker resolut ion o f  t h i s  case than i~ 

rJe had M r .  Forrester t e s t i f y  l i v e  i n  Tallahassee a f t e r  he got 

de l l ,  f o r  instance, or  i f  the case were continued. 

I t  i s  probably a workable solut ion.  

Because l i k e  I say, I am going t o  have t o  make tha t  

I motion, I guess there i s  going t o  have t o  be a ru l ing ,  then 

d i l l  know what the red i rec t  says and then I w i l l  f i l e  it. 

Because the red i rec t  w i l l  be a f t e r  I have said, wel l ,  we t a  

about t h i s  i n  the dep, but tha t  i s  nowhere i n  h i s  testimony 

there i s probably something i n  there, Commi ss i  oner Pal  ecki , 

can be fashioned. 

ked 

Bul 

tha t  

I guess the only other th ing I would say i s  I th ink  tht 

r u l e  tha t  M r .  Melson read was, tha t  i s  how I put i n  the testimon: 

o f  my witness i s  sick. I am the one who gets t o  decide how t o  
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put the testimony i n .  I t ' s  not how the other side c a l l s  how the 

testimony works. But I th ink  there i s  a framework there tha t  

probably i s  something tha t  could work. 

prejudiced i n  the other regard i n  tha t  there i s  a minimal 

prejudice t o  delay, but I th ink  I have already l a i d  a l l  o f  tha t  

out. 

I s t i l l  th ink  I am 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

quickly. And t h i s  i s  Rule 1.33 o f  the Rules o f  C i v i l  Procedure. 

It indicates tha t  - -  and here i s  the purpose here. Actual ly 

t h i s  deposition i s  probably serving two purposes. The primary 

purpose, I take it, i s  the par t ies i n  opposition t o  Intercoastal 

a re  w i l l i n g  t o  allow the deposition i n  i n  exchange f o r  t h e i r  

opportunity t o  cross t h i s  witness. So you w i l l  be o f fe r ing  the 

deposition f o r  tha t  purpose. And what I 'm hearing i s  tha t  

Intercoastal i s  not looking t o  o f f e r  i t  as red i rect ,  you are 

going t o  o f f e r  separate wr i t ten  red i rect ,  is  t ha t  correct? 

I want t o  review the r u l e  very 

MR. WHARTON: No. I d i d n ' t  ask any questions i n  tha t  

deposi ti on. Not one. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. And also a l l  the par t ies who 

have an i n te res t  have indicated they woul d waive t h e i r  formal 
verbal cross examination. It would appear t o  me tha t  w i th in  the 

scope o f  t h i s  r u l e  tha t  t h i s  would be an allowed procedure. And 

while i t  i s  unfortunate and we would rather have your primary 

witness here, I would say for pr imar i l y  your opportunity t o  

present him as a witness would seem t o  be adequately covered i f  
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we followed the procedure tha t  i s  outl ined, I do have some 

concerns tha t  you raised tha t  he would be your primary expert 

consultant a t  t r i a l  

obviously, you know, while h i s  i l l n e s s  was recent, you would 

have had some time t o  come up w i th  some addit ional advice or 

consultant by the time o f  hearing. We have another day or so 

here, and i f  you need a consultant, I ' m  sure you can acquire 

tha t  . 

However, my f i r s t  thought on tha t  i s  tha t  

So while t h a t  i s ,  I ' m  sure, an inconvenience, I don' t  

see i t  as a matter t ha t  deprives due process. And I th ink  the 

other issues have been deal t  w i th  by the process tha t  has been 

described. So i n  tha t  l i g h t ,  we w i l l  deny the motion t o  

continue. And subject t o  the conditions tha t  have been discussec 

here today, primari l y  tha t  M r .  Forrester 's deposition w i  11 be 

a1 lowed i n t o  the - - entered i n t o  the record, and counsel f o r  

Intercoastal w i  11 be a1 1 owed t o  p ro f fe r  w r i t t en  red i  rec t  t o  tha t  I 

I n  the event par t ies want t o  inqui re  i n t o  the red i rec t ,  

I would suggest t ha t  you do tha t  informal ly.  And i f  there are 

any problems tha t  might come up, they can be referred t o  e i ther  

the prehearing o f f i c e r  or brought back before the Commission i n  

t h a t  you could work through some form o r  fashion. But we hope 

those issues 

Does t h a t  sound reasonab 

Great. 

e enough t o  go forward? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: M r .  Chairman, l e t  me ask a quick 
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question. Do you envision i n  your r u l i n g  tha t  there would be 

the opportunity f o r  Mr. Wharton t o  review the deposition and 

i d e n t i f y  areas which should not be entered i n t o  the order, or  i s  

your r u l i n g  t h a t  the en t i re  deposition w i l l  be entered i n t o  the 

record? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We had discussed tha t  idea o f  

redacting port ions o f  it. 

an agreeable option. And, qu i te  f rankly,  f o r  reasons o f  

e f f i c iency  and expediency, I would th ink  i t  would be preferred. 

I t  was my understanding tha t  tha t  was 

the r u l i n g  t o  allow redacting those And so I would amend 

portions . 
I would a1 

aware o f  your i n ten t  

ow the par t ies - -  i f  you would make part ies 

a t  redactions and i f  there are any 

controversy, the same process as we talked about would - -  

MR. WHARTON: I assume tha t  i s  a pleading tha t  I w i l l  

f i l e  and I w i l l  make them aware i n  tha t  way and they w i l l  have 

an opportunity t o  respond. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That i s  precisely why I asked 

the question. I'm not t r y i n g  t o  determine - -  I ' m  j u s t  trying t o  

understand what the r u l i n g  i s  and what the ru les are going t o  be 

going forward, because I ant ic ipate tha t  the par t ies have not 

been shy o f  f i l i n g  objections and motions and I would ant ic ipate 

that  they probably would not be shy i n  t h i s  regard e i ther ,  and I 

would ant ic ipate receiving such. And I j u s t  need an 

understanding as t o  what the r u l i n g  i s  so I can act accordingly 
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I would note tha t  we are a t  hearing now and perhaps 

24 

there i s  no more need fo r  a prehearing o f f i c e r  because we are no1 

i n  the prehearing mode anymore. 

t o  me sobeit. 

want t o  understand. So there i s  going t o  be the opportunity fo r  

M r .  Wharton t o  review the deposition and t o  come forward w i th  h i :  

But, anyway i f  the burden f a l l s  

I w i l l  not sh i rk  my responsib i l i ty ,  but I j u s t  

motion f o r  continuance. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: One other thought, Mr . Chairman. 

 maybe now i s  not the r i g h t  time, but I would hope tha t  before we 

  conclude t h i s  proceeding t h i s  week tha t  there be some time 

pos i t ion on port ions t o  be redacted and the par t ies w i l l  be givei 

an opportunity t o  respond t o  tha t .  

par t ies i f  a t  a l l  possible t o  do tha t  i n  an informal manner and 

perhaps there can be an agreement as t o  what, i f  any, port ions os 

the depositions shoul d be redacted. 

I would j u s t  encourage the 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Commissioner, i f  Mr. Wharton i s  

w i l l i n g  t o  work w i th  us and, f o r  example, share a d r a f t  o f  what 

he intends t o  have redacted, we would t r y  t o  work everything out 

in formal ly  w i th  him and hopeful ly be able t o  f i l e  a st ipulated 

version o f  the deposition. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : I 'm sure he would appreci ate 

that .  It would be great. 

MR. WHARTON: Sounds good. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  That takes care o f  the 
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frames given as t o  when t h i s  i s  going t o  take place as f a r  as 

when we are going t o  have a proposed redacted version and 

perhaps an agreement, when we are going t o  f i l e  w r i t t en  

red i rect ,  and i f  when there i s  going t o  be objections i f  tha t  

red i rect  perhaps i s  outside the scope o f  the deposition. And I 

th ink  i t  would be helpful  t o  everyone t o  know what time frame we 

are looking a t .  

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, perhaps we can consult w i th  

Mr. Wharton and a t  the end o f  the hearing when we are ta l k ing  

about b r i e f i n g  schedule we can make a j o i n t  proposal. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I th ink  tha t  probably w i l l  work best 

i f  you a l l  come up w i th  an agreed time. So we w i l l  defer tha t  

u n t i l  the end o f  the hearing. Very wel l .  That takes care o f  

the motion f o r  continuance. 

There i s  a motion by NUC for o f f i c i a l  recognition. I 

am informed by s t a f f  t ha t  the items tha t  were the subject o f  tha 

motion have been included i n  s t a f f ' s  o f f i c i a l  recognit ion l i s t  

and you can agree w i th  that .  So i f  i t  i s  - - do you want t o  

maintain your motion or  could we j u s t  deal w i th  everything when 

we enter s t a f f ' s  o f f i c i a l  recognition l i s t ?  

MR. MELSON: We can deal w i th  a l l  o f  i t  w i th  s t a f f ' s  

l i s t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. So we w i l l  withdrew tha t  

motion, then. Also, your not ice o f  hearing exh ib i t ,  i s  tha t  

separate from the - - I see a notice o f  hearing exh ib i t  by NUC? 
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MS. CIBULA: Yes, tha t  w i l l  be separate. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We don ' t  need t o  r u l e  on that,  

;hough? Okay. Intercoastal has a motion f o r  extension o f  t i m e  

60 f i  1 e responsive testimony. 

MR. WHARTON: Well, I would withdraw tha t  motion 

iecause the county withdrew and apparently doesn't intend t o  put 

the testimony in. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Amazing how these things work out. 

Very we l l .  That's good t o  hear. Are there any other 

prel iminary matters? 

MR. WHARTON: There are, Mr. Chairman. I want t o  make 

another ore tenus motion. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I was hoping tha t  we - -  I saw tha t  

was possible, but I wasn't sure. 

MR. WHARTON: Commissioners, I want t o  move f o r  

reconsideration o f  Order Number PSC-011055-PCO-WS issued by the 

prehearing o f f i c e r  on May 3rd, 2001, as i t  re la tes t o  

Intercoastal ' s rebuttal  testimony o r  motion t o  accept additional 

pref  i 1 ed. 

I understand tha t  the prehearing o f f i c e r  has had a l o t  

t o  deal w i th  i n  t h i s  case, and tha t  i t  i s  - -  and often the 

Commissioners do not have the t ime  fo r  t h e i r  schedule t o  allow 

f o r  oral  argument and tha t  there i s  a l o t  going on. But I want 

t o  t a l k  t o  the f u l l  panel about tha t  order, which was only issue 

two or three business days ago. In t h i s  case - -  
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COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Wharton, excuse me. I ' m  

sorry, t e l l  me again the t i t l e  o f  the order and l e t  me get my 

hands on it. 

MR. WHARTON: It i s  an order, Commissioner Jaber, 

granting i n  par t  and denying i n  par t  Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s ,  

Inc.3 motion t o  accept p r e f i l e d  testimony and denying request 

f o r  o r a l  argument and granting S t .  Johns County's motion t o  

accept addit ional intervenor testimony and denying motion f o r  

continuance. The prehearing o f f i c e r  had a l o t  i n  f ron t  o f  him 

on t ha t  par t i cu la r  day i n  t h i s  par t i cu la r  motion. 

What occurred i n  t h i s  case, Commissioners, i s  t ha t  Ms. 

Swain f i l e d  testimony, who i s  a f inancial  expert on behalf o f  

NUC, f i l e d  testimony saying tha t  she had discovered an error  thal 

had been tr iggered by something tha t  was brought t o  her 

attention, and suddenly NUC's rates went down. And the 

prehearing o f f i c e r  decided t o  allow tha t  testimony and gave her 

t i m e  fo r  rebuttal  testimony. 

Well , Intercoastal then f i l e d  testimony saying, a l l  

r i g h t ,  it has been our at tent ion the whole time understanding 

tha t  we are i n  a p r e t t y  b i g  f i g h t  here over a p r e t t y  b i g  area 

w i th  two p r e t t y  we1 1 -healed opponents who have made an a1 l iance 

w i th  each other , the Jacksonvi 11 e E l  e c t r i  c Author i ty and NUC. 

And we pledge tha t  we w i l l  p ro ject  our rates over a ten-year 

period tha t  w i l l  be even lower than those rates tha t  Ms. Swain 

has now reduced a t  the eleventh hour NUC's rates to .  
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That testimony was made up o f  three parts.  Someone 

from the corporation saying we are committed t o  do it. Someone 

Mho i s  a f inanc ia l  expert saying here i s  how much it would take. 

9nd then a c e r t i f i e d  publ ic  accountant saying the corporation an( 

the shareholders who have made t h i s  commitment do have enough 

money t o  do tha t .  So those were the three par ts  o f  tha t .  

That i s  something tha t  Intercoastal had intended t o  do 

the whole time, t h a t  cer ta in ly  the bottom l i n e  w i th  tha t  

testimony tha t  i f  Ms. Swain's testimony i s  not f i l e d ,  we don ' t  

f i l e  ours. I f  Ms. Swain's testimony i s  withdrawn r i g h t  now, I 

withdraw t h i s  motion. 

I want t o  read t o  you, Commissioners, because I know 

tha t  I was involved w i th  many o f  you i n  the two Aloha cases wherr 

we had s ign i f i can t  discussions about the  nature o f  rebut ta l  

testimony. The attorneys pocket d ic t ionary  says rebut ta l  

testimony i s  evidence tha t  i s  given t o  explain, repel, 

counteract, or  disprove facts  given i n  evidence by the adverse 

party. Black's Law Dict ionary says evidence given t o  explain, 

repel, counteract, or disprove facts given i n  evidence by the 

adverse party. And I th ink  tha t  i s  what the prehearing o f f i c e r  

overlooked i n  t h i s  case i s  tha t  i t  i s  completely proper f o r  

rebuttal  testimony evidence t o  be evidence that counteracts. 

Rebuttal evidence i s  not j u s t  evidence saying you made 

a mistake, I am point ing out a mistake you made. That i s  almost 

the d i rec t ion  t h a t  we went i n  in the Aloha case and perhaps i n  
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both direct ions.  I th ink p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  the case o f  p r e f i l e d  

testimony and a l l  the years I have been around the Commission I 

have always understood why you do p r e f i l e d  testimony, but I do 
think i n  a way sometimes it drives the t r a i n .  

I mean, cer ta in ly  you would have d i f f e ren t  testimony i r  

t h i s  were l i v e  testimony i n  t h i s  case because things have been 

happening a l l  the time. 

p re f i l ed  testimony you want t o  be careful how narrow you construc 

t h i s  concept o f  rebuttal .  We f i l e d  testimony tha t  was intended 

t o  counteract t ha t  testimony. And I would understand why NUC 

wants t o  keep out testimony tha t  we pledge ourselves over t h i s  

ten-year period we have projected t o  pony up the money if 

necessary i n  order t o  make these rates a r e a l i t y ,  and they are 

lower than NUCs. I understand why they want t o  keep tha t  out. : 
don't  understand why you, Commissioners, as a po l i cy  matter want 

t o  keep tha t  out. That i s  t o  the benef i t  o f  the ratepayers. 

I t h ink  p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  the case o f  

What the testimony i s  we have got a bunch o f  

m i l l i ona i re  shareholders and they are w i l l i n g  t o  make t h i s  

commitment. And i s  tha t  something tha t  we shouldn't be allowed 

t o  put i n t o  the record? And I have t o  contrast i t  t o  the 

county's brand new testimony tha t  was allowed i n  the exact same 

order. And the order says, wel l ,  t h i s  i s  something t h a t  hasn't  

happened before, and, therefore, the only way the county could 

have f i l e d  t h i s  was t o  b r ing  i t  i n  a t  the l a s t  minute. Well, i f  

the county was i n  t h i s  case, I would have shown through cross 
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Commissioners, t h i s  i s  testimony tha t  I t h ink  i s  i n  thc 

publ ic in terest .  I should emphasize it i s  not some change in our 
d i rec t  case. I know tha t  i s  a d i s t i nc t i on  tha t  i s  something that 

i s  important f o r  the Commission t o  appreciate. The ru les don' t  

require us t o  pro ject  ra tes out for ten years. We are an 

ex is t ing  u t i l i t y ,  who i f  we come under your j u r i s d i c t i o n  our 

rates are going t o  be grandfathered. That i s  j u s t  something that 

we have done because l e t ' s  face it, t h i s  i s  a l i t t l e  d i f f e ren t  

than most o f  the cases tha t  you hear. I t ' s  l i k e  a comparative 

review proceeding. 

applicants are i n  there competing for one thing. And I 

understand you have seen tha t  before, but i t ' s  not  the usual 

It almost reminds me o f  a CON case where two 
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examination they have been th ink ing about what they d i d  l a s t  

Tuesday f o r  months, and there i s  no reason tha t  they d i d n ' t  do i t  

u n t i  1 the e l  eventh hour. 

We, on the other hand, were f i l i n g  testimony, and i t  i s  

not voluminous testimony, t h a t  was exactly and spec i f i ca l l y  

responsive t o  the testimony tha t  was allowed by Ms. Swain. 

should also say tha t  I stood ready and communicated t o  the 

par t ies and t o  Mr. Melson t h a t  I stood ready t o  give him the 

a l ternat ive r e l i e f  he requested i n  h i s  objection t o  our 

testimony. 

Wednesday and I had the CD-ROM wi th  a l l  o f  h i s  calculat ions on 

it. And t o l d  Mr. Melson I would give i t  t o  him the second the 

order was issued. 

I 

I had M r .  Burton ready t o  come t o  testimony l a s t  
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Zase. 

I j u s t  don' t  t h ink  the agent o f  p r e f i l e d  testimony 

should ever be what denies a par ty  from coming i n ,  pu t t ing  i n  thc 

widence, i t ' s  evidence tha t  i s  responsive, i t ' s  evidence tha t  i: 

relevant, and t h a t ' s  what we are t a l  k ing about . Remember that .  

I f  there were no p r e f i l e d  i n  t h i s  case, t h i s  wouldn't be an 

issue. 

3n i t  then and I would t a i l o r  i t  t o  responsiveness. 

I can say whatever I want i n  rebuttal  and you would r u l e  

I also think,  Commissioners, t h i s  i s  a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  a 

unique k ind o f  motion for reconsideration, because i t  was an 

order o f  the prehearing o f f i c e r  and now it i s  being heard by a l l  

f i v e  o f  you. Usually a motion f o r  reconsideration e i ther  comes 

back t o  you a f te r  you have a l l  ru led on i t  o r  comes back t o  the 

same prehearing of f icer a f t e r  he has ru led on it. 
Four o f  you are hearing t h i s  fo r  the f i r s t  time, and I 

understand well what the standard i s  t h a t  the Commission has put 

i n  many o f  i t s  orders, and I am arguing tha t  I th ink  the fac t  

that  i t  i s  a proper purpose fo r  rebuttal  testimony t o  counteract 

that  t ha t  i s  what was overlooked. But I t h ink  t h i s  i s  testimony 

that  ought t o  be allowed, i t  i s  testimony t h a t  i s  spec i f i ca l l y  

responsive t o  Ms. Swain, i t  i s  a commitment the shareholders are 

w i l l i n g  t o  make on the record and t o  be held t o  i f  t h i s  

Commission takes j u r i s d i c t i o n  over t h i s  e n t i t y ,  and I don' t  thin1 

the record should be s i l e n t  on tha t  point .  

When Mike Burton i s  up there t e s t i f y i n g ,  whether you 
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l e t  i n  t ha t  testimony or not it i s  r e a l i t y .  The commitment has 

been made. The corporation has made the commitment, the 

shareholders have made the commitment. And he i s  going t o  have 

t o  s k i r t  around tha t  or e i t he r  t a l k  about it. 

So, Commissioners, i t  was not voluminous testimony, i t  

was f i l e d  w i th in  the time allowed f o r  rebut ta l .  I do th ink  tha t  

it i s  proper rebuttal  testimony, and i t  was testimony tha t  was 

spec i f i ca l l y  t a i l o red  t o  counteract the e f f e c t  o f  Ms. Swain's 

correct ion o f  her er ror  t ha t  suddenly NUC's rates went down belob 

ours. We would ask t h a t  t ha t  order be reconsidered and the 

testimony allowed. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Wharton, what would be your 

po int  o f  l a w  or fac t  t ha t  was overlooked? 

MR. WHARTON: Well, I believe the fac t  tha t  was 

overlooked was tha t  - -  I believe the point  o f  l aw  tha t  was 

overlooked i s  tha t  i t  i s  an appropriate agent, i t  i s  an 

appropriate vehicle f o r  rebut ta l  testimony t o  be not testimony 

tha t  j u s t  corrects, i t  i s  testimony tha t  counteracts. 

I th ink  tha t  t h i s  Commission has some d iscret ion i n  

terms o f  what rebuttal  testimony i s .  And I th ink  when you are 

deciding what rebuttal  testimony i s  you need t o  th ink  about the 

nature o f  pref i led.  Because, again, i f  there were no p r e f i l e d  

testimony i n  t h i s  case, you would be hearing i t  f o r  the f i r s t  

t ime i n  my rebuttal  case. 

I believe tha t  the point  o f  f ac t  t h a t  was overlooked i: 
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t ha t  the order said t h i s  i s  something Intercoastal  could have 

done before, i t  had a l i n e  i n  there r i g h t  t o  t h a t  e f fec t .  

bel ieve tha t  overlooks the fac t  t ha t  t ha t  i s  not  the case becausc 

before t h e i r  rates o r  the gallonage rates, usage rates tha t  we 

bel ieve are r e a l l y  representative were not below Intercoastal ' s  

and tha t  afterwards they were. 

I 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Wharton, so there are two 

things tha t  you bel ieve the rebuttal  testimony does, i t  

c l a r i f i e s  f o r  you what the rates would have always been, and 

tha t  there was no change i s  what I hear you saying because - - 
MR. WHARTON: No. I have not made myself c lear i f  

tha t  i s  the case. No. When Ms. Swain f i l e d  the testimony 

saying guess what, our rates j u s t  went down from 1.7 t o  L 4  - -  
understand these are t o t a l  fake numbers - - wel l  , we said, then 

guess what, we have said the whole time t h a t  we were w i l l i n g  t o  

do whatever i t  would take t o  make t h i s  where it would benef i t  

our ex is t ing  customers and t o  make i t  more a t t rac t i ve  t o  the 

Commi ssi  on. Understandi ng what tha t  meant, our rates j u s t  went 

down from 1.6 t o  1.39. So, no, the rates d id  change. Now, 

again, tha t  wasn't part o f  our case. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So tha t  i s  the counteraction and 

the c l a r i f i c a t i o n  you made i n  rebut ta l .  

MR . WHARTON : Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: With respect t o  the commitment 
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;hat the shareholders have w i th  Intercoastal ,  tha t  i s  also i n  

lour d i r e c t  case. 

MR. WHARTON: But i t  was more money. It i s  going t o  

lost  them more money t o  do these lower rates. What we have 

2f fect ive ly  said i s  we w i l l  accept rates tha t  are less than 

Zompensatory during t h i s  four-year window. Then they w i l l  go 

iown below NUC's  anyway. But t h a t ' s  why we had t o  r e f i l e  t ha t  

md t h a t ' s  also why we had the CPA say, okay, I went i n  before 

md said they have enough money t o  do the project .  Now I have 

gone i n  and looked and I say they have enough money t o  do t h i s  

7ew commitment. That's why we had t o  do i t  tha t  way. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A1 1 r i g h t .  And was i t  - - but  you 

discovered tha t  before Ms. Swain f i l e d  her testimony, correct? 

MR. WHARTON: We never intended t o  make t h i s  o f f e r  

that  the rates would be a t  t ha t  leve l  u n t i l  Ms. Swain came i n  

and said tha t  the projected rates were where she i s  now saying 

they are. That was not something we intended t o  do because we 

were going t o  keep them where they were a t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r  . Me1 son. 

MR. MELSON: Commissioners, Nocatee opposes the 

motion. Let me t e l l  you a l i t t l e  b i t  about what Ms. Swain's 

corrected testimony was. S t a f f  asked some interrogatories about 

Ms. Swain's calculat ion o f  the wastewater rate.  As you a l l  

know, wastewater rates are set i n  a way tha t  attempts t o  charge 

the customer on the basis of 80 percent o f  t h e i r  water usage. 
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In preparing the i n i t i a l  rate f i l i n g  i n  this document, Ms. Swain 

introduced an error in to  her calculation of the rate which 
essential l y  double counted or  counteracted t h a t  80 percent 
effect and filed a rate which i f  applied t o  our projected usage 
would produce more than the revenue requi rement . 

We never would have discovered t h a t  and would not have 
filed the addi t ional  testimony i f  staff had not served discovery 
requests on us asking for more detail and backup as t o  how the 
calculat ion was done. 
discovery requests we discovered an error and we admitted i t  and 

we filed two pages of prefiled testimony t h a t  said there was an 
error i n  the calculat on, here is  the correction o f  the error, 
here is the rate t h a t  now produces the proper revenue 
requirement. And we also provided a t  the same time t o  s ta f f  and 

the other parties i n  discovery the backup calculations and 

explanation t h a t  the s ta f f  had asked f o r .  

In the process o f  responding t o  those 

Chairman Deason granted - - or Prehearing Officer 
Deason, excuse me, Mr. Chai rman - - granted our motion f o r  leave 
t o  f i l e  t h a t  corrected testimony i n  part because s taff  took the 
position t h a t  i f  we had not corrected the testimony they would 

have cross-examined Ms. Swain a t  the hearing and pointed her 
error out  t o  her. So i t  was nothing t h a t  was not going t o  come 
before the Commission i n  any event. 

Mr. Wharton was granted leave t o  f i l e  rebuttal t o  t h a t  
and he did f i l e  some proper rebuttal. He filed some testimony o 
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W Burton t h a t  among other things says I don' t  t h ink  Ms. Swain 

has got i t  qu i te  r i g h t  yet. I t h ink  her number should be a few 

pennies more than she calculated. 

The testimony went beyond rebut ta l ,  though. It said 

for  the f i r s t  time our i n ten t  a l l  along has been t o  have rates 

lower than Nocatee. And now tha t  Nocatee has corrected i t s  ra te  

and we f i n d  our ra te  i s  s l i g h t l y  higher, we are going t o  come i n  

and change the ra te  we propose. We are no longer i n  a 

grandfather s i tua t ion  where we are asking you t o  approve the 

rates tha t  we have today, we are asking you t o  approve rates thai 

are j u s t  enough lower tha t  we can buy t h i s  service t e r r i t o r y .  

And, Commission, I honestly believe tha t  i s  what i s  

going on. Intercoastal ' s  pos i t ion  w i l l  change. Their plan o f  

service - -  every time they learn more about Nocatee's plan o f  

service, they change t h e i r  plan o f  service t o  look more l i k e  us. 

Every time we make a correction t o  the rates, they come i n  and 

vant t o  change the approach they take t o  r a t e  set t ing.  We j u s t  

think i t  goes well beyond the scope o f  proper rebut ta l .  It i s ,  

i n  fact ,  a change i n  t h e i r  d i r e c t  case and the prehearing o f f i ce ]  

properly rejected tha t  as improper rebuttal  . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r  . Hoffman . 
MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Very b r i e f l y .  

The JEA would support Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation's posit ion. I 

th ink when you are t a l  k ing about a subject 1 i k e  rebut ta l ,  i t  i s  

really - - and you are t a l k i n g  about the scope o f  rebut ta l ,  i t ' s  
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not un l ike the ru l ings tha t  you have t o  make, M r .  Chairman, 

during the course o f  an evident iary hearing on objections tha t  

are r a i  sed on speci f i  c evi  denti  ary i ssues . 
I n  t h i s  case, I t h ink  tha t  Intercoastal l a i d  out 

whatever reasons i t  had i n  support o f  the testimony i t  wished t o  

f i l e  and Nocatee f i l e d  a response. A t  tha t  point ,  there c lea r l y  

was a judgment deci sion, a d i  scre t i  onary judgment deci s i  on t o  be 
made by the prehearing o f f i c e r  as t o  what was proper rebuttal  an( 

what was not. And our pos i t ion  simply i s ,  number one, we believr 

t ha t  t ha t  judgment was properly exercised and tha t  there i s  no 

legal  basis t o  reverse tha t  judgment. 

And, secondly, from the arguments tha t  I have heard 

thus f a r  from Intercoastal,  I have not heard any compelling lega' 

p r i nc ip le  tha t  was overlooked. There i s  some discussion o f  a 

d e f i n i t i o n  o f  rebuttal  from the attorneys pocket dict ionary, 

which I ' m  not f a m i l i a r  with, but i n  any case, i f  tha t  spec i f ic  

argument was not raised i n  the i n i t i a l  motion tha t  was f i l e d  by 

Intercoastal i n  support o f  t h i s  testimony, then obviously there 

was nothing overlooked. And the Commission has issued orders i n  

the past bas ica l ly  saying you cannot ra ise a new argument, a new 

basis f o r  the r e l i e f  you seek on reconsideration. So f o r  those 

reasons we would support Nocatee s posi ti on. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

We support Nocatee's pos i t ion on t h i s  and wou 

I w i l l  be b r i e f .  

d adopt M r .  
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I do believe tha t  Commissioner Deason, Melson's argument. 

act ing i n  h i s  r o l e  as prehearing o f f i c e r ,  d i d  a very good job i n  

dist inguishing those parts o f  the offered information tha t  was 

proper rebuttal  and tha t  which would not be proper rebuttal  and 

therefore we would j o in .  Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: C1 ose, M r  . Wharton. 

MR. WHARTON: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. You know, I 

assume M r .  Hoffman i s  f a m i l i a r  w i th  Black's Legal Dictionary, 

which I also read the same d e f i n i t i o n  from. But, again, 

Commissioners, what we anticipated when we f i l e d  on t h i s  and 

when we d i d  respond t o  these motions was t h a t  appropriate legal 

standards would be met. We th ink  tha t  you do have some 

discret ion. We acknowledge tha t  the prehearing o f f i c e r  had some 

d iscret ion and acknowledge tha t  he had a l o t  on h i s  p la te  wi th  

regard t o  tha t  par t i cu la r  order which real l y  encompassed qui te  a 

few things. But, again, the fac t  tha t  t h i s  testimony was 

testimony tha t  was intended t o  counteract and which cer ta in ly  

would never have be prof fered i f  Ms. Swain's testimony had not 

been proffered, we bel ieve i s  something tha t  was overlooked and 

tha t  i s  j u s t  inconsistent w i th  the order. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . S t a f f ,  do you have a 

recommendat i on? 
MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  recommends tha t  the motion fo r  

reconsideration be denied. The standard f o r  a motion f o r  

reconsideration i s  Diamond Cab Company o f  M i a m i  versus King, 
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1466 So.2d 889, Florida,1962, which stands f o r  the proposit ion 

that  the purpose o f  a motion fo r  reconsideration i s  t o  bring t o  

the Commission's a t tent ion a po in t  o f  f ac t  o r  l a w  which was 

overlooked by the Commission or  which the Commission f a i l e d  t o  

consider when i t  rendered i t s  order, and i t  i s  not intended as a 

procedure f o r  rearguing the case merely because a los ing  par ty  

disagreed w i th  the decision. 

As t o  whether the testimony a t  issue i s  rebuttal  

testimony or addit ional testimony, the prehearing o f f i c e r  

considered the nature o f  the testimony and determined tha t  71 01 

Mr. James' and M r .  Bowen's testimony was addit ional testimony, 

and tha t  port ions o f  Mr. Burton's testimony was addit ional 

t es t  i mony . 
Intercoastal has been representing throughout t h i s  casc 

tha t  i t  intended t o  apply i t s  ex is t ing  rates t o  the Nocatee 

development. Intercoastal s attempt t o  submit testimony tha t  

changes i t s  rates i s  new testimony. Therefore, there i s  no 
mistake o f  fact .  

As t o  the fairness issue tha t  Intercoastal set out, thc 

order explained t h i s ,  as well The county was unable t o  f i l e  thc 

additional testimony sooner because the County Commission j u s t  

made the decision t o  place the S t .  Johns County por t ion o f  the 

Nocatee development i n i t s  excl us i  ve servi  ce area . However, 

Intercoastal had ample time t o  f i l e  a request tha t  i t  be allowed 

t o  apply supply di f ferent rates t o  the Nocatee development, but 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: S t a f f ,  I have a fur ther  

question on the issue o f  who i s  be t te r  able t o  serve more 

economically i n  a t e r r i t o r i a l  dispute. When tha t  issue i s  

decided by the Commission, we general ly look a t  t rad i t iona  

se t t ing  notions, i s n ' t  t ha t  correct ,  as t o  who can more 

economical 1 y serve? 

MS. CIBULA: We look a t  i f  i t  i s  in the publ ic  

2 

i t  f a i l e d  t o  do so u n t i l  a week before the hearing. Therefore, 

s t a f f  recommends tha t  the motion for reconsideration be denied. 
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in terest .  That might be one o f  the aspects tha t  we look a t ?  the 

rates. But the publ ic  in te res t  i s  what we look a t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: But when we compare the two 

u t i l i t i e s '  a b i l i t y  t o  serve, simply an o f fe r  by one u t i l i t y  t o  

subsidize rates through i t s  stockholders i s n ' t  necessarily 

something t h i s  Commission would even consider anyway. 

MS. CIBULA: That i s  correct. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Any other questions Cornmi ssioners? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Chairman, i f  Mr. Wharton i s  

correct tha t  t h i s  comes t o  the whole panel, f u l l  Commission on 
reconsideration, I can go ahead and move t h a t  we deny the motion 

for reconsiderati on 

I do agree t h a t  once - -  the or ig ina l  decision w i th  

respect t o  rebuttal  testimony, I do agree tha t  there i s  
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f l e x i b i l i t y .  

standard i s  mistake o f  f ac t  o r  l a w .  So i n  tha t  regard I would 

move t o  deny the motion f o r  reconsideration. 

I don' t  th ink  there i s  f l e x i b i l i t y  now because the 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It has been moved. I s  there a 

second? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Second. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I t  has been moved and seconded. 

Before we do that, I believe it i s  the case that a motion f o r  

reconsideration does go before the f u l l  panel. 

MS. CIBULA: That i s  correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And so a l l  i n  favor, aye. 

(Simultaneous af f i rmat ive vote.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Opposed, nay. None. So then the 

motion i s  denied. Let me say t h i s ,  when I saw t h i s  i t  was a b i t  

disconcerting. I believe tha t  the decision i s  correct, I do not 

believe the prehearing o f f i c e r  overlooked any par t i cu la r  fac t  or  

matter o f  l a w .  However, these circumstances are r e a l l y  unique 

for a development o f  t h i s  size. 

l i t t l e  b i t  t h a t  such a substantial change i n  the facts comes i n  

a t  such a late time i n  the process. 

It weighs on my conscience a 

I don't th ink  i t  i s  a t  anybody's design or anything, 

but i t  i s  a challenge. And I don' t  th ink  there i s  much t o  be 

done about i t  now. I th ink  the ru l ings  are proper. We would 

hope t o  look t o  tha t  i n  the future. And I guess I w i l l  challengc 

s t a f f ,  i f  there i s  a way i n  the future tha t  we could re f i ne  our 
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process. 

And i t  i s  not s t a f f ' s  f a u l t ,  you simply were doing your 

job i n  discovery. But i n  the event o f  something l i k e  t h i s  I 

would a t  minimum th ink i t  would be incumbent upon the par t ies 

that  come along wi th  t h i s  e r ro r  t o  prove up tha t  er ror .  And that 

may be what we see happening i n  the case. And I guess what I am 

suggesting here i s  there i s  s t i l l  an opportunity t o  cross and 

challenge the basis o f  the er ro r  and t o  what extent i t  should 

apply going forward. And tha t  w i l l  give me some comfort i n  how 

we deal w i th  t h i s  on a going-forward basis. And I guess t h a t ' s  

about i t  . 
MR. WHARTON: It would be even more disconcerting i f  

the county hadn't withdrawn. 

par t ic ipate f o r  the f i r s t  t ime i n  the case l a s t  week and then t o  

withdraw. 

If they both decided t o  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well  . Enough said on that .  I 

can see b a i t ,  I th ink.  Let 's  see, t ha t  takes care o f  the motion 

fo r  reconsideration. Do we have any other prel iminary matters? 

Le t ' s  see. Response testimony. 

MS. CIBULA: Yes, there was. Like we j u s t  ta lked 

about, Mr. Burton was allowed t o  f i l e  a por t ion o f  h i s  testimony 

i n  response, so we want t o  i d e n t i f y  where tha t  w i l l  be taken up 

a t  the hearing. And s t a f f  would suggest tha t  i t  would be taken 

up a t  the time when h i s  regular rebuttal  testimony i s  taken up, 

which would mean i t  would be inserted on Page 9 o f  the 
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rehear ing order near the middle o f  the page. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . That i s  agreeable? 

MR. WHARTON: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . 
MR. WHARTON: And the matters for which o f f i c i a  

pecognition were requested i s  going t o  come i n  a t  a l a t e r  

ir i t  has a1 ready come i n ,  or  - - 
date, 

MS. CIBULA: Wel l ,  s t a f f  was going t o  request t ha t  

qext . 
MR. WHARTON: Sorry. 

MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  has prepared a l i s t  o f  items fo r  

D f f i c i a l  recognition and a l l  the par t ies have reviewed those 

items, and there are no objections, so s t a f f  would ask tha t  the 

D f f i c i a l  recognition l i s t  be entered i n t o  the record. And we 

have handed out copies t o  a l l  the Commissioners and a l l  the 

part ies. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  We can take care o f  

that. This i s  as a good time t o  do tha t  as any. Are there any 

objections t o  the o f f i c i a l  recol lect ion l i s t ?  

MR. WHARTON: I t ' s  not tha t  I have an objection, Mr. 

Chairman, and I do not, i t ' s  tha t  i n  a way I am a l i t t l e  

confused by some o f  the items on there. You know, the 

Commission, o f  a l l  the agencies tha t  I have done t r i a l s  i n  f ron t  

o f ,  I think i s  the only one tha t  sometimes takes recognition o f  

i t s  own orders. And I remember when I d i d  a l o t  o f  health care 
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rork, HCA l i k e d  t o  take o f f i c i a l  recognit ion o f  i t s  own 
rdministrative code ru le .  So I t h ink  I don' t  understand what i t  

leans t o  take o f f i c i a l  recognition. 

Taking o f f i c i a l  recognition o f  an appellate court case! 

:hat i s  j u s t  hard fo r  me t o  understand l i k e  we have done here on 

:his l i s t .  I th ink  I can use an appellate court  case i n  any way 

;hat anyone could use i t  wi th  o r  without o f f i c i a l  recognition. 1 

Zertainly don ' t  th ink  tha t  i t  means any o f  the facts i n  a 

:ommi ss i  on order , 1 i ke an appell ate court case, somehow become 

Facts i n  evidence i n  t h i s  case. So I am a l i t t l e  confused why 

:he Commission orders and the appellate court cases are on there. 

[ don ' t  object unless I am t o t a l l y  surprised l a t e r  by why tha t  

vas done. I th ink  I can re fe r  t o  any Commission order I want i n  

;he post-hearing f i l i n g s  and I th ink  I can r e f e r  t o  any appellatc 

:ourt case tha t  I want. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How do you s a t i s f y  the 

-equirement under the APA t o  provide not ice t o  the part ies o f  

vhat you r e l y  on? 
MR. WHARTON: I have never seen tha t  interpreted t o  

nean the legal theories you w i l l  r e l y  on in your post-hearing 

f i l i ngs .  I n  fact ,  Commissioner Jaber, I would th ink  some o f  

those would only occur t o  you maybe even a f t e r  the t r i a l  i s  over 

iecause o f  the k ind o f  things tha t  come up a t  t r i a l ,  

i a r t i c u l a r l y  l i v e  t r i a l s ,  f o r  the f i r s t  time. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. And that i s  respect t o  
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your post-hearing br ie fs .  What about the decision-maker's 

reliance, a l b e i t  everything has t o  be proven up, but the 

decision-maker's rel iance on tha t  l aw ,  t ha t  order, t ha t  

cleci s i  on? 

MR. WHARTON: And maybe, Commissioner Jaber, t ha t  i s  

something tha t  I need t o  enlighten myself on, but I would have 

thought without o f f i c i a l  recognit ion - -  and cer ta in ly  as I 

understand i t  t h i s  i s  not your l i s t ,  t h i s  i s  s t a f f ' s  l i s t  - -  you 

could have said, wel l ,  here are these four Commission 

precedents, and we have read them and we th ink  they are okay and 

de are going t o  fo l low them wi th  or without recognition. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: We1 1 , when you en1 ighten yoursel f 

on that ,  would you en1 ighten me, as we1 1 , because I have asked 

that same question. 

MR. MELSON: Commissioner Jaber, I th ink  f o r  the f i r s t  

t ime today M r .  Wharton and I may agree. 

Commission's custom - - 
I th ink  the 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Progress. 

MR. MELSON: - -  has been t o  recognize i t s  own orders 

and on occasion t o  recognize Flor ida cases. I th ink  there i s  

absolutely no requirement you do tha t .  We are f ree t o  c i t e  t o  

these orders or  any others we f ind ,  but because i t  i s  the 

Commission's custom we t r y  t o  i d e n t i f y  up f ron t  those we know we 

are going t o  r e l y  on j u s t  because we have always done i t  tha t  

way . 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: It i s  tha t ,  o r  i s  i t  the not ic ing 

requi rement under the APA? 

You have got no not ice requirement under 

e o f  the case l a w  you are going t o  re ly 

MR. MELSON: 

the APA t o  advise peop 

on. 

MR. McLEAN: M r .  Chairman, may I be heard j u s t  f o r  the 

moment. Harold McLean, General Counsel o f  the Commission, on 

behalf o f  the Commission i t s e l f .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Go ahead, M r .  McLean. 

MR. McLEAN: I happen t o  agree w i th  both gentlemen. 

I have This i s  a po l i cy  t h a t  I have marveled over f o r  years. 

never seen another agency do it. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That would be a good answer. 

MR. McLEAN: We were i n  a r u l e  hearing tha t  I reca l l  

M r .  Menton was there, Mr. Hoffman was there, and a par ty  moved 

f o r  o f f i c i a l  recognit ion o f  the Southern Reporters. And I 

d i d n ' t  have them under my arm so I f e l t  l e f t  out. But i t  i s  a 

po l i cy  tha t  I wanted t o  address as your general counsel. I am 

going t o  suggest t ha t  f o r  the purposes o f  t h i s  hearing tha t  the 

o f f i c i a l  not ice o f  those documents stand so le ly  f o r  the notion 

tha t  they are the authentic orders o f  the issuing agency and 

tha t  i t  not go beyond that .  

They sometimes seem t o  be of fered up f o r  the notion 

tha t  these orders are s imi lar  t o  something tha t  i s  going on here 

That i s  a legal conclusion. No witness could t e l l  you tha t  and 
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no o f f i c i a l  not ice could t e l l  you. I w i l l  b r ing you a 

recommendation i n  the next couple of  weeks on t ha t  issue. As I 

say, i t  i s  something tha t  I have marveled over fo r  years. 

MR. HOFFMAN: Mr. Chairman, I don' t  want t o  be l e f t  

out o f  the round table discussion here. Let me j u s t  say I agree 

with everything tha t  Mr. Wharton, M r .  Melson, and M r .  McLean 

said. 

not given me a sat isfactory answer yet .  

I have asked these same questions t o  M r .  Menton. He has 

Frankly, I thought t h a t  t h i s  pol icy,  t h i s  methodology, 

t h i s  way o f  doing t h i s  before the Commission started a few years 

ago perhaps leg i t imate ly  so i n  the context o f  supporting non-rul 

po l icy .  So that ,  f o r  example, i f  the PSC d i d  not have a r u l e  on 

something, then through an evident iary hearing i t  could use 

e i ther  testimony or i t s  own orders, and take o f f i c i a l  recogni t io 

o f  those orders t o  support non-rule po l icy .  

But i t  seems as though over the years i t  has so r t  o f  

mushroomed i n t o  t h i s  everybody needs t o  l i s t  the cases and order 

tha t  they intend t o  use i n  t h e i r  post-hearing b r i e f .  Which I 

agree w i th  M r .  Wharton and Mr. Melson tha t  we can do t h a t  anyway 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Now tha t  we have got t ha t  se t t led  

and a l l  the lawyers have had a - - we1 1, M r .  Menton, are you sure 

you don ' t  want t o  weigh i n  on t h i s ?  Very w e l l .  We w i l l  

anxiously await tha t  recommendation, Mr . McLean. 

Show the o f f i c i a l  recognit ion l i s t  i d e n t i f i e d  as 

Exhib i t  1, and i f  there are no objections, show it as admitted 
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into the record. 

(Exhibi t  1 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  and admitted i n t o  

:he record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We1 1 = - 
MR. WHARTON: There i s  one other th ing,  Mr. Chairman, 

[ ' m  sorry. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . 
MR. WHARTON: I have been remiss i n  not mentioning 

th is  t o  the other part ies.  M r .  Burton has a longstanding 

wesentation t o  the water management d i s t r i c t  tomorrow. He i s  

3ur witness, he cannot be here before 2:OO p.m. 

CHAI RMAN JACOBS : Today . 
MR. WHARTON: Tomorrow. So tha t  may en ta i l  taking him 

out o f  order. I do apologize. In fact ,  without M r .  Forrester 

it kind o f  looks l i k e  tha t  i s  when we w i l l ,  so i f  the other 

part ies - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why don' t  you do t h i s ,  discuss i t  

over lunch and come back. 

MR. WHARTON: I w i l l  do that ,  M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Great. Very w e l l  . That, I assume, 
takes care - - Mr. Melson, you had another matter? 

MR. MELSON: One prel iminary matter. We would l i k e  t o  

have marked as Composite Exhib i t  2 the proofs o f  publ icat ion o f  

the notice o f  t h i s  hearing i n  the S t .  Augustine Record and the 

Florida Times Union. The or ig ina ls  have previously been f i l e d  
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reporter. I 've got addit ional copies i f you a1 1 would 1 i ke 

them, but I would ask tha t  those two documents be marked as 

Composite Exhib i t  2. 

I have provided a copy t o  the court 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well Show the proofs o f  

publ icat ion notice marked as Composite Exhib i t  2. 

MR. MELSON: Move them i n t o  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Are there any objections? Without 

objection, show Exhib i t  2 i s  admitted i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibi t  2 marked fo r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  and admitted i n t o  

the record. 1 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I would l i k e  t o  take the fol lowing 

,process from t h i s  po int  forward. 

s t i l l  wanted t o  do an introduct ion o f  the case. 

I believe counsel f o r  NUC 

MR. MELSON: Commissioner Jacobs, the prehearing 

o f f i c e r  and the prehearing order have granted each party ten 

minutes t o  make an opening statement. 

was a l i t t l e  background j u s t  dealing w i th  the map tha t  would 

probably be useful f o r  the Commission so r t  o f  p r i o r  t o  the 

opening statements 

I had thought tha t  there 

Basical ly, I don' t  want a two-minute explanation o 
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where everything l i e s  t o  count against my time. And I th ink  M r .  

Wharton generously agreed tha t  he thought i t  would be helpful t o  

spend j u s t  a couple o f  minutes w i th  the map showing where 

everything i s  before we launch i n t o  our opening statements. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Because i t  i s  your p e t i t i o n  you are 

going to go f i r s t  anyway, correct, i n  opening? 

MR. MELSON: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why don't we j u s t  have you do t ha t  

and under tha t  agreement i t  won't count against your ten minute 

time. 

MR. MELSON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And w i th  tha t  I th ink  the next order 

o f  business i s  t o  swear i n  the witnesses. Would a l l  o f  those 

who are here t o  t e s t i f y  i n  the techn 

please r a i  se your r i g h t  hand . 
(Witnesses sworn.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 

openi ng statements. You may begin. 

cal hearing stand and 

. We w i l l  begin w i th  

MR. MELSON: Commissioners, as you probably lave 

gathered by t h i s  point ,  we have competing applications f o r  

ce r t i f i ca tes  before you today. We have got a map here tha t  

t r i e s  t o  j u s t  show some o f  the geographics involved, and you 

have each got a copy i n  f ron t  o f  you, a smaller scale version o f  

it. 

Let 's  begin w i th  the county 1 ine. The Duval County 

l i n e  i s  the red dashed l i n e  tha t  comes across the middle, turns 

and runs due north, and then runs east again. You have got 

Intercoastal Ut i1  i t i e s '  ex is t ing  service t e r r i t o r y  shown i n  pink,  

That borders on the A t lan t i c  Ocean and l i e s  t o  the east o f  the 
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Intracoastal Waterway, which i s  the 1 i t t l e  blue waterway and ther 

r i v e r  t ha t  you see. 

The t e r r i t o r y  applied f o r  by Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation i s  shown i n  l i g h t  yellow, and tha t  i s  co-extensive 

w i th  the bounds o f  the Nocatee development. The other darker 

yellow areas on the chart are addit ional lands owned by D D I  or  

i t s  subsidiaries, who are a f f i l i a t e s  of Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation. They are not - -  the dark yellow i s  not i n  Nocatee'! 

requested service t e r r i t o r y .  We have requested only the Nocatee 

devel opment . 
Intercoastal ' s  requested service t e r r i t o r y  i s  shown i n  

the cross- hatching. It includes both the Nocatee development, 

some addit ional dark yellow, which i s  other DDI lands i n  S t .  

Johns County, and i t  includes some o f  the green i n  S t .  Johns 

County, which i s  Estuary Corporation property. Estuary 

Corporation i s  a Davis family in te res t ,  as DDI  Corporation i s  a 

Davis family in te res t ,  but they are d i f f e ren t  branches o f  the 

family, and there i s  no a f f i l i a t e  type o f  re la t ionship between 

Estuary and DDI.  

The cross - hatched area a1 so i ncl  udes some addit ional 

t e r r i t o r y  i n  S t .  Johns County tha t  i s  white tha t  i s  owned by 

neither - - t ha t  i s  not e i ther  i n  Nocatee or  owned by DDI . Mr. 

Wharton, you may have t o  help me here. There i s  a por t ion o f  

tha t  as t o  which I believe you have withdrawn your appl icat ion? 

MR. WHARTON: There i s  a t  leas t  one area, Walden Chase 
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(phonetic), t ha t  i s  a development tha t  l i e s  w i th in  the area f o r  

which we have applied tha t  i s  presently receiving service from 
S t .  Johns County. 

MR. MELSON: And I believe tha t  i s  t h i s  white area 

here? 

MR. WHARTON: I believe tha t  i s  r i g h t .  

MR. MELSON: So w i th  t h a t  as background, l e t  me put up 

my opening statement charts and proceed w i th  the opening 

statement. 

I ' v e  got the l o g i s t i c s  worked out. The t e r r i t o r y  f o r  

which Nocatee has applied i s  the Nocatee development, the l i g h t  

yellow. 

the west side o f  the Intracoastal Waterway. It i s  a development 

o f  regional impact because of i t s  size, and tha t  means i t  has t o  

go through a separate land use permit t ing process, and i t  has 

done tha t  and i t  i s  now subject t o  D R I  development orders issued 

by S t .  Johns County and by the City o f  Jacksonville. 

I t  i s  a 15,000 acre development o f  regional impact on 

That t e r r i t o r y  f o r  which we have applied, the l i g h t  

yellow, i s  100 percent owned by D D I ,  or  through DDI through i t s  

wholly-owned subsidiaries. You w i l l  hear testimony tha t  t h i s  

Nocatee development i s  intended by the land owner and the 

developer t o  be a unique development and has a strong 

environmental ethic.  There are other Davis family lands i n  S t .  

Johns County, l i s t e d  here as Estuary Corporation, the 1 i g h t  

green. The cross- hatched area o f  those Intercoastal has appl ied  
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f o r ,  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation has not. You w i l l  hear 

testimony tha t  there i s  no need f o r  service i n  t h a t  t e r r i t o r y .  

The competing applicants here today are Nocatee Ut i1  it: 

Corporation, a subsidiary o f  DDI ,  and an a f f i l i a t e  o f  the land 

owner . Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  Corporation intends t o  provide service 

under a comprehensive agreement w i th  JEA. They w i l l  buy 

wholesale u t i l i t i e s  on a bulk basis from ex is t ing  JEA o f f - p l a n t  

s i tes.  I believe wastewater i s  i n  Mandarin, and I am f rank ly  no1 

sure where t h e i r  water s i t e  i s .  And also under t h a t  agreement w( 

w i  11 be ge t t ing  operations, management, and maintenance services 

from JEA. Although tha t  por t ion  o f  the contract has some 

provisions, i t  could be terminated and us s t i l l  continue t o  

recei ve the who1 esal e water/wastewater and reuse service. 

Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s '  ex is t ing  u t i l i t i e s  i s  the pink 

I t  proposes area on the east side o f  the Intracoastal Waterway. 

t o  serve the Nocatee development through new plants located 

e i ther  w i th in  or j u s t  on the boundary o f  the Nocatee development 

The other part ies,  JEA was the bulk provider t o  Nocater 

U t i l i t y  Corporation, the county you can ignore. My opening 

statement goes faster since they withdrew on Friday. And 

Sawgrass Association, which represents some ex i  s t i n g  customers om 

Intercoastal who oppose Intercoastal Is application, and who as I 

understand are bas ica l ly  tak ing no posi t ion on Nocatee's 

application. 

The key issues i n  considering NUC's appl icat ion are 
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essent ia l ly  the same issues you have i n  any c e r t i f i c a t e  case. Dc 

you have ju r isd ic t ion? Yes. By law you have j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  

grant ce r t i f i ca tes  t o  counties whose service t e r r i t o r y  traverses 

a county boundary. You can see here the Nocatee development i s  

i n  both Duval and S t .  Johns County. 

the development, cal l ed  the town center area, traverses the 

Duval/St. Johns County l i n e .  And, as a matter o f  fact ,  there 

w i l l  be l i nes  owned by the u t i l i t y  t ha t  cross back and f o r t h  

across tha t  boundary. 

I n  fact ,  the f i r s t  phase o f  

We don't need t o  t a l k  about the exclusive service 

t e r r i t o r y ,  tha t  i s  an issue tha t  went away w i th  S t .  Johns County, 

Is there a need fo r  service? Yes. I n  the Nocatee development il 

i s  need f o r  service beginning probably the end o f  2002, f i r s t  

quarter o f  2003. It i s  a need for service tha t  extends over a 

development period o f  about 25 years. The development has i t s  

DRI  devel opment orders and i s  pursuing other required permits am 

approvals, including Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation's c e r t i f i c a t e  

appl icat ion.  

Is there a need f o r  service t o  these other Davis f a m i l ;  

lands i n  S t .  Johns County? No. Those lands are not slated fo r  

development, and you w i l l  hear testimony tha t  they w i l l  not be 

developed i n  my l i f e t i m e  or  yours. 

Financial a b i l i t y .  Does NUC have the f inancial  a b i l i t !  

t o  serve the Nocatee development? Yes. It has a master service 

agreement w i t h  i t s  parent company, DDI ,  Inc.  DDI has a net wort1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

55 

o f  approximate1 y $2 b i  11 i on. The master service agreement, whi ck 

i s  one o f  our exhibi ts,  bas ica l l y  obligates D D I  t o  provide 

funding t o  the u t i l i t y  f o r  the i n i t i a l  capi ta l  improvements and 

u n t i l  i t  i s  able t o  stand on i t s  own two feet. 

Do we have the technical ab i l  i ty? Yes. The technical 

a b i l i t y  i s  provided through the agreement w i th  JEA under which 

they w i  11 provide contractual , management, and operation 

services. No d i f f e ren t  than you have fo r  many u t i l i t i e s  tha t  

out - source tha t  type o f  operati on. 

What we th ink  distinguishes us from Intercoastal i s  we 

a re  the only party w i th  a technica l ly  feasible plan o f  service. 

As a resu l t  o f  development order conditions f o r  the Nocatee 

development, there can be no on -s i t e  water or  wastewater 

treatment plants. There can be no on-s i te  potable water wells. 

There i s  a requirement f o r  100 percent reuse f o r  i r r i g a t i o n  

purposes w i th  wells as emergency backup only, and there can be nc 

wet weather discharges t o  the Tolomato River or i t s  t r ibu tar ies .  

And the Tolomato River forms par t  o f  the Intracoastal Waterway 

and w i th  t i d a l  act ion water passes back and f o r t h  throughout th i :  

waterway. Nocatee's plan o f  service meets a l l  o f  those 

requirements, Intercoastal ' s does not 

Ult imately i t  i s  a pub1 l c  in te res t  case. Once we have 

proven f inancial  technical a b i l i t y ,  why i t  i s  i n  the publ ic 

in te res t?  Well, f i r s t ,  land owner preference. And I th ink  land 

owner preference i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  more consideration i n  t h i s  case 
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than i n  many because o f  the uniquetnature o f  the Nocatee 

development, because o f  the strong environmental e th ic  f o r  the 

project. There i s  an in te res t  i n  having the people doing the 

master planning f o r  the development doing the master planning for 

the u t i l i t y  so tha t  the development order conditions can be met. 

The project  can be done i n  an environmentally sensi t ive way tha t  

the land owner and the developer want t o  have i t  done, and so 

that  the u t i l i t y  w i l l  be there t o  meet the development needs i n  i 

t imely manner. 

We o f f e r  competitive rates. The rates we have proposet 

were set i n  accordance w i th  the Commission's pol i c y  fo r  new 

u t i l i t i e s  designed t o  produce a f a i r  r a te  o f  re tu rn  a t  the point  

tha t  phase one o f  the u t i l i t y  reaches 80 percent o f  capacity, 

which i s  predicted t o  been i n  about year four o f  operation. The 

rates are lower than Intercoastal ' s  ex is t ing  rates and the rates 

tha t  they have proposed i n  t h i s  proceeding. You w i l l  hear qu i te  

a b i t  o f  testimony from t h e i r  witness, M r .  Burton, about 

potent ia l  future for ra te  decreases, and t h a t  i s  simply testimonj 

you are going t o  have t o  weigh. 

I can ' t  emphasize enough we have got the only plan thal 

complies w i th  the development order conditions. Those 

devel opment orders i ssued again by S t  . Johns County Commi ssion 

and the City Council o f  the City o f  Jacksonville. 

Do we duplicate or compete w i th  any ex is t ing  system? 

NO. Intercoastal does have an ex is t ing system, but they are 
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located on the opposite side o f  the Intracoastal Waterway, which 

i s  a natural boundary. They also don ' t  plan, except for some 

peuse, t o  provide any service out o f  t h e i r  ex is t ing  system. The: 

21an t o  essent ia l ly  construct a stand-alone water system and a 

stand-alone wastewater system w i th in  the boundaries o f  the 

Uocatee development i n  the t e r r i t o r y  they have applied f o r .  And 

again, S t .  Johns County i s  taking i t s e l f  out o f  play. 

Let me t a l k  fo r  a minute about Intercoastal 's  competin! 

application. Do they have the f inanc ia l  a b i l i t y ?  They have got 

a negative stockholders equity o f  over 1.3 m i l l i on .  Their fu tur (  

plans c a l l  f o r  f inancing some $17 m i l l i o n  worth o f  improvements 

i n  phase one w i th  100 percent debt, so they are going t o  cont inu 

t o  be a 100 percent debt u t i l i t y  w i th  no stockholders equity. 

Their own witnesses' testimony w i l l  show tha t  t h e i r  

p l  an o f  servi ce requi res s i  gni f i cant subsi d i  es from the i  r 

stockholders. And what we believe i s  a t e l l i n g  point, t ha t  

u t i l i t y  i s  f o r  sale. 

Commission i n  June i s  going t o  consider again making another 

o f f e r  f o r  Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s .  The l a s t  time they had a 

handshake deal w i th  the county s t a f f  they were s e l l i n g  not only 

t h e i r  ex is t ing  service t e r r i t o r y ,  but  they were get t ing value f o  

future connections i n  the Nocatee development fo r  which they d i d  

not hold a c e r t i f i c a t e .  We simply don ' t  th ink  they can 

demonstrate a long-term commitment t o  serve the t e r r i t o r y  they 

have appl i ed  f o r .  

It has been f o r  sale. The S t .  Johns Count, 



58 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

With regard t o  technical a b i l i t y ,  we provide through a 

management contract w i th  JEA; they provide through a management 

contract w i th  JUM, Jax U t i  1 i t i e s  Management . They probably have 

the technical a b i l i t y  t o  operate a u t i l i t y .  But i n  t h i s  case 

they have not proposed a technica l ly  feasible plan o f  service, 

because they plan t o  put plants i n  Nocatee, which v io la tes the 

development order, they plan t o  put water we1 1 s i n  Nocatee, whicl 

v io la tes the development order. They plan t o  supplement reuse 

w i th  some groundwater during ear ly  years, which v io la tes the 

development order, and they have discharges t o  the Intracoastal 

IWaterway, which v io la tes the development order. 
I 

Is granting Intercoastal ' s  appl icat ion i n  the pub l ic  

in terest? No. It i s  opposed by the landowner. I believe you 

w i l l  hear i t  i s  opposed by the current customers o f  intercoastal 

P a r t  o f  t h e i r  case i s  a ra te  comparison. They pro ject  fu tu re  

i ra te decreases over the next ten  years, but you w i l l  hear cross 

iexamination tha t  shows those project ions are unrel iab le .  

They ignore the fac t  t ha t  they were supposed t o  have 

f i l e d  a ra te  case w i th  S t .  Johns County on May 1s t  and j u s t  got i 

30 day extension t o  do that .  They assume tha t  they w i l l  reduce 

t h e i r  rates below compensatory leve ls ,  and i n  determining how 

much sho r t fa l l  they are w i l l i n g  t o  bear, they misapply PSC 

ratemaking pr inc ip les  and don' t  show you the f u l l  e f fec t  o f  how 

much they are w i l l i n g  t o  quote, subsidize. And as I have said 

two or three times, t h e i r  plan o f  service simply doesn't comply 

I 
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ii t h  the development order 

You a l s o  need t o  know t h a t  t h e i r  s ing le county 

ippl icat ion,  i n  ear ly  1999 they applied t o  the S t .  Johns County 

Jater and Sewer Author i ty t o  serve the S t .  Johns County por t ion 

i f  t h i s  t e r r i t o r y  tha t  i s  shown i n  the cross-hatched. That was 

lenied by S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Author i ty and was 

lenied and then af f i rmed by the f u l l  S t .  Johns County Commission 

3fter s i x  days o f  evidentiary hearings before the author i ty.  

In summary, Nocatee Ut i1  i t y  Corporation meets a1 1 the 

statutory requirements fo r  a c e r t i f i c a t e  and granting i t  a 

ze r t i f i ca te  i s  i n  the publ ic in te res t .  There i s  a need fo r  

service i n  i t s  requested t e r r i t o r y ,  although not  i n  the 

additional t e r r i t o r y  Intercoastal has requested. It i s  

f i nanc ia l l y  strong, i t  i s  providing technical capab i l i t y  through 

i t s  agreement w i th  JEA. 

meets the development order requirement It has got reasonable 

rates calculated i n  accordance w i th  the Commission's pol i c y  f o r  

new u t i l i t i e s .  

ex is t ing system. 

I t  has a v iable plan o f  service. It 

It does not dupl icate or  compete w i th  any 

The fac t  tha t  i t  i s  a wholly-owned subsidiary o f  DDI  

means tha t  i t  w i l l  enable the u t i l i t y  t o  do master planning i n  a 

way tha t  meets the needs o f  t h i s  unique development. And t o  the 

extent there i s  any remaining issue about the county's action t o  

designate t h i s  area as t h e i r  exclusive service t e r r i t o r y ,  that  i: 

a matter f o r  the courts and not f o r  you a l l .  Thanks. 

~ 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: M r .  Melson, may I ask you some 

questions? 

MR. MELSON: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: The City o f  a A l i f ea  (phonetic) 

versus I th ink  i t  was U t i l i t i e s ,  Tnc., a re  you f a m i l i a r  w i th  

tha t  case? 

MR. MELSON: Not by name. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Would you reca l l  t ha t  tha t  

was the case where the Commission - -  because you said not by 

name, I am assuming you might reca l l  some o f  the circumstances. 

I have read several c e r t i f i c a t e  dispute MR. MELSON: 

cases and cases, I am j u s t  not reca l l i ng  tha t  one. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  any 

cases where the Commission has acted on a c e r t i f i c a t e  

appl icat ion and the c i t y  or county d i d  not par t i c ipa te  and the 

Commission process went t o  court and the court decision had the 

e f f e c t  o f  undoing what the PSC ordered or approved? 

MR. MELSON: The one I am most f a m i l i a r  w i th  i s  Lake 

U t i  1 i t y  Services. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's it. I had the wrong - - 
MR. MELSON: And the court d i d  not undo what the 

Commission had done. There was a c i t y  tha t  had designated some 

t e r r i t o r y  as c i t y  ter r i tory  t o  be served. Lake U t i l i t y  - -  i n  

fact ,  they d i d  not serve when a request was made. The u t i l i t y  

came t o  the Commission, the county intervened i n  the case. The 
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:ounty i n  almost deja vu withdrew p r i o r  t o  the hearing. The 

:ommission granted the c e r t i f i c a t e  t o  Lake U t i l i t y  Services and 

the par t ies ended up i n  c i r c u i t  court. 

And the court said the cont ro l l ing  r u l e  i s  he who had 

the f i r s t  r i g h t  t o  serve wins. The c i t y  had the f i r s t  r i g h t  t o  

serve, but there i s  a caveat t o  that .  When the time comes t o  

serve you have got t o  be there t o  do it. You're not there t o  do 

it, so Lake U t i l i t y  Service wins. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. By analogy, could what the 

3 t y  o f  A l i f e a  d i d  - -  o r  was it the county t h a t  designated the 

zertain area t o  serve, i s  t ha t  analogous t o  S t .  Johns County's 

2xc1 usive service t e r r i t o r y ?  

MR. MELSON: I th ink  i t  i s  exactly. I th ink  i f  you 

grant us a c e r t i f i c a t e ,  as we th ink  we w i l l  demonstrate you 

ought t o  do, the county may very well move a t  some point  t o  

enjoin us from construction. We w i l l  end up i n  c i r c u i t  court. 

The question the judge w i l l  face i s  who had the f i r s t  r i g h t  i n  

time and he may or may not f i n d  tha t  resolut ion i s  su f f i c i en t  

and counts as f i r s t  i n  time. But assuming he does, the question 

i s  can they serve. And i f  they were here and i f  we were t r y i n g  

that  case, we would po in t  out t o  you tha t  t h e i r  ex is t ing  

f a c i l i t i e s  end a t  World Golf Vi l lage. 

They propose t o  extend l i n e s  across International Golf 

Parkway up U S - 1  r ight -of -way i n  which there i s  no room for 
additional l ines,  and i n t o  the town center area o f  the 
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And there are a number o f  Commission orders, and 

uded on the o f f i c i a l  recognit ion l i s t ,  which says 

there i s  no dupl icat ion or  competition unless there i s  an 

ex is t ing  system, and under those orders a system tha t  i s  15 mile: 

away i s n ' t  an ex is t ing  system f o r  purposes o f  competition. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Do you have a witness tha t  would 

be able t o  t e l l  us that ,  tha t  would be able t o  t e s t i f y  as t o  

what St. Johns County i s  able t o  serve? 

MR. MELSON: We f i l e d  addit ional rebut ta l  testimony o f  

M r .  Doug M i l l e r  t o  the county's testimony, t h a t  l a y s  out what we 

saw as the deficiencies for the county's plan o f  service. 

Although I had not thought we would o f f e r  t ha t  w i th  the county 

not here, i f  you want t o  e i ther  see tha t  testimony o r  hear it, 

M r .  M i l l e r  i s  prepared t o  do that .  

analysis o f  the county's plan o f  service. 

He has done a thorough 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A1 1 r i gh t .  Just two more 

questions. 

would be managed by JEA? 

I n  your opening statement you said tha t  the u t i l i t y  

MR. MELSON: Correct. There w i l l  be a - -  there i s  a 

s i  ngl e agreement f o r  whol esal e service operati  ons, management, 

and maintenance under whi ch JEA provides the whol esal e servi ce 

and as agent for NUC handles the day-to-day operations and 

maintenance . 
COMMISSIONER JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  And i s n ' t  there a 

s ta tutory  exemption fo r  u t i 1  i t i e s  t h a t  are managed by 
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jovernmental en t i  t i es?  

MR. MELSON: If you say so. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. 

MR. MELSON: There very we1 1 may be, Commi ssioner . 
COMMISSIONER JABER: That j u s t  sets up the stage fo r  

an issue I would l i k e  br iefed, I think.  But Intercoastal 

J t i l i t i e s '  decision a t  S t .  Johns County, i s  t ha t  i n  the record 

anywhere? 

MR. MELSON: Yes. The order o f  the - -  the prel iminary 

order o f  the water and sewer author i ty  and the f ina l  order o f  

the S t .  Johns County Commission are on the o f f i c i a l  recognit ion 

l i s t ,  and I believe there are ac tua l l y  also copies o f  those 

attached t o  some o f  M r .  Doug M i l l e r ' s  testimony. I have t o  be 

careful , we have go two Mr. Mi l l e rs  i n  t h i s  case. M r .  Doug 

M i l l e r  i s  an engineer f o r  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, M r .  Jim 

M i l l e r  i s  an engineer f o r  Intercoastal ,  and they are not 

re1 ated. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A1 1 r i g h t  . Commi ssioners, we 

could cer ta in ly  discuss t h i s  a f te r  a1 1 the opening statements 

are completed, but I th ink  I would l i k e  t o  ask tha t  an issue be 

briefed. And, M r .  Chairman, whatever your pleasure i s  as t o  the 

t iming o f  iden t i f y ing  tha t  issue. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why don ' t  we go ahead and complete 

the opening statements and then come back t o  that. That w i l l  be 

f ine.  Mr. Hoffman, your opening statement. 
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MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. JEA i s  the 

contract provider f o r  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation i n  t h i s  case 

and supports Nocatee's application. JEA opposes Intercoastal ' s 

appl icat ion. 

If Nocatee prevai 1 s i n  t h i  s case, water, wastewater, 

and reuse services fo r  the Nocatee development w i  11 be integrate( 

i n t o  J E A ' s  large regional system. JEA has over 180,000 water 

connections, thousands o f  miles o f  transmission l ines ,  and large 

regional water and wastewater plants. JEA current ly  has water 

and wastewater l i n e s  tha t  are i n  very close proximity t o  the 

Nocatee development. 

i n t o  those l i n e s  and integrate Nocatee i n t o  JEA's regional 

network. 

I t  w i l l  be a simple matter f o r  JEA t o  t i e  

Such service w i l l  el iminate the need f o r  new water 

we1 1 s w i  t h i  n the Nocatee devel opment , which i s important because 
the Nocatee development i s  located i n  a p r i o r i t y  water use 

caution area. I t  w i l l  a l s o  enable JEA t o  more f u l l y  u t i l i z e  the 

ex is t ing capacity i n  i t s  current f a c i l i t i e s .  Because o f  i t s  s i n  

an longevity, JEA i s  r e a l l y  i n  a unique pos i t ion  t o  ass is t  the 

developer i n  meeting i t s  ambitious and what we believe t o  be 

1 audabl e envi ronmental goal s 

Through i t s  contract w i th  JEA, Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporati on has been ab1 e t o  secure a 1 ong- term commitment f o r  

bulk services as well  as operations and maintenance from one o f  

the largest and most experienced prov ders i n  the state, JEA. 
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This arrangement is not only cost-effective, it will help ensure 
1 ong- term rate stabi 1 i ty with the best possi bl e service. 

Now let's talk about Intercoastal Intercoastal i s  in 
a small portion of St. Johns County with a service area of 
approximately 5,000 acres, all of which, as Mr. Melson explained 
is currently east of the Intracoastal Waterway. 
wastewater treatment plant, a plant that has been the subject of 
continued controversy, customer compl aints, and 1 awsui t s  And i 

also has two water plants. 

It has one 

A 

controversy 
and service 
approxi mate 

though Intercoastal has been a consistent source of 
and customer compl aints for its existing customers 
area, it now seeks from you a certificate t o  serve 
y 25,000 acres, roughly five times its current size. 

The entire requested area is west of the Intracoastal Waterway, 
which significantly limits Intercoastal's service options. 

The Nocatee DRI  alone within the requested territory 
projects a build-out that is more than five times the size of th 
current Intercoastal facil ities. Intercoastal does not have the 
ability to serve the Nocatee development from its existing 
facilities. 
the west side of the Intracoastal. 
Intercoastal will integrate the new facilities that it says it 
will build with its existing facilities east o f  the Intracoastal 
and it is not clear how Intercoastal will meet its obligations t 
its existing customers through the new facilities that they say 

It will need t o  construct entirely new facilities o 

It is not clear how 
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they are going t o  bu i ld .  

reuse w i l l  be provided t o  the Sawgrass Country Club. 

I n  par t i cu la r ,  i t  i s  not clear how 

JEA, on the other hand, has the capacity i n  p l  ace 

today, today t o  serve phase one o f  the Nocatee D R I  consistent 

with the development orders t h a t  Mr. Melson discussed tha t  have 

been issued by S t .  Johns County and the City o f  Jacksonvil le and 

consistent w i th  Nocatee's plan o f  development. JEA has the 

a b i l i t y  t o  meet the anticipated growth o f  the Nocatee development 

wi th in  the framework o f  JEA's current plans f o r  expansion o f  

water supply and wastewater treatment fac i  1 i t i e s .  

I n  the summer o f  1999, extensive hearings were held 

before the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Author i ty.  Mr. 

Melson mentioned these. Those hearings were w i t h  respect t o  

Intercoastal ' S  appl icat ion tha t  was pending a t  t h a t  time before 

tha t  author i ty t o  serve much o f  th is .  very same t e r r i t o r y ,  

including Nocatee i n  S t .  Johns County. I n  S t .  Johns County only. 

A l l  o f  the various plans tha t  were proposed by Intercoastal i n  

tha t  case were determined t o  be inadequate. They have now come 

up w i th  a new plan o f  service f o r  t h i s  case, and tha t  plan i s  

also inadequate. I f  f o r  no other reason i t  does not comply wi th  

the terms o f  the development orders fo r  the Nocatee development. 

Now, Intercoastal w i l l  argue i n  t h i s  case tha t  the 

development orders can be changed, but tha t  i s  pure speculation. 

Perhaps wishful th ink ing on t h e i r  part .  Unless and u n t i l  those 

development records are changed, there i s  no need f o r  the servicc 
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proposed by Intercoastal because Intercoastal cannot meet the 

service needs fo r  the development as approved i n  those 

development orders. 

I n  other words, Intercoastal i s  essent ia l ly  asking you 

t o  overlook the development orders. 

devel opment orders, there i s no demonstrated need fo r  service. 

So you can ' t  overlook the development orders and you must 

recognize the fac t  t ha t  In tercoasta l 's  plan o f  service does not 

comply w i th  the devel opment orders . 

I f  you overlook the 

Now, Intercoastal w i l l  claim t h a t  i t  can provide the  

best service t o  the requested t e r r i t o r y ,  but you w i l l  hear 

testimony from t h e i r  customers. Their customers don ' t  bel ieve 

it. Their only hope i s  t ha t  Intercoastal can get i t s  ex is t ing  

house i n  order. We had the hearing two years ago before the S t .  

Johns County Water and Sewer Authority. That author i ty  d i d n ' t  

bel ieve tha t  Intercoastal could serve the Nocatee DRI  i n  S t .  

Juhns County and nei ther d i d  the S t .  Johns County Board o f  Count: 

Commissioners. And not surpr is ingly,  the developers i n  t h i s  cas( 

don ' t  bel ieve it e i ther .  

What t h i s  case is  r e a l l y  about i n  terms o f  the 

Intercoastal appl icat ion i s  an attempt t o  d r ive  up the pr ice  for 
the sale o f  the u t i l i t y .  M r .  James, who i s  the  President o f  

Intercoastal , and h is  partners have purchased or  devel oped some 

25 u t i l i t i e s  over the years and they sold a l l  but two o f  them. 

M r .  James has been pursuing the sale o f  Intercoastal on a 
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zontinuous basis since those hearings were held before the S t .  

Johns County Water and Sewer Author i ty i n  1999, and perhaps 

before that  t ime. 

As recent ly as Apr i l  24th o f  t h i s  year, S t .  Johns 

Lounty approved an o f fe r  t o  purchase Intercoastal and that  

purchase pr ice w i l l  undoubtedly be driven higher i f  

Intercoastal 's  appl icat ion i s  granted i n  t h i s  proceeding. What 1 

am saying t o  you i s  tha t  essent ia l ly  what Intercoastal 's  

appl icat ion i s  about i n  t h i s  case i s  nothing more than a land 

grab t o  increase the possible sales pr ice fo r  a u t i l i t y  that  doe: 

not current ly have the f a c i l i t i e s  t o  provide the needed service 

i n  compliance with those development orders tha t  I mentioned. 

M r .  Melson b r i e f l y  touched on, and I would l i k e  t o  t a l l  

a l i t t l e  b i t  more about an issue that  has been raised i n  t h i s  

case, and that  i s  whether Intercoastal 's  appl icat ion t o  serve tht 

S t .  Johns County piece o f  t h e i r  appl icat ion should be denied 

based upon p r i  nci p l  es o f  col 7 ateral estoppel or admi n i  s t r a t i v e  

f i n a l i t y .  

As I mentioned, Intercoastal i s  current ly  regulated by 

the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Author i ty and u l t imate ly  by 

the S t .  Johns County Board o f  County Commissioners. 

Intercoastal f i l e d  an appl icat ion i n  a preemptive e f f o r t  t o  seek 

c e r t i f i c a t i o n  t o  provide services i n  northern S t .  Johns County, 

including a large port ion o f  the territory tha t  they seek before 

you today. 

I n  1999, 
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A t  some point  p r i o r  t o  the hearing on tha t  appl icat ion, 

a publ ic announcement o f  the Nocatee development was made. A t  

tha t  po int  i t  became clear tha t  the Nocatee development would 

include t e r r i t o r y  i n  both Duval and S t .  Johns County. A t  t ha t  

point  Intercoastal could have and should have withdrawn i t s  

appl icat ion before the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Authorit: 

and f i  ed the application, the cross-county appl icat ion tha t  i s  

before you today. 

But Intercoastal d i d  not abandon i t s  appl icat ion w i th  

the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Authority. Instead, 

Intercoastal took the part ies,  the Authority, and the County 

Commission through s i x  days o f  evident iary hearings and f o l  low-uf 

proceedings, which u l t imate ly  resul ted i n  the denial o f  

Intercoastal ' s  appl icat ion. Af ter  t h a t  appl icat ion was denied b: 

the county, Intercoastal,  as you .know, f i l e d  the application thal 

i s  before you today i n  which i t  seeks t o  use the Commission's 
j u r i s d i c t i o n  over mult i-county u t i l i t i e s  as a basis fo r  i t s  

the apple on the S t ,  so-called, what I w i l l  c a l l  a second b i t e  a t  

Johns County piece. 

As I mentioned before, Intercoasta 

1999 S t .  Johns County case tha t  the Nocatee 

knew dur i ng the 

eve1 opment spanned 

two counties, but  Intercoastal did not withdraw tha t  case. It 

kept going a t  the ul t imate expense o f  i t s  customers. I n  the 

meantime, Intercoastal ' s  customers are saddled wi th  the expense 

o f  t h i s  case. Perhaps t h i s  explains the leve l  o f  discontent thal 
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Intercoastal I s exi s t ing  customers have had w i th  t h i s  u t i  1 i ty.  

But there are legal ramif icat ions t o  t h e i r  action, as 

de l l .  The JEA's pos i t ion i n  t h i s  case i s  tha t  the legal 

p r inc ip le  o f  co l la te ra l  estoppel and administrative f i n a l i t y  

precludes In tercoasta l 's  second t r y  a t  the S t .  Johns County 

port ion o f  t h i s  appl icat ion. I n  the S t .  Johns County proceeding 

i n  1999, DDI ,  who i s  the developer o f  Nocatee, Intercoastal , and 

JEA part ic ipated throughout those proceedings. 

I n  denying Intercoastal I s  appl icat ion, the Water and 

Sewer Authority, and u l t imate ly  the county, found numerous 

deficiencies i n  Intercoastal 3 various plans f o r  service. The 

author i ty  i n  the county a1 so acknowl edged the devel oper ' s p l  ans 

t o  serve Nocatee through bulk arrangements wi th  JEA and made 

speci f i c f i ndi ngs as t o  JEA' s abi 1 i t y  t o  provide who1 esal e 

service t o  Nocatee together w i th  the benef i ts o f  service from 

JEA 

Now, Intercoastal w i l l  say i n  t h i s  case tha t  we now 

have another - -  tha t  they have another new plan o f  service which 

they would l i k e  t o  present before you i n  t h i s  case. And t h a t  

r e a l l y  raises the ul t imate legal issue before you. Our posi t ion 

i s  t ha t  Intercoastal cannot under the legal pr inc ip les tha t  I 

have discussed, seek the same r e l i e f  t ha t  i t  sought before S t .  

Johns County by presenting a new theoret ical  plan o f  service. 

The r e l i e f  t ha t  Intercoastal seeks, a t  l e a s t  t o  the extent 

Intercoastal seeks a c e r t i f i c a t e  f o r  substant ia l ly  the same 
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t e r r i t o r y  i n  S t .  Johns County tha t  i t  sought before the Water an( 

Sewer Author i ty a f te r  a f u l l  evidentiary hearing on the merits, 

Should be denied on the legal p r i nc ip le  o f  co l l a te ra l  estoppel 

I n  add t i on ,  the recognit ion by the county and the 

w t h o r i t y  o f  the benefi ts o f  Nocatee's plan t o  obtain wholesale 

service from JEA should not be second-guessed by t h i s  Commission 

i n  t h i  s proceedi ng . To concl ude, Commi ssi  oners , we bel ieve tha t  

locatee going back t o  the 1999 case and through t h i s  case has 

anticipated a wholesale arrangement w i th  JEA as the most viable 

plan o f  service f o r  i t s  e n t i r e  development. Only JEA has the 

capacity t o  meet the needs o f  t h i s  large development without 

unduly stressing the environment. 

The wholesale service required by Nocatee can eas i l y  bt 

i ncorporated i nto JEA' s 1 arge reg i  onal i zed system. Thi s 

arrangement i s  the most e f f i c i e n t ,  cost -ef fect ive,  and 

environmental l y  sound approach f o r  the provision o f  water, 

Nastewater , and reuse services i n  the Nocatee devel opment . 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you, M r .  Hoffman. 

M r .  Korn, d i d  you have an opening statement? 

MR. KORN: Mr. Chairman, i t  was my understant ing t r i a t  

I thought M r .  Wharton was going t o  - -  since he has a c e r t i f i c a t e  

application, he was going t o  go and then I was going t o  be the 

1 a s t  presenting the openi ng statement. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That 's f ine.  You were aligned i n  
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ipposit ion, so I thought - -  
MR. KORN: And t h a t ' s  f ine .  I j u s t  wanted t o  po int  

)ut t h a t  tha t  was one o f  the things we discussed a t  the 

rehear ing. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Does t h a t  work f o r  you, Mr. Wharton? 

MR. WHARTON: It ce r ta in l y  i s  a correct representation 

D f  the conversation we had a t  the prehearing conference. 

going t o  ask once again, though, tha t  I be allowed rather than 

being sandwiched i n .  

step. 

I was 

I mean, these three par t ies are i n  lock 

I th ink  tha t  i s  obvious t o  you now. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, unless you are opposed t o  

going now, you can go ahead and do your statement. 

MR. KORN: That's f ine.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 

d i d n ' t  want t o  be going out o f  turn.  Thank you. 

I w i l l  t r y  t o  be as b r i e f  as I can because our 

in terests  i n  t h i s  case are somewhat more l i m i t e d  than some o f  thi 

other applicants tha t  are before you today. The Sawgrass 

Association i s  the largest s ingle group o f  customers tha t  

current ly  are served by Intercoastal U t i l  i t i e s .  We serve 

approximate1 y 1,500 property owners i n  the Sawgrass devel opment 

which i s  located east o f  the Intracoastal Waterway, and we are 

the neighbors t o  the Intercoastal U t i l  i t i e s  wastewater treatment 

f a c i l i t y ,  which has grown over the years from a 250,000-gallon 

per day plant t o  a 1,500,000-gallon per day capacity plant.  

That plant,  as the evidence w i l l  show, has generated 
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iubstantial odors both i n  the past and i n  the fu ture despite 

? f f o r t s  by the u t i l i t y  t o  attempt t o  remedy them. As I say, we 

we the la rges t  group o f  ex is t ing  customers and we oppose the 

2xpansion o f  Intercoastal i n t o  the t e r r i t o r y  which i s  referred tc 

iere as Nocatee, but those lands tha t  are located west o f  the 

[ntracoastal Waterway. 

You have already heard discussion about the 1999 

iroceedings tha t  were held i n  S t .  Johns County before t h e i r  water 

md sewer authority. And a t  t ha t  time there was s ign i f i can t  

Pi scussi on about Intercoastal ' s proposed p l  an o f  service f o r  thal 

l o r t i o n  o f  the c e r t i f i c a t e d  area tha t  l i e s  w i th in  St. Johns 

Zounty which we are now here on again today. 

We would submit tha t  i t  would be a f a i r  statement t o  

say tha t  Intercoastal 's  plan o f  service changed a t  cer ta in  point! 

throughout tha t  s i x  days o f  hearing. Intercoastal w i l l  t e l l  you 

that the reason the plan o f  service changed i s  because they were 

j us t  a t  tha t  point  i n  time learning about the extent and 

ramif icat ions o f  the Nocatee development, and therefore were 

required t o  adjust t h e i r  plan o f  service as they learned about 

dhat exactly was going t o  be needed i n  the Nocatee development 

i t s e l  f . 
One o f  the things tha t  had been discussed by 

Intercoastal previously was the p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  cer ta in  service 

was going t o  be t i e d  between i t s  ex is t ing  east t e r r i t o r y  w i th  it: 

single plant located on our doorstep a t  Sawgrass and the area no\ 
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i n  the western par t  o f  the t e r r i t o r y .  And, i n  fac t ,  one o f  the 

reasons tha t  Sawgrass intervened i n  t h i s  docket was t o  express 

our extreme concern about any potent ia l  l inkage o r  service o f  

Nocatee from the ex is t ing  f a c i l i t i e s ,  the ex is t ing  plants. 

We are pleased t o  say tha t  one th ing  Intercoastal has 

done i n  t h e i r  changed plan o f  service i s  t o  represent tha t  there 

would be no service o f  t h e i r  proposed t e r r i t o r y  - - we are coming 

back t o  our p lant ,  the p lant  tha t  i s  our neighbor. And tha t  

cer ta in ly  i s  a helpful sign. And, again, one o f  the reasons thal 

we are here i n  t h i s  docket i s  t o  protect  the qua l i t y  o f  l i f e  thal 

the residents o f  Sawgrass have t o  minimize the odors and t o  

express t o  t h i s  body the continuing concerns which Intercoastal ' !  

customers have about the operations o f  the u t i l i t y .  

You w i  11 hear testimony concerning Intercoastal ' s  

technical abi 1 i ty. You w i  11 hear testimony about Intercoastal ' s 

responsiveness w i th  respect t o  repai r , mai ntenance and the 1 i ke. 

As previously suggested, you w i l l  hear testimony concerning the 

issues o f  odor tha t  continue t o  plague t h i s  p lan t  and the fo l ks  

tha t  l i v e  around i t  and work near it and go t o  school near it. 

You w i l l  hear testimony about the concerns tha t  the 

Sawgrass Association has expressed t o  Intercoastal on an on-goin! 

basis and you w i l l  hear about a u t i l i t y  service agreement tha t  

exists between the par t ies when Intercoastal f i r s t  became the 

provider o f  water  and wastewater service back i n  1983, which we 

believe has a s ign i f i can t  bearing on the re la t ionship o f  the 
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part ies. 

You w i l l  also hear about concerns tha t  have been 

expressed a t  the S t .  Johns County leve l  about Intercoastal ' s 

rates. Intercoastal w i l l  have you bel ieve tha t  the reason we 

have intervened i n  t h i s  docket i s  because we were mobilized abou 

t h e i r  very, very extensive and large r a t e  increase which was 

approved by the county some years ago. And we would submit tha t  

the evidence i s  going t o  show t h a t  while rates are ce r ta in l y  o f  

concern, i n  fac t ,  such a concern tha t  the S t .  Johns County Water 

and Sewer Author i ty i s  current ly  undergoing an audit o f  

Intercoastal ' s  books and records t o  determine the accuracy and 

adequacy o f  t h e i r  rates. We bel ieve tha t  i t  i s  t h e i r  operationa 

and technical aspects as I have suggested already tha t  w i l l  be 

the deciding factor i n  determining whether Intercoastal can be a 

good neighbor i n  i t s  western proposed area. And we suggest that  

past performance i s  of ten a s ign i f i can t  indicator o f  fu ture 

performance. 

These concerns are rea l ,  they are not hypothetical. 

They are concerns tha t  the fo lks  a t  Sawgrass l i v e  w i th  on a 

regular basis, especial ly when there are other opportunities and 

other a1 ternatives f o r  service, we believe, the Sawgrass, t ha t  

the Intercoastal appl icat ion ought t o  be rejected. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. Mr. Wharton. 

MR. WHARTON: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. I hope I won't 
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need it, but I hope tha t  i f  I do you w i l l  g ive me a l i t t l e  

l a t i t u d e  not only because some o f  the statements ran over ten 

minutes, but because I am responding t o  qu i te  a b i t .  

cer ta in ly  not going t o  spend my opening statement responding t o  

motions f o r  the appl icat ion o f  res judicata or co l la te ra l  

estoppel tha t  have never been f i l e d ,  but I do want t o  say a few 

words about that .  

I am 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I assume your request for b r i e f  

l a t i t u d e  was that ,  and I th ink  i t  i s  f a i r  t o  grant a b r i e f  

la t i tude .  

MR. WHARTON: And I th ink  I can get it i n  ten minutes 

anyway. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And as t o  scope, I can agree tha t  we 

should stay f a i r l y  narrow t o  the scope. And we w i l l  do t ha t  

w i th  witness testimony, I can assure you. 

MR. WHARTON : Okay. You know, Commi ssi  oner Deason 

during the prehearing conference, t h i s  same subject was raised 

and he p re t t y  much said, wel l ,  t h i s  i s  something tha t  should 

have come before now. Why do you th ink  you are hearing i t  i n  

opening statement a f t e r  22 months? I w i l l  t e l l  you why. I 

would have knocked t h a t  motion over the w a l l .  I t ' s  r id iculous. 

Not only could I t r y  t h i s  appl icat ion i n  f ron t  o f  you, I could 

t r y  i t  i n  f ron t  o f  S t .  Johns County again. 

t e r r i t o r y ,  d i f f e r e n t  part ies,  d i f f e ren t  costs, d i f f e r e n t  plan o f  

service. Nothing was known about Nocatee a t  the time. They 

It i s  a d i f f e ren t  
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weren ' t appl y i  ng your r u l  es , they weren ' t appl y i  ng your 

statutes. They weren ' t appl y i  ng your precedence . 
But l e t  me j u s t  t e l l  you one other th ing.  

t h i s  hearing you are back i n  your homes i n  Tallahassee and you 

have t o l d  the Commission s t a f f  t o  hear t h i s  hearing and then t o  

issue a recommendation t o  you and you w i l l  make a f i n a l  order. 

And s i t t i n g  over there i s  the PSC u t i l i t y  t ha t  you own and 

control . That i s  what happened t o  me i n  S t .  Johns County. 

An opponent t o  the appl icat ion who cross-examined the 

Imagine i n  

witnesses, put on testimony, f i l e d  a p e t i t i o n  saying i t  should be 

denied, was the S t .  Johns County U t i l i t y  Department. And they 

claim they weren't S t .  Johns County. They were the S t .  Johns 

County U t i l i t y  Department, and ye t  they admitted i n  testimony 

that,  wel l ,  they had been ordered t o  be there by the Board o f  

County Commi s s i  oners. 

When I then said, wel l ,  t h i s  author i ty  t ha t  I'm t r y i n g  

t h i s  case i n  f ron t  o f  i s  the Board o f  County Commissioners, the 

count attorney admitted, yes, t ha t  i s  the a l t e r  ego o f  the Board 

o f  County Commissioners. When I then said, wel l ,  I th ink  you 

need t o  recuse yourself, t ha t  motion was denied. So tha t  i s  what 

happened in f r on t  o f  S t *  Johns County. The judge was the county 

and the opponent was the county. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: M r .  Wharton, he1 p me understand 

that.  The water and sewer board i s  who you brought your case i n  

f ron t  o f .  They make a recommendation t o  the Board o f  County 
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Commissioners? 

MR. WHARTON: Correct. Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And they recommended tha t  your 
appl i c a t i  on be denied? 

MR. WHARTON: Correct . 
COMMISSIONER JABER: The board u l t imate ly  agreed. 

MR. WHARTON: And tha t  the p e t i t i o n  o f  the S t .  Johns 

County U t i  1 i t y  Department be granted, tha t  the appl i c a t i  on 

should be denied. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: O f  who? 

MR. WHARTON: O f  the S t .  Johns County U t i l i t y  

Department, who was the opponent i n  the case. 

Commissioners, the evidence i n  t h i s  case w i l l  prove 

tha t  Intercoastal i s  a we1 1 - run and we1 1 -operated u t i  1 i t y  tha t  

has provided reuse before JEA decided tha t  i t  was a good idea. 

It i s  a u t i l i t y  whose rates and connection fees are reasonable bj 

comparison t o  other u t i l i t i e s  i n  the area, p a r t i c u l a r l y  S t .  John: 

County. The kind o f  subsidy o f  rates tha t  you have heard about 

i s  something tha t  only occurs f o r  a short time. Our rates w i l l  

become very competitive w i th  these rates a f te r  t ha t  short time 

even i f  we are not allowed t o  put i n  the new testimony. 

This i s  a u t i l i t y  who because o f  i t s  proximity t o  the 

sea and the Intracoastal Waterway cannot grow any more without ar 

extension o f  i t s  t e r r i t o r y  and cannot rea l i ze  the economies o f  

scale tha t  tha t  k ind o f  growth provides. I t  i s  a u t i l i t y  which 
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has a vast amount o f  experience i n  both u t i l i t y  and development. 

Intercoastal and i t s  pr inc ipa ls ,  many o f  whom have over 40 years 

o f  experience i n  the u t i l i t y  business, has more experience i n  

terms o f  those indiv iduals than cer ta in ly  any o f  our c l i en ts  

throughout the years o r  any other u t i l i t y  t ha t  I am aware o f .  

The evidence w i l l  show tha t  t h i s  i s  an area tha t  

Intercoastal has proposed t o  serve f o r  a long time. 

area whose project ions were put i n t o  the 20/20 water plan a long 

time also, and also tha t  t h i s  appl icat ion i s  a log ica l  extension 

o f  i t s  ex is t ing  service area. The evidence w i l l  show tha t  

Intercoastal ' s shareholders who do have the wherewithal t o  

effectuate Intercoastal ' s  appl icat ion are completely committed t c  

t h i s  pro ject  on a going-forward basis. And the evidence w i l l  

show tha t  the plan o f  service i s  reasonable and achievable. 

It i s  an 

We1 1, you are going t o  hear a l o t  about the developmenl 

order in t h i s  case, and you are j u s t  going t o  have t o  w a i t  u n t i l  

you have heard i t  a l l .  Because the evidence w i l l  show the 

development order process was manipulated by t h i s  land owner so 

tha t  the requirements o f  the development f i t  i n t o  t h e i r  plan o f  

service. This development order has been pending the whole time 

t h i s  appl icat ion has been pending. And what the evidence w i l l  

show i s  tha t  the i n i t i a l  testimony i n  t h i s  case was only tha t  we 

have t h i s  environmental e th i c  and tha t  we won't use groundwater 

f o r  reuse. 

groundwater study done t h a t  showed there i s  a substantial amount 

I n  po int  o f  fact ,  t h i s  developer went and had a 
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o f  high qua7 i t y  groundwater under the devel opment . 
Well, l i k e  I say, the d i r e c t  testimony i s  t ha t  we have 

an environmental e th ic  o f  we won't use the groundwater f o r  reuse 

de l l ,  tha t  suddenly and slowly changed i n t o  we have now t o l d  

these agencies we won't have any on -s i t e  plants. And, i n  fact ,  

long a f t e r  t h i s  case had been going on, long a f t e r  t ha t  

appl icat ion had been pending, they f i n a l l y  made tha t  c lear j u s t  

before we almost went t o  hearing l a s t  August i n  July, and the 

testimony was, w e l l ,  the agencies were s t i l l  confused so we came 

r i g h t  out and said it, no on -s i t e  f a c i l i t y .  

I n  po int  o f  fact ,  these applications f o r  development 

approval, which were f i l e d  i n  February o f  2000 and which had beer 

pending u n t i l  about s i x  weeks ago a t  the same time t h i s  case was 

never mentioned t h i s  case. They never mentioned the word 

Intercoastal a t  leas t  i n  the representations o f  t h i s  developer. 

Not once. And the testimony, the expert testimony not from my 

expert, from the s t a f f ' s  expert, w i l l  be that ,  wel l ,  i f  they had 

put t ha t  i n  there i t  would have been taken i n t o  consideration. 

I f  we would have known tha t  t h i s  f i g h t  was going on, i f  we would 

have known there were other options. And also we j u s t  accepted 

what they said i n  t h e i r  appl icat ion f o r  development approval 

about no on-s i te  f a c i l i t y .  

The testimony i s  also going t o  be tha t  tha t  i s  probabl: 

not a substantial deviation even t o  change it. So t o  the extent 

the developer i s  going t o  f a l l  on the sword, i t ' s  a sword o f  
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;heir own making. I t ' s  something tha t  while t h i s  case has been 

joing on they put i n t o  the appl icat ion because i t  f i t s  w i th  the 

service wi th  JEA. 

You are going t o  hear a l o t ,  too, about how 

[ntercoastal may not be able t o  meet these reuse demands. And 

mderstand, these reuse demands a re  not t ha t  one house i s  hooked 

~ p ,  you then have 250 gallons o f  reuse available. They are b i g  

i n  the f i r s t  day. You are going t o  hear tha t  the requirements 

for the go l f  course f igures are large. They are conservative, 

j u t  the real po int  i s  there i s  going t o  be reuse avai lable t o  

th i  s devel opment . 
F i r s t  o f  a l l  Intercoastal has proposed a plan of 

service tha t  w i l l  provide tha t  reuse. Secondly, you are going tc 

hear again and again tha t  JEA, who doesn't have any reuse now, i: 

running t h e i r  f i r s t  reuse 1 ine down by the development . We1 1 , 

JEA needs t o  get r i d  o f  t ha t  reuse. They are dumping 6 m i l l i o n  

gallons approximately a day i n t o  the S t .  Johns River now from tht 

Yandarin plant.  And i f  intercoastal i s  given the c e r t i f i c a t e  i n  

a worst-case scenario JEA has already decided they have the 

capacity, they want t o  get r i d  o f  the reuse. They are j u s t  goin! 

t o  be able t o  run a l i n e  out there and JEA could provide the 

reuse t o  the development. So e i ther  under Intercoastal ' s  plan 0- 

service or under a f a i l  -safe tha t  reuse i s  there. 

JEA has no incentive t o  say, w e l l ,  we would have sold 

i t  t o  NUC, but  not t o  you. Do you th ink  they r e a l l y  care who i s  
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reuse. The agencies have been on them t o  get r i d  o f  t h e i r  reuse 

and they are dumping mi l l ions  o f  gallons a day now from tha t  

exact plan i n t o  the S t .  Johns River. The reuse i s  going t o  be 

avai lable f o r  t h i s  development cer ta in ly .  

I believe tha t  one th ing  tha t  i s  going t o  become clear 

once a l l  the evidence i n  t h i s  proceeding i s  heard i s  tha t  there 

i s  going t o  be one o f  three e n t i t i e s  t h a t  i s  going t o  provide 

service t o  t h i s  development, a t  leas t  i n  S t .  Johns County. And 

tha t  i s  going t o  be S t .  Johns County, t ha t  i s  going t o  be 

Intercoastal,  or  tha t  i s  going t o  be JEA. NUC won't own the 

plants, JEA w i l l  own the plants. NUC won't do the operations, 

NUC won't do the b i l l i n g ,  NUC won't answer the phone when a 

customer compl a i  ns . 
And guess what, the b i g  trunks tha t  run through the 

middle o f  the development fo r  reuse, water, and wastewater are 

going t o  be owned by JEA. And not only tha t  they are going t o  bt 

over-sized and they are going t o  come out the east side o f  the 

development. Those are known as the j o i n t  projects, and tha t  i s  

so tha t  JEA can serve parts unknown t o  the east side o f  the 

development where you have j u s t  heard argument there i s  no need 

fo r  service. And most o f  the res t  o f  the system i s  going t o  be 
contributed by developers . 

Not only tha t ,  JEA has a r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  refusal i f  

anyone ever t r i e s  t o  buy o r  condemn tha t  par t i cu la r  u t i l i t y .  Anr 
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they have t e s t i f i e d  i n  deposition, wel l ,  guess what, i f  someone 

l i k e  S t .  Johns County ends up w i th  tha t  par t  o f  the u t i l i t y  i n  

S t .  Johns County, we reserve the r i g h t  t o  tu rn  o f f  the spigot. 

So what do you th ink someone i s  going t o  o f fe r  f o r  t h a t  u t i l i t y  

that doesn't have i t s  own plants? Not $1.98. And t h a t  means i f  

JEA o f fe rs  $1.99, i t ' s  the i rs .  

They have rigged i t  up where they are going t o  end up 

providing r e t a i l  service. Not only d i d  they make a proposal jus1 

about s i x  weeks ago t o  S t .  Johns County, which had a l l  the 

numbers on there showing them providing r e t a i l  service i n  

Nocatee, S t .  Johns County doesn't want them i n  here. Just l i k e  

Clay County i s  t r y i n g  t o  keep them out o f  Clay County. And you 

are going t o  hear evidence o f  tha t .  

Commissioners, p a r t  o f  what I think you are going t o  

have t o  th ink  about i s  what apparently has dawned on S t .  Johns 

County only recently, and t h a t  i s  the e f fec t  o f  JEA coming i n t o  

northern S t .  Johns County. F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  they have said they 

want t o  buy a l l  the pr iva te  u t i l i t i e s .  To the extent the 

customers are r i l e d  up, besides the fac t  tha t  we had a 1998 ra te  

increase w i th  substantial rates which energized the customers an( 

there i s  nothing wrong w i th  tha t .  But t o  the extent t ha t  the 

customers are involved and we have seen no real  evidence t h i s  

morning tha t  they are, they then spread the word t h a t  i f  JEA buy! 

Intercoastal,  no negotiations l i k e  tha t  a re  going on now, they 

w i l l  take the Ponte Vedra p lan t  out. There i s  a l o t  o f  i f s  i n  
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ietween as we s i t  here today and tha t  happening. 

Well , so you need t o  th ink  again about the Jacksonville 

I l e c t r i c  Author i ty expanding t h i s  service i n t o  S t .  Johns County. 

[hey are not going t o  have the kind o f  regulat ion you provide. 

do matter how benevolent I could s i t  here and t r y  t o  make 

I t i l i t i e s ,  t h i s  i s  the scheme. That u t i l i t i e s  need watchdogs. 

rhere you are going t o  have a pol i t i c a l  e n t i t y  i n  a neighboring 

:ounty providing service t o  indiv iduals i n  a d i f f e r e n t  county anc 

they are j u s t  not going t o  be as p o l i t i c a l  responsive as they 

Mould be i f  those persons were voters i n  Duval County. That i s  

jus t  a fac t .  

Also, JEA has a r i g h t  t o  leve l  a surcharge i n  Duval 

Lounty. And while they w i l l  say they won't do tha t ,  they have 

that r i g h t  and they are going t o  continue t o  have tha t  r i g h t  and 

things change. Understand, JEA i s  going t o  be doing a l l  o f  thesc 

things we have heard about, but  they have sa id very c lea r l y  tha t  

end user i s  not our customer. We w i l l  have one customer and thal 

i s  NUC. 

I believe, and i t  i s  our pos i t ion and I believe tha t  

the evidence w i l l  show tha t  t o  grant the c e r t i f i c a t e  t o  NUC i s  tc 

guarantee tha t  JEA w i l l  provide r e t a i l  t o  the Nocatee 

development. 

a c i r c u i t  court about i t  i n  the future. You are also going t o  

hear from Sawgrass, and what you are going t o  learn i s  tha t  a l l  

o f  these lawsuits tha t  you have heard about are a single lawsuit 

It i s  ce r ta in l y  the guarantee there is  going t o  be 
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It was f i l e d  two years ago and not one th ing  has happened i n  it. 

You are going t o  hear a l o t  about the customers and yet what i s  

f i l e d  i s  the testimony o f  two indiv iduals.  One o f  them i s  not 

even a customer. And we have had no customer testimony today anc 

t h a t  doesn't mean there a ren ' t  customers in Ponte Vedra who wish 

they d i d n ' t  l i v e  r i g h t  next t o  a sewer p lant .  But the evidence 

i s  going t o  show tha t  Intercoastal has gotten a clean b i l l  o f  

health i n  terms o f  tha t  odor. It i s  ce r ta in l y  - -  t h i s  i s  a plant 

tha t  i s  located i n  a res ident ia l  development as sometimes occurs, 

You are going t o  hear testimony tha t  JEA's Mandarin p lant  also i: 

infamous fo r  i t s  odor complaints and the residents around there. 

Some o f  t ha t  i s  j u s t  unavoidable. 

Commissioners, we th ink  the evidence i s  going t o  show 

tha t  t h i s  i s  a log ica l  extension o f  In tercoasta l 's  t e r r i t o r y .  

That NUC i s  exactly as they were described i n  the S t .  Johns 

County testimony tha t  now apparently won't be put on. They are i 

o f  r e t a i l  service by JEA and tha t  the 

should be granted and the applicatior 

strawman f o r  the provision 

appl i ca t i on  o f  Intercoasta 

o f  NUC denied. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Thank you. S t a f f ,  d i d  you have an 

opening statement? Very wel l .  And then t h a t  concludes our 

opening statements. 

We would l i k e  t o  now break f o r  lunch and we w i l l  come 

back i n  an hour. 

understand the customer hearing t h i s  evening i s  t o  s t a r t  a t  7:OO 

It w i l l  be my in ten t  t o  work through - -  I 
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p.m., i s  tha t  correct? So i t  would be my i n t e n t  t o  work through 

u n t i l  approximately 5:30, give us a b r i e f  break fo r  dinner, and 

then come back a t  7:00, i f  tha t  i s  agreeable w i th  everyone. 

MR. WHARTON: I believe the s i t ua t i on  w i th  Mr. 

Forrester means tha t  we ce r ta in l y  w i l l  f i n i s h  w i th in  the three 

days, so I th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  Great. Then we w i l l  be 

back a t  1:30. 

(Lunch recess. 1 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  go back on the record. 

Before we begin w i th  the witnesses, we had agreed t o  reserve a 

question f o r  b r ie f ing .  Commissioner Jaber, do you want t o  pose 

tha t  question and make sure we have a clear understanding o f  it? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Sure. S t a f f  and the par t ies are 

welcome t o  i r o n  out the language, but r e a l l y  what I had i n  mind 

was somethi ng 1 i ke i f the Commi ss i  on approves NUC ' s appl i cation, 

w i l l  the u t i l i t y  be exempt pursuant t o  Section 367.022, Sub 2, 

Flor ida Statutes. For the b r i e f .  This would be - -  
MR. MELSON: Commissioner Jaber, I'm wondering i f  we 

might - -  I would so r t  o f  ask what i s  the e f fec t ,  i f  any, o f  tha t  

section o f  the s tatute on Nocatee's appl icat ion, so tha t  i t  

doesn't presume tha t  you have or  haven't granted a c e r t i f i c a t e .  

Just ask what i s  the e f fec t ,  i f  any. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's f ine, Commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That sounds a l l  r i g h t .  



1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

87 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's f i n e  w i th  me. And then 

the second concern, but I th ink  t h a t  you could probably 

accommodate i t  i n  the b r i e f s  already i s  I would l i k e  t o  have an 

analysis o f  the Lake U t i l i t y  Services versus the City o f  A l i f e a  

case. You know, k ind o f  a b r i e f  o f  here were the facts, here 

was the hol d i  ng . 
MR. MELSON: And, Commission 

s t i l l  be another case. I believe Lake 

City o f  Clermont. I refreshed my reco 

hour, and I ' m  s t i l l  drawing a blank on 

may be an A1 i fea out there. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I t h ink  

Jaber, I th ink  there may 

U t i l i t y  Services i s  the 

l e c t i o n  over the lunch 

A1 i fea, a1 though there 

John Wharton's o f f i c e  

would be able t o  help us out on which case we are  th ink ing 

about. Clermont might be the r i g h t  - - i t  was Clermont. So some 

discussion o f  t h a t  case someplace i n  the b r i e f  would be helpful .  

MR. MELSON: We had intended t o  do t ha t  i n  the 

ex is t ing  issues. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  We are prepared t o  

begin, Mr. Wharton. You have been sworn, correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  

MR. MELSON: Chairman Jacobs, a couple o f  prel iminary 

matters. If I could have the small version o f  t h i s  map tha t  was 

used during the opening marked as Exh ib i t  3. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. We w i l l  mark t h i s  as regional 

map o f  Nocatee U t i  1 i ty '  s proposed service t e r r i t o r y ?  

MR. MELSON: Why don ' t  we just  use - -  we could j u s t  

use the t i t l e  on the map, Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, regional 

map. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Show tha t  marked as Exhib i t  

3 .  

(Exhibi t  3 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

MR. MELSON: I would also l i k e  t o  have marked as 

Composite Exhib i t  4, Nocatee's en t i re  c e r t i f i c a t e  appl icat ion i n  

t h i s  docket, which again was f i l e d  i n  - -  the or ig ina l  and 15 

copies w i th  Records and Reporting. Just so tha t  we are clear 

what i t  consists o f ,  though, there a re  actua l ly  f i v e  d i f f e r e n t  

pieces. There i s  the appl icat ion i t s e l f  f i l e d  June 1 o f  1999; 

there i s  the supplement and amendment t o  the appl icat ion f i l e d  

February 11, 2000; and then there are three L a t e - f i l e d  Exhibi ts 

M, N,  and V ,  each o f  which i s  proof o f  publ icat ion o f  the i n ten t  

t o  apply. 

And i f  we could have tha t  en t i re  f i v e - p a r t  document 

marked as a composite exh ib i t ,  my various witnesses are going t o  

sponsor t h e i r  pieces o f  it and then we w i l l  move f o r  i t s  

admission once a l l  o f  my witnesses are finished. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  t i t l e  t ha t  NUC c e r t i f i c a t e  

appl icat ion w i th  exhibi ts,  and tha t  i s  marked as Composite 

Exhibi t  4. 
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(Composite Exhibi t  4 marked for i dent i  f i cat1 on. ) 

MR. MELSON: And on Exhibi t  3, i f  I could move Exhibi t  

3, the  map, i n t o  the report.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exhibi t  3 i s  

moved i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibi t  3 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

Thereupon, 

was cal led as 

Corporation, 

H. 

a witness on 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Ske 

JAY SKELTON 

behalf o f  Nocatee U t i l i t i e s  

having bl en duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fl 

DIRECT EXAM I NATION 

11 1 ows : 

ton, would you state your name and address 

for the record, please. 

My name i s  H. Jay Skelton. My o f f i c e  i s  4310 Pablo 

Oaks Court, Jacksonvi 11 e, F1 o r i  da. 

A 

Q 
A 

By whom are you employed and i n  what capacity? 

I am employed by DDI  Inc. and Estuary Corporation and 

other Davis re lated corporations, and I am CEO f o r  D D I  and 

Estuary. 

Q 

Corporati on? 

A 

Q 

And what i s  your relat ionship t o  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

I am also president o f  Nocatee Ut i l i t y  Corporation. 

Have you f i l e d  d i rec t  testimony dated February 11, 

2000, consist ing o f  9 pages? 
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A Yes, I have. 

Q 

t e s t  i mony? 

Do you have any changes or  corrections t o  tha t  

A Yes. The address i n  tha t  testimony was l i s t e d  as 

Pablo Oaks Drive, and i t  should be Pablo Oaks Court. 

Q 

A That i s  correct. 

Q 

And tha t  would be on Page 1 a t  Line ll? 

M r .  Skelton, your d i r e c t  testimony was f i l e d  over a 

year ago, and I ' m  going ask you about three speci f ic  questions 

on updates t o  it. A t  Page 7 a t  Lines 1 through 3, you stated 

tha t  on a f a i r  market value basis DDI  had a net worth a t  the 

t i m e  o f  your testimony o f  over $1 b i l l i o n .  Has tha t  changed? 

A Yes, it has. I t  i s  now somewhat over $2 b i l l i o n .  

Q On the same Page 7 a t  Lines 17 through 22, you 

describe a plan t o  enter i n t o  a bulk service arrangement w i th  

JEA. Has tha t  plan subsequently come t o  f r u i t i o n ?  

A Yes, i t  has. We signed an agreement i n  Ju ly  2000. 

MR. MELSON: And, Commissioners, t ha t  agreement w i l l  

be attached l a t e r  as an exh ib i t  t o  M r .  M i l l e r s '  testimony. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well . 
BY MR. MELSON: 

And, f i n a l l y ,  Mr. Skelton, on Page 8 a t  Lines 12 Q 
through 15, you state tha t  NUC intends t o  contract w i th  a t h i r d  

par ty  t o  provide various services t o  the u t i l i t y .  Has tha t  

a1 so been accompl i shed? 
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A Yes. That was also covered i n  our Ju ly  2000 

igreement w i th  JEA. 

Q With the one correct ion t o  the address and those 

Ipdates, i f  I were t o  ask you the same questions today tha t  are 

i n  your p r e f i l e d  testimony, would be your answers be the same? 

A Yes. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, I would ask tha t  M r .  

3kelton's d i rec t  testimony be inserted i n t o  the record as though 

read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show M r .  

Skelton's d i rec t  testimony i s  entered i n t o  the record as though 

read. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Skelton, I understand you are sponsoring portions 

o f  the c e r t i f i c a t e  appl icat ion tha t  has been marked as 

Composite Exhib i t  4, spec i f i ca l l y  Exhibits t i ,  I ,  J ,  M, and N ,  

i s  t ha t  correct? 

A Yes, t ha t  i s .  

Q 

appl i cation? 

And do you have any changes t o  your port ions o f  t ha t  

A I do not. 

Q And, f inal ly,  there were attached t o  your d i rec t  

testimony two exhib i ts  labeled as HJS-1, which i s  a copy o f  the 

f inancial  statements t h a t  are also included i n  the NUC 

application, and HJS-2, which i s  the master service agreement 
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letween Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation and DDI .  Do you have any 

:hanges t o  e i ther  o f  those exhibi ts? 

A I do not. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, I would ask tha t  Exhibi ts 

iJS-1 and HJS-2 be marked as Composite Exhib i t  5. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well. I assume HJS-3 i s  t o  be 

mtered 1 ater or i s not i ncl uded? 

MR. MELSON: That w i l l  be entered l a t e r  i n  h i s  second 

ippearance. That goes w i th  h i s  intervenor testimony, which 

:omes probably tomorrow afternoon or  Wednesday. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  Show Composite Exhib i t  5 

Zonsists o f  HJS-1 and HJS-2 as marked. 

(Composite Exhib i t  5 marked f o r  iden t i f i ca t ion .  1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 Q. 

10 A. 

11 

12 Q .  

13 A. 

14 

15 

16 Q. 

17 A. 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22  

2 3  

24 

2 5  

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 

H. SAY SKELTON 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE U T I L I T Y  CORPORATION 

DOCKET NO. 990696-WS 

February 11, 2000 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

My name is H. Jay  Skelton. My business address is 4310 

Pablo O a k s  Jacksonville, Florida 32224, 

By whom are you employed and i n  what capacity? 

I am President of DDI, Inc. I am also President of 

DDI's wholly-owned subsidiary, Nocatee Utility 

Corporation. 

Please summarize your background and experience. 

In 1963, I was awarded a B . S .  in Accounting from 

Central Missouri State University. I began my 

professional career with Peat Marwick Mitchell & Co. in 

Kansas C i t y ,  Missouri in December 1962, I was 

transferred to Peat Marwick's Jacksonville, Florida 

office in January 1971 to head up the firm's t a x  

department and 1 became a partner in the firm in June 

1971. In 1978, I became Managing Partner f o r  the 

Jacksonville office, a position I held until my early 

-1- 
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retirement in 1988. In that year I joined DDI, where I 

have served as President and Chief Executive Officer. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to support Nocatee 

Utility Corporation's application f o r  original multi- 

county water and wastewater certificates to serve t h e  

Nocatee development in Duval and St. Johns County. My 

testimony demonstrates the need f o r  service in the 

proposed territory; summarizes the reasons that Nocatee 

Utility Corporation is the preferred utility provider; 

provides information on the financial capability of 

Nocatee Utility Corporation and its parent  company; and 

outlines our plan f o r  providing utility service. 

Other witnesses will provide more detail in these 

and other areas. Mr. Miller will discuss the 

engineering and technical aspects of Nocatee Utility 

Corporation's plan f o r  service, including the details 

of our arrangement with JEA. Ms. Swain will provide 

support  f o r  the utility's proposed rates and charges. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits in t h i s  proceeding? 

Yes. I am sponsoring Nocatee's certificate application 

which was filed with the Commission on June 1, 1999, I 

am also sponsoring the supplement and amendment to that 

applicatTon which was filed with t h e  Commission on 

February 11, 2000. I am specifically responsible for 

-2- 
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Exhibits H, I, J, and Late-Filed Exhibits M and N. The 

details of the application as amended and supplemented, 

including the remaining exhibits, will be addressed by 

other witnesses. 

What is the basis for your familiarity w i t h  the 

application and the exhibits you are sponsoring? 

The application was prepared at Nocatee Utility 

Corporation's direction by our consultants. I reviewed 

the Application and executed it on behalf of the 

applicant, Exhibit I is the audited financial 

statement of DDI, of which I am President. Exhibit H 

is the Master Service Agreement between DDI and NUC 

which I executed on behalf of DDI. 

What is DDI? 

DDI is a closely-held corporation owned directly or 

indirectly by members of the Davis family. It is a 

holding company with a major investment in Winn-Dixie, 

significant investments in land, a significant s t o c k  

portfolio, and ownership of an o i l  and gas company. 

What is DDI 's relationship to t h i s  certificate 

application case? 

Among other assets,  DDI owns through its affiliate 

SONOC Company, LLC, approximately 15,000 acres in St. 

Johns and Duval Counties that will be developed by The 

PARC Group over the next 25 years as a multi-use 
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development known as "Nocatee." DDI created Nocatee 

Utility Corporation, the certificate applicant in this 

case, as a wholly-owned subsidiary to provide water, 

wastewater and reuse service to the Nocatee 

development. DDI is therefore both the owner of all of 

the land included in the water and wastewater 

certificate applications in this case and the owner of 

the utility company. 

Do DDI or other  Davis family interests own other 

adjacent land in Duval and St. Johns County? 

Yes. However only the p r o p e r t y  within t h e  boundaries 

of the Nocatee project is slated f o r  development. The 

certificate application is limited to the Nocatee 

project, since there is no foreseeable need f o r  service 

to any of the other Davis family land holdings in the 

area. 

Is there a need f o r  service in the territory that 

Nocatee Utility Corporation has applied t o  serve? 

Yes. There is a need f o r  service in the proposed 

territory beginning in 2001. The utility is expected 

to continue to grow to serve needs in the territory 

over a development period of approximately 25 years. 

How did you determine the estimated date that service 

will first be required? 

Because of the magnitude of the Nocatee development, 

-4- 
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the project is subject to review under Chapter 380, 

Florida Statutes, as a Development of Regional Impact 

(DRI). The Application f o r  Development Approval (ADA) 

required by that process has just been submitted to the 

appropriate state and local government agencies. We 

anticipate that final development approval will be 

forthcoming in the late-2000 time frame and that on- 

site development activities will begin almost 

immediately. There will be a need for construction 

water and reuse f o r  irrigation at that time, and a need 

f o r  central water, wastewater and reuse service f o r  the 

first retail customers in Nocatee in late 2001. 

Why did D D I  organize Nocatee Ut i l i ty  Corporation to be 

the  retai l  u t i l i t y  service provider to the Nocatee 

development? 

There are several reasons: 

First, we believe that utility planning for a 

large-scale development such as Nocatee should be 

integrated with all other aspects of planning for the 

pro jec t .  As the landowner, we are in the best position 

to see that this is done effectively and efficiently. 

We are committed to ensuring that Nocatee is developed 

in an environmentally sensitive manner, and control 

over the provision of utility services helps  us to meet 

that g o a l .  
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Second, we know that DDI has the financial 

resources to ensure that utility service is available 

when and where it's needed to support the overall 

development effort. With any outside party, you will 

always have questions about their willingness and 

capability to meet those needs, particularly over a 

development horizon that spans 25 years .  

Third, as Mr. Miller will testify in more detail, 

we have been able to structure a bulk service 

arrangement with JEA that will let us meet the need f o r  

utility service in a timely manner and in a way that is 

c o s t  e f fec t ive  for the ultimate consumers within 

Nocatee. 

Finally, we have the potential to create 

additional value for our shareholders by investing in 

and operating the utility system. 

1 7  Q .  Does N o c a t e e  U t i l i t y  C o r p o r a t i o n  have the financial 

2 3  

2 4  

2 5  

19 A. 

2 0  

21 

18 ab i l i t y  to provide service to the  requested territory? 

Y e s .  As shown by the DDI financial statements included 

as Exhibit 1-1 to the certificate application, DDI had 

assets of over $164 million and a net worth of over $29 

million at November 30, 1998. For ease of reference, I 

have attached another copy of these f i n a n c i a l  

statements as Exhibit ( H J S - 1 ) .  Because these 

financial statements are prepared in accordance with 

-6-  
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GAAP, they value assets at original c o s t .  At fair 

m a r k e t  value, DDI currently has a n e t  worth in excess 

of $1 billion. 

To ensure funding for the utility, DDI and Nocatee 

Utility Corporation entered into a "Master Service 

Agreement," which was included as Exhibit H-1 to the 

application. Again for ease of reference, I have 

attached a copy to this testimony as Exhibit ( H J S -  

2). Under this Agreement, DDI is obligated to provide 

initial funding for utility construction and operations 

until the utility becomes self-sufficient. Given the 

integral role that utility service plays in the Nocatee 

community, DDI is firmly committed to providing Nocatee 

Utility Corporation the required financial resources. 

What is Nocatee Utility Corporation's overall plan fo r  

serving the requested service territory? 

Nocatee Utility Corporation plans to enter into a bulk 

service arrangement with JEA under which Nocatee will 

purchase bulk water and reuse service from JEA at the 

property boundary, and will deliver bulk wastewater to 

SEA at the property boundary for treatment in existing 

JEA facilities. Nocatee Utility Corporation will own 

the on-site water and reuse transmission and 

distribution system, and the on-site wastewater 

collection system, and will provide retail service to 

t 

-7- 
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Q. 
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A. 

customers within its territory. 

W h a t  i s  the s t a t u s  of the bulk service arrangement w i t h  

JEA? 

We have entered into a l e t t e r  of intent f o r  b u l k  

utility service. Mr. Miller, who participated directly 

in the negotiations with JEA,  can discuss the details 

of that arrangement. 

How does Nocatee plan t o  operate the utility on a day- 

to-day basis? 

Because of the bulk service arrangement with JEA, 

Nocatee is anticipated to own only limited treatment 

facilities. Nocatee Utility Corporation intends to 

contract with a third-party to provide line 

maintenance, meter reading, billing, customer service 

and o t h e r  services. Under our letter agreement with 

JEA, NUC has the option to obtain such services from 

JEA . 

In your opinion, does Nocatee Utility Corporation have 

the  technical  ability to operate the proposed u t i l i t y  

system? 

Absolutely. DDI has a history of using third-party 

contractors to handle  day-to-day operations of our 

various business ventures, For example, the overall 

development of the Nocatee project is being managed for 

us by The PARC Group, which in turn has a number of 

-8-  
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subcontractors and consultants with expertise in all 

the areas that are required to plan and implement a 

large-scale development. 

Mr. Miller has advised me that there is no 

shor t age  of potential contract utility operators in the 

Duval/St. Johns County area and that both JEA and 

United Water are interested in providing these services 

to NUC. Together with our utility consultants, Nocatee 

Utility Corporation has the expertise to select a 

qualified operator, negotiate a cost-effective 

management contract, and supervise the contract 

services. This is no d i f f e r e n t  from what DDI does 

every day in other aspects  of its business. 

In your opinion, is t h e  c e r t i f i c a t i o n  of NUC t o  provide 

utility service t o  the proposed t e r r i t o r y  i n  the public 

i n t e r e s t ?  

Yes. A s  an affiliate of t h e  landowner of a major 

development project, NUC i s  uniquely positioned to 

provide service in a way that is consistent with the 

overall plans and needs of the development. By 

partnering with JEA, NUC will be able to provide 

timely, reliable, cost-effective service that will 

benefit the ultimate residents and businesses that 

locate i n  Nocatee. 

Does t h a t  conclude your testimony? 

Y e s .  

-9- 
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BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Skelton, wou 

t e s t  i mony? 

d you b r i e f l y  summarize your d i rec t  

A Good afternoon, Commissioners. I am here as 

President o f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, and the purpose of my 

testimony i s  t o  give you an overview o f  why DDI  formed Nocatee 

U t i l i t y  Corporation as a wholly-owned subsidiary t o  provide 

water, sewer, and reuse t o  the Nocatee development. 

D D I  i s  the owner through one o f  our subsidiaries o f  

15,000 acres o f  land i n  Duval and S t .  Johns County. This i s  

known as the Nocatee development o f  regional impact. The Davis 

family, which owns D D I  , i s  very concerned about the standards foi 

the development and has set very high standards f o r  Nocatee 

development. They have ins is ted  on an environmentally sensi t ive 

development tha t  i s  done r i gh t .  

As part o f  the environmental e th ic  f o r  the pro ject ,  we 

have taken a number o f  steps se t t ing  aside 2,000 acres as a 

preserve which includes 3-1/2 miles o f  frontage on the Tolomato 

R i  ver , s e t t i  ng asi de 7 , 000 acres o f  greenway preserve, i ncl udi ng 

over 1,000 acres o f  uplands. We have established a w i l d l i f e  

management plan and have committed t o  100 percent reuse f o r  

i r r i g a t i o n  through the development, including a res ident ia l  reus( 

system. 

DDI  organized Nocatee U t i l i t y  because i t  o f fe rs  the 

best way t o  provide u t i l i t y  services t o  Nocatee. By cont ro l l ing  
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the u t i l i t y  we can ensure tha t  service i s  avai lable when needed 

and we can ensure tha t  the u t i l i t y  services are provided 

consistent w i th  the development order conditions t h a t  govern the 

pro ject  and consistent w i th  the landowner's environmental e th ic .  

We know tha t  we have the f inanc ia l  resources t o  see tha t  the 

u t i l i t y  service, l i k e  other aspects o f  the development, i s  done 

r i gh t .  

As M r .  M i l l e r ,  M r .  Doug M i l l e r  w i l l  describe i n  more 

de ta i l ,  we w i l l  serve Nocatee through an agreement w i th  JEA. 

Under our contract w i th  JEA, they w i l l  provide bulk service t o  u 

from t h e i r  ex is t ing  plants and w i l l  also provide day-to-day 

operations, management, and mai ntenance service . As Ms. Swain 

w i l l  t e s t i f y ,  t h i s  arrangement enables us t o  provide service t o  

our fu ture residents a t  competitive rates. 

One major factor i n  our select ion o f  JEA as a wholesall 

provider was t h e i r  unique a b i l i t y  t o  provide us w i th  100 percent 

rec l  aimed water f o r  i r r i g a t i o n  from day one o f  the development. 

Based on the testimony you w i l l  hear over the next few days, I 

urge you t o  f i n d  tha t  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation i s  the best 

choice f o r  serving the Nocatee development and t o  grant us the 

c e r t i f i c a t e  t h a t  we have requested. 

This concludes my summary. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Skelton i s  tendered fo r  cross 

examination. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  begin w i th  M r .  Menton. 
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MR. MENTON: No questions. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Wharton. 
CROSS EXAMINATION 

I don't have any questions. 

BY MR. WHARTON: 

Q Good afternoon, M r .  Skelton. 
A Good afternoon. 
Q 
A Yes. 

Q 

Sir, you are the president o f  the utility company? 

Do you agree that you don't have any experience 
operating a utility? 

A Yes, I do. 
Q Okay. You had mentioned the agreement with JEA. 

Now, JEA will provide the operations for the utility, correct? 
A Yes. 

Q And JEA will provide the management for the utility, 
correct? 

A That i s  correct. 
Q And JEA will do the collections f o r  the utility, 

correct? 
A Yes. 

Q And JEA will do the billings f o r  the utility, 
correct? 

A That i s  correct. 
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Q And JEA will provide the wholesale water t o  the 
development , i s  t h a t  correct? 

A T h a t  is correct. 
Q And also will collect the wastewater from the 
opmen t ? 

A Yes. 

Q 
described? 

And will provide the reuse service t h a t  you have 

A Yes, i t  will.  

Q Okay. Sir, you haven't developed other properties, 
have you? 

A No, this is the f i r s t  one. 

Q So you are not real l y  a developer, per se, then. 
Would you agree w i t h  t h a t ?  

A 

Q Okay. Mr. Skelton, isn ' t  i t  true t h a t  you believe 
t h a t  the type of integrated planning which you would like t o  
see for your devel opment cannot be accompl i shed between an 
unrel ated u t i  1 i t y  and a developer? 

I would agree w i t h  t h a t .  I 

A Yes. 

Q And yet you have no personal experience w i t h  t h a t  
pa r t i  cul ar re1 a t ionship .  true? 

A 

Q 
I'm not sure I understand the las t  question. 
You haven't i n  the past  attempted t o  develop a piece 

o f  property t h a t  was served by an unrelated u t i l i t y  company? 
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A No, I have not. 

Q Okay. You are aware as we s i t  here today that  par t  

o f  the JEA agreement tha t  you have described has something 

c a l l  ed the j o i  n t  projects , correct? 

A 

Q Wel l ,  your answer makes tha t  tough. We w i l l  go t o  

That doesn't r i n g  a b e l l  w i th  me, but go on. 

another subject . 
You have seen the development orders f o r  these 

proper t i es? 

A 

orders. 

Q 

I don't th ink  I have ac tua l l y  read the development 

Well, you are doing a good job ge t t ing  yourself o f f  

the hook here. Didn ' t  you t e l l  me i n  deposition tha t  you 

agreed tha t  no par t i cu la r  u t i l i t y  was named i n  e i ther  

devel opment order? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Okay. S i r ,  i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  i t  doesn't bother you 

o r  concern you tha t  i f  JEA u l t imate ly  provides r e t a i l  t o  the 

development, then those customers would be served by a 

governmental e n t i t y  t ha t  i s  not located i n  the county i n  which 

they reside, a t  least  as i t  relates t o  S t .  Johns County? 

MR. MELSON: Objection, he has l a i d  no foundation tha t  

t h i s  development i s  going t o  be served a t  r e t a i l  by JEA. 

MR. WHARTON: A l l  r i gh t .  

BY MR. WHARTON : 
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Q S i r ,  I want you t o  assume hypothet ical ly t ha t  - -  

Jel l ,  l e t  me ask you a question. You would be w i l l i n g  t o  

Ionsider negotiat ing w i th  JEA for r e t a i l  service i n  both S t .  

lohns and Duval County, woul dn ' t you? 

A 

Q 

I don' t  know t h a t  I would be unwi l l ing  t o  do that .  

Is t ha t  the same as saying you would be w i l l i n g  t o  do 

that? 

A I would be w i l  

Q Okay. Well, I 

i n g  t o  consider that .  

want you t o  assume, hypothetical ly, 

then, s i r ,  t ha t  JEA does eventually come t o  provide r e t a i l  

service t o  the development i n  S t .  Johns and Duval Counties, 

okay? 

A Okay. 

Q And i n  tha t  case i t  doesn't concern you, does it, 

tha t  i f  JEA u l t imate ly  provides tha t  r e t a i l  service t o  the 

development, tha t  customers i n  S t .  Johns County w i l l  be 

receiving service from a governmental e n t i t y  t ha t  i s  not i n  the 

county i n  which they reside? 

A That does not bother me. 

Chairman, I would j u s t  interpose an 
hat c a l l s  for speculation. 

apparently was able t o  handle it, Mr. 

He was t r y i n g  t o  get h i s  objection 

in, and I quite f rank ly  d i d n ' t  hear h i s  answer. 
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MR. WHARTON: Okay. He said i t  d i d  not bother him. 

rhat d i d  not concern him. 

MR. MENTON: Mr. Chairman, the objection i s  simply 

that t ha t  i s  not the issue tha t  i s  before the Commission today. 

dhat i s  before the Commission today i s  the appl icat ion tha t  

docatee has f i l e d ,  and we should deal w i th  issues tha t  are 

related t o  tha t  appl icat ion, not speculation as t o  what might 

happen a t  some po in t  i n  the future. 

MR. WHARTON: Mr. Chairman, the evidence i s  ye t  t o  

It i s  very d i f f i c u l t  t o  confine the questions t o  the unfold. 

very f i r s t  witness i n  a t r i a l  t o  what evidence has only been 

developed out o f  h i s  mouth. Give me some la t i t ude  here. 

th ink what t h i s  t r i a l  needs t o  deal w i th  i s  r e a l i t y .  

I 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, what we have t o  do i s  be held 

t o  h i s  p re f i l ed  testimony. And t o  the extent I th ink  i t  was 

very l im i ted  he covered tha t  i n  h i s  p re f i l ed .  

that  - -  
I w i l l  al low you 

MR. WHARTON: He did touch upon the JEA agreement. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very l im i ted .  I w i l l  al low you tha t  

1 a t i  tude. 

MR. WHARTON: Okay. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q And you t o l d  me i n  deposition, d i d n ' t  you, t ha t  i t  

was your understanding tha t  i n  tha t  case JEA would have the PSC 

t o  deal with? 
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A I th ink  I did. 

Q And tha t  i s  because you thought that  i f  JEA went i n t o  

more than one county they would f a l l  under PSC ju r isd ic t ion? 

A Yes. I was erroneous i n  tha t  answer. 

Q Okay. Did you say you are the president o f  Estuary 

Corp? 

A No, I d id  not. 

Q I thought you d i d  i n  your summary. Te l l  me what you 

are the president o f?  

A I am President o f  DDI and I am the CEO o f  DDI  and 

Estuary. 

Q 
A 

And tha t  i s  d i f f e ren t  than jus t  Estuary Corp? 

Estuary Corporation i s  what I mean when I say 

Estuary. Estuary Corporation i s  another company tha t  I am also 

the CEO o f ,  as well as DDI,  Inc. 
So you are a l s o  the president o f  Estuary? Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

I am not president. 

What are you? 

I am vice-president. 

Okay. That was something you mentioned 

summary t t r a t  you d i d n ' t  mention i n  your testimony 

A I don' t  reca l l .  

i n  your 

MR. WHARTON: Everything else i s  for rebuttal ,  

Commi s s i  oners. That's a1 1 we have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  S t a f f .  
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MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  doesn't have any questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commi ssi  oners . 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Just one. Mr. Skelton, why not 

a l l o w  JEA t o  serve d i rec t l y?  

THE WITNESS: We want t o  have the control t o  make sure 

that we control i t  rather than JEA. We want t o  make sure tha t  

Ne can have the in f ras t ruc tu re  put i n  when we need i t  i n  our 

15,000 acre development. We want t o  make sure we control the 

qual i t y  o f  what i s  going i n  there. We are very concerned about 

the environmental aspects o f  our development, and we feel t o  

turn i t  over d i r e c t l y  t o  JEA would take tha t  control away from 

us. And we j u s t  have very high standards and we want t o  make 

sure tha t  we comply w i th  our own standards. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And i n  tha t  regard why i s  your 

agreement only f o r  a term o f  ten years? 

THE WITNESS: We1 1 , we can h i  r e  someone e l  se, we don' t  

have t o  stay w i th  JEA. We can terminate tha t  agreement w i th  JEA 

i f  they don ' t  perform. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What are the c r i t e r i a  upon which 

you w i l l  decide whether they are performing? 

THE WITNESS: Well, I guess i t ' s  proof o f  the pudding 

i s  i n  the eating. Over tha t  ten-year period we w i l l  see how 

they perform. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Skelton, I want t o  t r y  t o  

concentrate j u s t  a moment on the customers' perspective. I f  
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Iocatee U t i l i t y  i s  allowed t o  provide service, i s  the 

zustomer - - i s  i t  going t o  be represented t o  the customer tha t  

they are a customer o f  Nocatee Ut i l i t y?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, serviced by JEA. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Serviced by JEA. I f  a customer 

has a complaint, who do they c a l l ?  

THE WITNESS: Well, they could c a l l  e i ther  one o f  us. 

de w i  11 be very responsive, as I ' m  sure JEA would be, but  we 

Nil1 be very responsive because the customer i s  a homeowner tha t  

bought property i n  our development and we are going t o  make sure 

they are taken care o f .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Now, as I understand the 

proposal tha t  a l l  of the d is t r ibu t ion ,  t ha t  leve l  o f  

d i s t r i bu t i on  and co l lect ion,  those type l i nes  would be owned by 

Nocatee U t i l i t y  and tha t  perhaps there would be some large 

transmission l i nes  o f  some so r t  which may ac tua l l y  be owned by 

JEA, i s  tha t  correct? 

THE WITNESS: That i s  my general understanding, but i f  

you are going t o  get i n t o  the de ta i l s  o f  tha t ,  I th ink  Mr. Doug 

M i l l e r ,  our engineer, who has developed the plan i s  better able 

t o  answer those technical questions than I am. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. But JEA would have the 

requirement t o  maintain a l l  f a c i l i t i e s ,  both those tha tkhey  own 

obviously and those tha t  would be retained - -  ownership would be 

retained by Nocatee, correct? 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, t ha t  i s  correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Now, there was some exception 

for repairs i n  excess o f  $4,000, i s  t ha t  correct ,  or  should I 

ask o f  t ha t  a d i f f e ren t  witness? 

THE WITNESS: I t h ink  M r .  M i l l e r  can bet ter  answer 

that . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I w i l l  ask him. Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Any other questions, Commissioners? 

I f  the terms o f  your management agreement w i th  JEA don' t  

comport, or f o r  tha t  matter i f  there are issues which the 

customers, which as I understand i t  w i l l  be Nocatee customers 

being serviced, i f  there are issues, concerns, problems, how 

w i l l  you in te rac t  w i th  JEA t o  b r ing  about resolut ion o f  those 

concerns? 

THE WITNESS: Well, we are going t o  represent the 

customers o f  Nocatee, and we would represent them i n  meetings 

and whatever wi th  JEA. I don' t  th ink  tha t  i s  a problem. Like 

we would represent them i n  any other matter t ha t  would need t o  

be discussed wi th  a provider o f  services. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: C1 assic examples are i ssues tha t  

have come up today i n  opening statements. Location o f  

pump stat ions, b i l l  i ng  issues , ra te  issues . What I ' m  hearing 

you say i s  tha t  you would be involved as a d i r e c t  intermediary 

w i th  JEA i n  addressing any concerns or  issues tha t  arose from 
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regards? 
utely. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. No other questions. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: One follow-up. You are 

president of the u t i l i t y  corporation, but are you also president 
o f  the development t h a t  will be taking place on this property? 

THE WITNESS : We w i  11 control the devel opment because 
mce own the l and ,  and we will have architectural control and we 
are going t o  control everything t h a t  goes i n  there because we 
have started out w i t h  very high standards and we are not going 

t o  le t  anybody go i n  there and do anything t h a t  we can't be 
satisfied they can live up t o  our expectations. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Will you have a say as t o  how 
t h i  s development and the property there w i  11 be marketed? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, we will .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Will you represent t o  potential 
purchasers o f  property i n  the development t h a t  the underlying 
services provided by JEA, t h a t  will be disclosed t o  customers? 

THE WITNESS: We haven't gone t h a t  far i n  developing 
those materials, but  I'm sure we will. We believe i n  ful l  

di  scl osure i n  a1 1 respects. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Just some more fol l  ow- up. You 

will construct some of the lines and some o f  the mains and 

contribute t h a t  t o  JEA, right? 
THE WITNESS: I'm not sure t h a t  about the contribution 
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o f  f a c i l i t i e s  t o  JEA, and I th ink  M r .  M i l l e r  can answer t h a t  

question. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A1 1 r i g h t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Redirect . 
MR. MELSON: Just a couple. And i f  my red i rec t  should 

be directed t o  M r .  M i l l e r ,  as well  , l e t  me know. 

RED I RECT EXAM I N AT I ON 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  Skelton, JEA i n  dealing w i th  customers w i l l  be 

act ing as agent f o r  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, i s  tha t  

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And as your agent, you w i l l  have the r i g h t  t o  d i r e c t  

the way i n  which they represent you, i s  tha t  correct? 

A Absol u te ly .  

Q With regard t o  rates, the rates tha t  JEA w i l l  charge 

you f o r  who1 esale service and f o r  management services are 

simply a cost o f  your u t i l i t y ,  i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A That i s  correct. 

Q And do you understand tha t  t h i s  Commission w i l l  set 

the r e t a i l  ra tes  f o r  your u t i l i t y  based on whatever costs you 

leg i t imate ly  prove up t o  them? 

A That i s  my understanding. 

MR. MELSON: That's a l l  I've got. Thank you, M r .  

Skel ton. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Exhibi ts . 
MR. MELSON: Move Exhib i t  5. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exhibi t  5 i s  

admitted. 

MR. WHARTON: That i s  Composite Exhibi t  5? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Composite Exhibi t  5, consist ing o f  

HJS-1 and 2. 

MR. WHARTON: And we do object, Mr. Chairman. There 

has been absolutely no testimony or foundation f o r  the admission 

o f  the audited f inancial  statements. M r .  Skelton d i d n ' t  say he 

was an accountant a t  tha t  f i r m .  

hearsay. 

It i s  c lear ly  uncorroborated 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well ,  he has prof fered them as 

exhibi ts.  You d i d n ' t  cross him on them. 

MR. WHARTON: True, but there i s  no evidence. I 

object t o  i t s  admission. That i s  l i k e  me br inging i n  a book and 

asking tha t  i t  be put i n .  I need t o  l ay  some foundation f o r  

that .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r  . Me1 son . 
MR. MELSON : Commi ssi oner Jacobs, M r  . Skel ton 

tha t  he i s  the Chief Executive Of f icer  o f  DDI ,  Ire 

sponsored DDI  ' s  audited f inancial  statements. He doesn't have 

t o  perform the audi t  i n  order t o  say these are the audited 

f inancial  statements o f  DDI.  

MR. WHARTON: I f  they are being put i n  f o r  the t r u t h  
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o f  the matters asserted i n  them, then they are hearsay. They 

are essent ia l ly  the out o f  court statement o f  t h e i r  declarant 

by somebody who i s  not here t e s t i f y i n g .  

MR. MELSON: They are put i n  fo r  the - -  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. As I understand, 

t rad i t i ona l  l y  witnesses can p ro f fe r  documents tha t  were prepared 

under t h e i r  supervision. We d i d  not establ ish tha t  these 

documents - - t o  my recol lect ion,  I don' t  reca l l  there being any 

testimony, I don' t  reca l l  i n  the summary whether or  not tha t  was 

represented by M r .  Skel ton, t ha t  these documents were prepared 

under h i s  supervision. Do you have another witness t o  t h i s  

exhib i t?  

MR. MELSON: I can c a l l  M r .  Skelton back and ask him 

what he knows about those f inanc ia l  statements. It i s  unusual 

i n  my experience t o  get a foundation objection t o  t h i s  type o f  

exh ib i t .  

every witness, I w i l l  do tha t  as we go through. I have now 

learned what i s  expected of me i n  t h i s  par t i cu la r  hearing. 

I f  I need t o  lay a foundation fo r  every exh ib i t  f o r  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I am going t o  allow tha t ,  M r .  

Wharton. I f  t ha t  were a serious objection, I would have 

expected you t o  challenge, impeach M r .  Skelton on h i s  background 

t o  support t h a t  exhib i t .  So I am going t o  allow him t o  retake 

the stand and allow counsel t o  establ ish a foundation t o  support 

it. 

MR. WHARTON: Sure. 
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BY MR. MELSON: 

MR. MELSON: Nocatee c a l l s  Mr. Douglas M i l l e r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do you want t o  do t ha t  l a t e r  or  do 

i t  now? 

MR. WHARTON: I ' m  sorry, I th ink  you misunderstood. 

MR. MELSON : I m i  sunderstood, I apol ogi ze. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Yes . 
MR. MELSON: M r .  Skelton, would you retake the stand. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Before we do tha t  l e t  me - -  I 

mean, I h Ive looked a t  these audited statements and they are 

accompanied by a l e t t e r  from the firm tha t  ac tua l l y  conducted 

the audit,  and there i s  an opinion expressed thereon. 

M r .  Wharton, tha t  i s  i n s u f f i c i e n t  f o r  your purposes? 

I guess, 

MR. WHARTON: Really, Commissioners, I don' t  want t o  

belabor the point, and I don ' t  intend t o  t r y  t o  put someone 

through the r inger fo r  everything they are pu t t i ng  in. But 

these are c lea r l y  statements by someone other than the 

declarant, they can ' t  be cross-examined. I don ' t  th ink  i t  i s  

j u s t  enough t o  say here i s  our audited f inanc ia l .  We need t o  

e i ther  achieve a s t i pu la t i on  on t h i s  or t o  have ca l led someone 

t o  lay the foundation for them. 

I mean, a l l  t h i s  witness i s  going t o  be able t o  say i s  

I s t i l l  believe they tha t  I hired these accountants t o  do th i s .  

are not sel f -authent icat ing,  and they can ' t  be cross-examined, 

and they are an out o f  court statement tha t  i s  being offered f o r  
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the t r u t h  o f  the matter asserted therein. I mean, I w i l l  - -  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Why i s  i t  they can ' t  be 

cross - exami ned? You d i  dn ' t even attempt t o  cross - exami ne on 

these. 

MR. WHARTON: He d i d n ' t  do them and he d i d n ' t  say i n  

h i s  testimony he did. I guess I could ask every single witness 

they c a l l  whether t h i s  l i n e  on t h i s  audited f inanc ia l ,  where i t  

came from and how they made tha t  calculat ion.  I t ' s  jus t  c lear 

t o  me and I d i d n ' t  th ink  a t  the time t o  speak up on that  u n t i l  

they were being proffered, actua l ly  admitted i n t o  evidence. 

H. JAY SKELTON 

was recal led as a witness on behalf o f  Nocatee Ut i l i t y  

Corporation, and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

D I  RECT EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Skelton, are the consolidated f inancial  

statements o f  DDI  Inc. attached t o  your testimony as HJS-1,  

f inancial  statements tha t  are prepared for D D I  i n  the ordinary 

course o f  i t s  business? 

A Yes. 

Q And they were prepared and reported on by your 

independent auditors, i s  tha t  correct? 

A The f inancial statements were prepared by our s t a f f  

and then they were audited by the firm of KPMG, which expressed 

an opinion on those f inancial  statements. 
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Q And was the preparation o f  those f inancial  statements 

by your s t a f f  u l t imate ly  under your supervision and d i rect ion? 

A Yes . 
Q And are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  the content o f  these 

f i nanci a1 statements? 

A Yes . 
Q And t o  the extent there were questions about what 

par t i cu la r  1 ine  items represent or the signif icance o f  

par t i cu la r  notes, do you bel ieve you would be able t o  answer 

those questions? 

A Well, I can answer most questions about the f inanc ia l  

statements. There are so many numbers i n  there tha t  several 

working papers were prepared t o  get t o  those numbers and I 

don' t  have them avai lable today t o  give you a l l  the t o t a l s  tha t  

might have been consolidated i n t o  one number on those f inanc ia l  

statements. But I basica l ly  can look a t  the f inancial  

statements and answer probably most any question tha t  might be 

asked. 

Q And what was your employment p r i o r  t o  becoming 

president and ch ief  executive o f f i c e r  o f  DDI? 

A I was the managing partner o f  KPMG North Flor ida 

o f f i c e  i n  Jacksonville, and spent 26 years i n  publ ic 

accounti ng . 
Q 

A No, I ' m  not. My c e r t i f i c a t e  was r e t i r e d  several 

And are you a CPA? 
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years ago. 

MR. MELSON: Commissioner Jacobs, w i th  tha t  

foundation, I renew the - -  make the request tha t  the f inanc ia l  

statements be admitted. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Very we1 1 . Objection? 

MR. WHARTON: I t ' s  the same objection. I won't 

belabor w i th  any fur ther  argument, though. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Objection denied. Show Exhib i t  5 i s  

admitted. 

(Exhibi t  5 admitted i n t o  the record ) 

MR. MELSON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You may c a l l  your next witness. 

MR. MELSON : Nocatee c a l l  s Doug1 as M i  1 1 er  . 
Thereupon, 

DOUGLAS MILLER 

was ca l led as a witness on behalf o f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporati on, and havi ng f i r s t  been duly sworn, was exami ned and 

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  have you been sworn? 

A I have. 

Q I s  your microphone on? 

A That I don ' t  know. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I t  doesn't sound l i k e  it. Before we 
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iegin, d i d  I miss o r  d i d  we move Exhib i t  3 i n t o  the record? 

MR. MELSON: We had moved Exhibi t  3. I have not yet 

loved Exhi b i t  4, which was the composite - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Right, I rea l ize tha t .  

MR. MELSON: - - appl i ca t i on  because I 've got two more 

iitnesses t o  sponsor other pieces o f  tha t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  

5Y MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  would you s tate your name and business 

iddress f o r  the record, please. 

A My name i s  Douglas C. M i l l e r .  My business address 

i s  14775 Old S t .  Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida. 

Q 

A 

3gineers. I am the president o f  t ha t  company. 

Q 

By whom are you employed and i n  what capacity? 

1 am employed by England Thims & M i l l e r  Consulting 

And what i s  your relat ionship and the relat ionship o f  

!ngl and Thims and M i  11 e r  t o  Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  Corporation? 

A England Thims and M i l l e r  i s  the engineer o f  record 

f o r  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, and I am the pr inc ipa l  i n  

charge o f  t ha t  project  and tha t  account. 

Q And have you f i l e d  d i rec t  testimony dated February 

11, 2000, consisting o f  13 pages? 

A I have. 

Q Have you also f i l e d  supplemental d i rec t  testimony 

dated Ju ly  31, 2000, consisting o f  6 pages? 
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t e s t  i mony? 

What was the purpose o f  the supp 
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emental d i r e c t  

A The supplemental d i r e c t  testimony was t o  r e a l l y  

update the status o f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation and t o  

spec i f i ca l l y  b r ing  i n t o  the record the agreement t h a t  has been 

f i n a l  i zed between Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  Corp and JEA f o r  operati on, 

maintenance, and who1 esal e servi ce tha t  had previously been 

agreed t o  only i n  a l e t t e r  o f  in ten t .  So tha t  was f i na l i zed  a t  

tha t  po int  i n  time i n  the supplemental testimony. 

Q Other than the updates made by your supplemental 

testimony t o  the d i rec t ,  do you have any changes or corrections 

t o  e i ther  piece o f  testimony? 

A No, I do not. 

Q And i f  I were t o  ask you the same questions today, 

would your answers be the same? 

A They wou d. 

MR. MELSON: Mr. Chairman, I would ask t h a t  M r .  

M i  11 er  ' s d i rec t  testimony and suppl emental d i  rec t  testimony be 

inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show M r .  M i l l e r ' s  

d i rec t  and supplemental d i r e c t  entered i n t o  the record as though 

read. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  a re  you sponsoring Exhibits A through G, 
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K,  L, and Supplemental Exhib i t  Q t o  Nocatee's c e r t i f i c a t e  

appl i cation? 

A I am. 

Q 

supervi s i  on? 
Were those exh ib i ts  prepared by you o r  under your 

A Yes, they were. 

Q Do you have any changes t o  those port ions o f  the 

c e r t i  f i cate appl i cat i on? 

A No. 

Q You also had attached t o  your d 

exhib i ts  label led DCM-1 through DCM-8, i s  

A That i s  correct. 

Q And I believe a f t e r  the or ig ina 

rec t  testimony e ight  

t ha t  correct? 

f i l i n g  o f  t ha t  

testimony there was a revised version o f  the maps attached as 

Exhibi ts DCM-6 and DCM-7 f i l e d  wi th  the Commission, i s  tha t  

correct? 

A That i s  correct. DCM-6 and DCM-7 had a scrivener's 

er ror  t ha t  was corrected and r e f i  1 ed. 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  could you take j u s t  a moment and look a t  

your eight exhib i ts  and determine i f  each o f  them were prepared 

by you or under your d i rec t ion  or  supervision? Let me ask it 

i n  pieces. Were DCM-1 through DCM-3 prepared by you or under 

your d i rect ion o r  supervi s i  on? 
A Yes, they were. 

Q Is Exhibi t  DCM-4 a l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  between Nocatee 
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U t i l i t y  Corporation and JEA? 

A That was prepared by myself and an attorney fo r  the 

development team, so I prepared tha t  in concert w i th  one o f  the 

attorneys fo r  the Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Would you take a look a t  Exhibi t  5 and 

explain t o  us what Exhib i t  5 represents? 

A Exhib i t  5 i s  a u t i l i t y  a v a i l a b i l i t y  l e t t e r  from 

t o  Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation. This was requested and 

provided as a par t  o f  the requirements o f  appl icat ion f o r  

devel opment approval w i th  the Nocatee development o f  regil 

impact . 

JEA 

na7 

Q And i s  t h i s  the type o f  l e t t e r  t h a t  i n  your capacity 

as a professional engineer you rou t ine ly  obtain and review on 

behalf o f  c l ien ts?  

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Page 2 o f  Exhib i t  DCM-5 appears t o  be the request 

l e t t e r  t o  JEA, i s  tha t  correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And d id  you par t i c ipa te  i n  the development o f  t ha t  

request 1 e t te r?  

A Yes. I believe we draf ted i t  f o r  the review and 

signature o f  M r .  Francis, who i s ,  I believe, a vice-president 

o f  Nocatee Ut i1  i t y  Corporation. 

Q And your f i r m ,  you or  people working under your 

d i rec t ion  and supervision prepared both Exhibi ts DCM-6 and 
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KM-7 and the revised versions o f  those exhibi ts,  i s  tha t  

:or rect? 

MR. WHARTON: M r .  Chairman, I th ink  t h i s  i s  

;upplemental testimony. 

:he exhibi ts tha t  are attached. I know what M r .  Melson i s  

loing, and I under stand why he i s  doing it. I don' t  intend t o  

nake any objection t o  any o f  these exhibi ts.  This i s  j u s t  - -  

I don' t  have any objections t o  any o f  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Does tha t  help you? 

(Simultaneous conversation.) 

MR. WHARTON: - - we normally don' t  get i n t o  before we 

summarize . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Does tha t  help you, M r .  Melson? 

MR. MELSON: I t  helps me wi th  t h i s  par t i cu la r  - -  i f  

Mr. Wharton would be kind enough t o  t e l l  me i f  he has 

anticipated objections t o  exhibi ts,  I w i l l  - -  
MR. WHARTON: 

other than tha t  audited f inancial  statement. 

MR. MELSON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That helps us out a b i t .  

MR. MELSON: With that, M r .  Chairman, I would ask that  

I don' t  have any objections t o  anything 

Exhibits DCM-1 through DCM-8, inc luding the revised versions o f  

DCM-6 and DCM-7 be marked for i den t i f i ca t i on  as Composite 

Exhi b i  t 6 . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show them marked as Composite 

Exhibi t  6. 
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(Composite Exhi b i  t 6 marked f o r  i denti f i c a t i  on. ) 

3Y MR. MELSON: 

Q You also have attached t o  your supplemental d i r e c t  

testimony two exhib i ts  label led DCM-13 and DCM-14, i s  t ha t  

correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, due t o  a scrivener's e r ro r  

i n  my o f f i ce ,  we have two Exhibi ts DCM-13. 

one we are looking a t  now, which i s  attached t o  h i s  intervenor 

testimony be relabeled as Exhib i t  13A, i t  w i l l  then match what 

we have included i n  the prehearing order. 

I would ask t h a t  the 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It appears tha t  we have done tha t  i n  

the prehearing order? Okay. And so we are now going t o  mark 

Exhibits DCM-13 - -  
MR. MELSON: 13A and DCM-14 as the next composite 

exh ib i t  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Show tha t  marked as Composite 

Exhibi t  7 

(Composite Exhib i t  7 marked for i den t i f i ca t i on .  ) 

MR. WHARTON: And j u s t  so the record i s  c lear,  Rick, 

you are j u s t  taking care o f  tha t  as a m a t t e r  o f  house cleaning. 

We are not presenting the intervenor testimony now, r i g h t ?  

MR. MELSON: I'm sorry, i t  was not attached t o  h i s  

intervenor testimony, i t  was attached t o  h i s  supplemental 

d i  rec t  . I probably m i  sspoke. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 

DOUGLAS C. MILLER 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE UTILITY CORPORATION 

DOCKET NO. 990696-WS 

February 11, 2000 

Please state  your name and business address. 

My name is Douglas C. Miller. My business address is 

14775 St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am a principal in the civil engineering firm of 

England-Thims & Miller. We are a full service civil 

engineering firm that specializes in both public and 

private infrastructure, including water and wastewater 

utilities. I currently serve as President of that 

firm. 

P l e a s e  describe your background and experience. 

I earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil 

Engineering from the University of Florida in 1975. I 

am a licensed professional engineer in the state of 

Florida and have practiced professional engineering in 

Florida f o r  the pas t  25 years.  I began my career 

working f o r  a consulting engineering company in 

-1- 
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Gainesville, Florida and later worked as a municipal 

engineer for the City of Jacksonville. I joined the 

firm of England-Thims and Miller (ETM) as a managing 

principal in 1980. Over the past 20 years I have 

directed the design of both public and private projects 

that require expertise in water resource management, 

water and wastewater planning and design, stormwater 

design, environmental permitting, transportation, and 

solid waste management. My water and wastewater 

utility experience includes w o r k  for t h e  10,000-acre 

Argyle Forest DRI in Jacksonville, t h e  4,150-acre 

Julington Creek DRI in St. Johns County, the 6,400-acre 

Saint Johns DRI in St. Johns County, and f o r  DuLay 

Utility Company, which has a 10,000-acre water and 

sewer utility franchise in Duval and Clay Counties. I 

have attached a copy of my resume as Exhibit (DCM- 

1) * 

Have you previously been qualified by courts and 

administrative agencies to give expert engineering 

testimony? 

Yes, I have been qualified as an expert  in Water and 

Sewer Utility Design, Environmental Engineering, Cost 

Estimating, Stormwater Management, and Solid Waste 

Management. 

Have you previously testified before the Florida Public 

Service Commission on utility matters? 

-2- 



I I 

1 A. 

2 

3 Q -  

4 

5 A. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 Q. 

15 A. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

2 1  

22 Q .  

23 A. 

24 

2 5  

2 6  

Yes, as the Engineer of Record for DuLay Utility 

Company in a PSC public hearing. 

What i s  your relationship to  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation and its parent company, DDI, Inc.? 

ETM has been engaged by DDI, Inc. to perform a full 

range of engineering services in connection with 

planning, permitting and development of the Nocatee 

development of regional impact. I am the principal in 

our firm in charge of that engagement and I serve as 

Engineer of Record f o r  the project. One of my 

responsibilities has been to advise DDI about utility 

matters and to perform the master planning for the 

water, wastewater and reuse system f o r  the development. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to provide information 

on the water, wastewater and reuse needs of the Nocatee 

development and to describe Nocatee Utility 

Corporation's plan fo r  meeting those needs. To avoid 

confusion, I will try to use the term "Nocatee" to 

refer to the development and the term "NUC" or 

"Utility" to refer to Nocatee Utility Corporation. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits in t h i s  proceeding? 

Yes. I am sponsoring portions of Nocatee Utility 

Corporation's Application in this proceeding, 

specifically Exhibits A through G, K and L and 

Supplemental Exhibit Q. I have also attached several 
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other exhibits which are referred to at the appropriate 

places in my testimony. 

Please provide an overview of the Nocatee development, 

As Mr. Skelton briefly described, Nocatee is a 15,000 

acre development of regional impact (DRI) located in 

Duval and St. Johns Counties. The application f o r  

development approval (ADA) for the project was filed in 

early February 2000 and is in the process of being 

reviewed by St. Johns County, Duval County, the 

Department of Community Affairs, and other interested 

agencies. 

Nocatee will be developed in five phases over a 

total development horizon of approximately 25 years. 

Phase I, which covers the time period from 

approximately 2001 to 2005, includes property in both 

Duval and S t .  Johns Counties. 

The map attached to my testimony as Exhibit 

(DCM-2) shows the Nocatee development and highlights 

the area included within Phase I. 

How does NUC's proposed service territory relate to the 

Nocatee development? 

The two areas are identical. The boundaries of the 

Nocatee development have changed slightly since NUC's 

Application was submitted last year. A revised 

territory description which matches the final 

boundaries of the Nocatee development is being filed 
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concurrently as Revised Exhibit K to the Application, 

and is depicted on the maps being filed as Revised 

Exhibit 1;. 

Have you prepared an exhibit that summarizes the 

projected water, wastewater and reuse needs for Nocatee 

by phase over the life of the development? 

Yes, I have attached those projections as Exhibit 

(DCM-3). As this exhibit shows, the Phase I needs for 

Nocatee include a potable water demand of 0.729 million 

gallons per day (MGD), a wastewater demand of 0.614 

MGD, and a reuse demand of 1.535 MGD f o r  irrigation 

purposes. These increase to 6.120 MGD of potable 

water, 5.208 MGD of wastewater, and 6.736 MGD of reuse 

demand by build-out in around 2025. 

How does NUC propose to meet the projected reuse 

demand? 

NUC proposes to meet 20% of the reuse demand with on- 

site stormwater, leaving 80% to be met by treated 

effluent. This means that 1.228 MGD of treated 

effluent will be required at the end of Phase I, 

increasing to 5.390 MGD at build-out. 

How did NUC arrive at the 80/20 split between treated 

effluent and on-site stormwater? 

This was based on ETM’s experience with Consumptive Use 

permitting and operations of irrigation systems in 

large scale community developments with go l f  courses 
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located in St. Johns County, These include Julington 

Creek Plantation DRI and Saint Johns DRI, both of which 

use reuse and stormwater as irrigation sources. 

Can Nocatee's total requirement for  treated e f f l u e n t  be 

met by wastewater generated by the project? 

No. The requirement f o r  treated effluent f o r  reuse 

exceeds the wastewater generated by the development in 

every phase, and the shortfall is most significant in 

the early stages of the development. At the end of 

Phase I, for example, only about 50% of the need f o r  

treated effluent can be met by wastewater generated on 

site. This means that NUC must secure an off-site 

source of treated effluent in order to satisfy the 

needs of the service territory. 

Could the  s h o r t f a l l  be met by increased use of 

s tormwater? 

No, stormwater for reuse is derived from the runoff 

component of rainfall. The highest irrigation demands 

obviously occur during periods of low rainfall. This 

is particularly true in years of low rainfall or 

drought. Stormwater is simply not a reliable source of 

reuse water f o r  a large community that is committed to 

meeting 100% of its irrigation demand by reuse, 
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Could the i r r i g a t i o n  demands be met us ing  a groundwater 

source? 

No. Nocatee has committed in its DRI Application for 

Development Approval to not use groundwater as a 

primary source for irrigation. This commitment is part 

of Nocatee's Comprehensive Water Resource Protection 

Plan. Specifically, the Floridan Aquifer is the 

region's primary potable water supply which should be 

conserved for obvious reasons. The surficial aquifer 

is problematic as an irrigation source for Nocatee 

because of the approximately 7,000 acres of wetland 

systems on the site. The wetland systems are primarily 

supported by the surficial groundwater system in the 

area. Large withdrawals from this source for 

irrigation would likely impact these systems adversely. 

Please describe NUC's plan for providing service to the 

territory it has applied for. 

NUC plans to obtain bulk water, wastewater and reuse 

service from JEA. JEA will provide that service at its 

tariffed bulk rates from water and wastewater treatment 

plants located in Duval County. 

The point of connection between JEA's system and 

NUC's system will be located in Duval County, at the 

boundary of NUC's service territory. NUC will own the 

water transmission and distribution facilities, the 

wastewater collection facilities, and the reuse 
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transmission, storage and distribution facilities 

within its territory. Large trunk mains will be 

provided by NUC and smaller distribution mains will be 

contributed by the developer. In addition, NUC will 

provide on-site reuse storage and pumping facilities. 

What s t eps  have been taken to obtain bulk service from 

JEA? 

On April 14, 1999, DDI and JEA entered into a Letter of 

Intent which is included in the Application as Exhibit 

A-1. The Letter of Intent outlines the general terms 

of service that will be included in a detailed 

Wholesale Service Agreement to be negotiated once NUC 

has obtained a certificate from the Commission to serve 

the Nocatee development. For ease of reference, a copy 

of this Letter of Intent (without exhibits) is attached 

as Exhibit (DCM-4). In addition, NUC recently 

obtained a letter from JEA confirming the availablity 

of wholesale water, wastewater and reuse service in the 

quantities required by the project. See Exhibit 

(DCM-5). 

What i s  the basis for your familiarity with the  JEA 

L e t t e r  of Intent? 

I participated in the negotiation of the agreement with 

JEA on behalf of DDI. 

Has there been any further interact ion with JEA since 

the date of the L e t t e r  of Intent? 
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Yes, because NUC's certification proceeding has been 

delayed as a consequence of the Commission's order 

denying its request f o r  partial waiver of the filing 

requirements, JEA and NUC have discussed attempting to 

finalize a Wholesale Service Agreement even before NUC 

obtains final certification from the Commission. 1 

currently expect that negotiations will begin before 

the end of the first quarter of this year. 

Why has NUC opted to provide service through a 

wholesale agreement with JEA rather than through the 

construction and operation of i ts  own on-site w a t e r  and 

w a s t e w a t e r  treatment facilities? 

The agreement with JEA offers a number of advantages. 

J E A  is the largest provider of utility service in the 

area, and the partnership with JEA will enable NUC and 

its customers to enjoy the benefits of JEA's experience 

and economies of scale. By having the water and 

wastewater treatment facilities located o f f - s i t e ,  NUC 

is able to help meet DDI's goal of minimizing the 

environmental impacts of the Nocatee development. 

Finally, from the outset of the development JEA can 

provide treated effluent in sufficient quantities to 

implement a reuse irrigation system throughout Nocatee. 

In short, JEA can support NUC's provision of 

reliable, timely, low-cost service in a manner that is 
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consistent with the overall environmental goals of the 

development. 

How does NUC plan to manage the day-to-day operation of 

the utility? 

As stated in Exhibit H to the Application, NUC expects 

to obtain operations, management and billing services 

from a third-party provider with experience in water 

and wastewater utility management. Under the Letter of 

Intent with JEA, NUC has the option to obtain such 

services from JEA. I expect that this will be a part 

of the upcoming negotiations with JEA on a final 

Wholesale Service Agreement. 

What if NUC is unable to reach a satisfactory 

management agreement with JEA? 

There are other qualified entities in the area that a r e  

ready and willing to provide such services. In 

December 1999, NUC issued a request f o r  qualifications 

and statement of interest in providing administrative, 

operations and maintenance services for the utility. 

In addition to JEA, United Water Resources submitted a 

comprehensive response that detailed their interest and 

ability to provide these types of services to NUC on a 

contract basis. 

What master planning work has ETM performed for the on- 

site facilities? 
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ETM has developed a master utility p lan  f o r  water, 

wastewater and reuse services for Nocatee. This 

planning effort included groundwater studies, 

alternative treatment options, as well as extensive 

hydraulic modeling of project phases and alternatives. 

Exhibit (DCM-6) represents the proposed Phase I 

service for Nocatee. Exhibit - (DCM-7) shows the 

master plan f o r  the project at buildout. 

As part of that master planning e f f o r t ,  has ETM 

prepared a c o s t  estimate fo r  the  o n - s i t e  facilities 

that w i l l  be required to serve Phase I of the 

development? 

Yes. Exhibit (DCM-8) identifies t h e  on-site 

facilities that will be required to serve Phase I of 

the development, together with their projected costs. 

This information was furnished to M s .  Swain f o r  her use 

in developing proposed rates for the utility. 

Is service by NUC consistent with the Duval and St. 

Johns County Comprehensive Plans? 

Yes. I have reviewed the portions of each county's 

comprehensive plan related to utility service and found 

NUC's plan  to be consistent with the g o a l s ,  objectives 

and policies of each plan. Specifics of this can be 

found in t h e  Comprehensive Plan Amendment f o r  the 

Nocatee P r o j e c t  to be submitted to each county. 
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In your opinion, is there an advantage to having 

utility service for  Nocatee provided by NUC as opposed 

to an unrelated third-party utility? 

Yes. One of the major policy directions t h a t  we have 

received in our role as Engineer of Record f o r  Nocatee 

is that the project is to be developed in the most 

environmentally-sensitive manner possible. D D P s  

commitment to protect the water resources in the area, 

including its commitment to employ reuse for all 

irrigation within the p r o j e c t ,  is just one example of 

the way this sensitivity is being reflected in planning 

for the project. These environmental concerns are much 

easier to address in a comprehensive manner when 

utility planning i s  conducted under the same roof as 

planning f o r  other aspects of the development. For 

this reason alone, NUC is uniquely positioned to 

provide service in a manner that is consistent with the 

needs of the development. 

As advisor to DDI on utility planning matters, did you 

consider whether the system proposed by NUC would 

compete with or duplicate any existing utility system? 

Yes I did. There is no other utility currently 

providing service in any portion of the territory that 

NUC has applied f o r .  As of today, JEA has backbone 

facilities in closer proximity to the proper ty  than any 

other potential wholesale or retail provider. Based on 
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a preliminary analysis of potential service from o t h e r  

utilities in the area, I concluded that retail service 

by NUC, supported by wholesale service from JEA, is the 

bes t  plan f o r  providing service to Nocatee. 

Q. Does that  conclude your testimony? 

A. Yes it does. 

2 5  
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 

DOUGLAS C. MILLER 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE U T I L I T Y  CORPORATION 

DOCKET NOS. 990696-WS AND 992040-WS 

July 31, 2000 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Douglas C. Miller. 

14775 St, Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am President of England-Thims & Miller, a full 

service civil engineering firm. I am Engineer of 

Record for the Nocatee development and have performed 

the master planning f o r  Nocatee Utility Corporation 

(NUC) . 
Have you previously filed direct, intervenor and 

rebuttal testimony in these consolidated dockets? 

Yes. 

What is the purpose of your supplemental testimony? 

My business address is 

The purpose is to update my earlier prefiled testimony --, 

to advise the Commission of recent developments. 

What is the most significant update? 

My direct testimony described the Letter of Intent 
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which provided f o r  NUC to obtain b u l k  water, wastewater 

and reuse service from JEA pursuant to the terms of a 

definitive service agreement to be negotiated by the 

parties. It also described the option that NUC had 

under the Letter of Intent to obtain management and 

operation services from JEA. Consistent with the 

Letter of Intent, NUC has now entered into a formal 

agreement with JEA to finalize these arrangements. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits w i t h  this testimony? 

Yes. I have attached as Exhibit (DCM-13) a copy of 

the Agreement for Wholesale Utilities, Operations, 

Management and Maintenance (Agreement) dated July 24, 

2000 between NUC and JEA. I have a l s o  attached as 

Exhibit (DCM-14) excerpts from the Sufficiency 

Response filed by the developers of Nocatee to respond 

to agency questions and requests f o r  clarification 

regarding the Application f o r  Development Approval f o r  

the Nocatee development. 

F i r s t ,  could you please summarize the key terms of the 

Agreement between NUC and JEA? 

Yes. This agreement obligates JEA to provide bulk 

water, wastewater and reuse service to NUC f o r  at least 

25 years in sufficient quantities to meet the needs of 

the Nocatee development. It also obligates JEA to 

provide operations, management and maintenance ( O & M )  

services to NUC f o r  a minimum of 10 years, with 
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automatic renewal for three additional 5-year periods. 

JEA agrees to comply with the applicable provisions of 

the Nocatee Environmental Water Resource and Area Plan 

(NEWRAP) in the provision of these services. This 

means that there will be no on-site potable water 

wells, no use of groundwater as a primary or secondary 

source for irrigation, no on-site wastewater treatment 

facilities, and no effluent discharges to the Tolomato 

River. 

What price has NUC agreed to pay JEA f o r  these 

services? 

NUC had agreed to pay a bundled rate f o r  the bulk 

utility service and the O&M services that is equal to 

80% of the J E A  retail rates that would apply if service 

were provided directly by JEA to end-users within NUC's 

service territory. Under this approach, the charges to 

NUC for O&M services will vary in proportion to the 

amount of bulk service provided to NUC. 

Please describe any other payments to JEA under the 

Agreement? 

In addition to the monthly rates f o r  bulk service and 

O&M, NUC agrees to pay JEA's prevailing connection fees 

f o r  all connections within NUC's service territory. 

Finally, NUC agrees to pay the cost of repairs to NUC's 

system in excess of $4,000 per event. 
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What happens if NUC terminates the O&M port ion of the 

Agreement before the start of any of  the  renewal 

periods? 

In that case, the rate paid by NUC to SEA f o r  t h e  b u l k  

water, wastewater and reuse service would revert to 

JEA's generally applicable rates for wholesale service. 

Are there any other  features of the Agreement t h a t  you 

wish to call to  the Commission's a t t ent ion?  

Yes. NWC has agreed, upon request by JEA, to " u p s i z e "  

NUC's on-site facilities (such as the backbone water 

transmission mains and wastewater force mains) as 

needed to permit JEA to use those facilities to provide 

regional service to areas outside Nocatee. In the 

event JEA requests such upsizing, JEA will contribute 

to the cost of construction of the Joint Project on a 

hydraulic share basis. When the Joint Project is 

placed in service, title will be transferred to JEA, 

and NUC will retain the right to u s e  its share  of the 

hydraulic capacity of the facilities. 

What i s  the b e n e f i t  to NUC of t h i s  arrangement? 

This arrangement may reduce NUC's capital cost f o r  some 

of i t s  backbone system by allowing it to share in the 

economies of scale that come from constructing larger 

facilities. For example, there may be only a 25% 

difference in cost between a smal le r  main and a l a r g e r  

main that provides twice as much hydraulic capacity. 
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If JEA requests such an u p s i z i n g ,  and pays f o r  its 

share of the main on a hydraulic capacity basis (Le. 

5 0 % ) ,  the cost to NUC of its share of the capacity will 

have decreased. 

Even if JEA holds title to some backbone mains, will 

NUC still own water, wastewater and reuse mains that 

physically cross the Duval/St. Johns County line and 

that will be used to provide service in both count ies?  

Yes. 

How do the costs  that NUC will incur under t h i s  

Agreement compare to the  cost estimates fo r  bulk 

service and O&M expenses on which the rates in NUC's 

application were originally based? 

Ms. Swain is filing supplemental testimony to address 

these cost comparisons. 

When were the other parties to this docket made aware 

of the Agreement? 

The Agreement was provided to the other parties on the 

morning of J u l y  25, 2000. Because my third deposition 

in this docket had previously been scheduled f o r  t h a t  

day, I was able to answer almost two hours of questions 

about the Agreement within less than 24 h o u r s  after it 

was executed. 

Are there any additional updates to your previously . 

filed testimony? 
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Yes. My intervenor direct testimony included as 

Exhibit (DCM-11) excerpts f r o m  the water and 

wastewater sections of Nocatee's Application f o r  

Development Approval. In July 2000, Nocatee responded 

to agency questions and comments on the ADA by filing a 

Sufficiency Response. A copy of the portions of that 

response related to utility items, including the 

portion of the response which pulls together all of the 

elements of NEWRAP, is attached to this supplemental 

testimony as Exhibit (DCM-14). 

Has there been any change since your earlier testimony 

in the date t h a t  utility service will f i rs t  be required 

i n  NUC's proposed terri tory? 

Yes, a minor one. Due to the DRI review process 

proceeding somewhat slower than originally anticipated, 

it now appears that the first need for service will be 

in the 1st or 2nd quarter of 2002, rather than in late 

2001 as referenced in my earlier testimony. 

Does that conclude your supplemental testimony? 

2 0  A. 
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Yes it does. 
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146 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections t o  any o f  the 
exhibits we have identified as Composite Exhibit 6 or Composite 
Exhibit 7? 

A No, I do not. 
Q Would you briefly summarize your direct testimony and 

supplemental di rect testimony? 
A I would be happy to. Commissioners, I am a 

registered professional engineer, president o f  England Thims & 

Miller, and serve as the engineer o f  record for Nocatee Utility 
Corporation as well as for the Nocatee development. My 
testimony relates to the water, sewer, and reuse needs o f  the 
Nocatee devel opment and Nocatee Uti 1 i ty Corporation's pl an o f  

service to meet those needs. 
Nocatee, as you have been told, is a 15,000-acre 

project which straddles the Duval and St. Johns County line, and 
it i s  a prototype master plan community designed using smart 
growth principles. The cornerstone o f  this project is 
environmental resource protection, and as it relates to this 
utility application, particularly water resource protection. 
Nocatee will be built in five phases over 25 years and will servf 
a population at build-out o f  approximately 35,000 people. 
Utility service needs begin i n  the fourth quarter o f  2002. 

The first phase o f  the project will have water demands 
ons a day, wastewater generation o f  o f  approximately 700,000 gal 



1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
11 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

500,000 gal 

3pproximate 

147 

ons a day, and w i l l  have i r r i g a t i o n  demands o f  

y 1.5 m i l l i o n  gallons a day. Even using the l i m i t e d  

available stormwater tha t  w i l l  be on s i t e ,  obviously the 

i r r i g a t i o n  demands w i l l  substant ia l ly  outpace the on-s i te  

dastewater generated and, therefore, i t  creates a s i  gni f i  cant 

reuse def i c i  ency. 

Because of the size o f  Nocatee and the fac t  t ha t  i t  i s  

in two counties, it i s  a development o f  regional impact and both 

the City o f  Jacksonvil le and S t .  Johns County Commission have 

i ssued separate devel opment orders approving t h i  s pro ject  . Both 

o f  those devel opment orders have speci f i c  envi ronmental 

protect ion conditions tha t  are ident ica l  f o r  each county. 

There are four tha t  r e l a t e  t o  t h i s  u t i l i t y .  One, therc 

w i l l  be no on -s i t e  water or wastewater treatment plants w i th in  

Nocatee. Two, there w i l l  be no on-s i te  potable water wel ls 

w i th in  the Nocatee project .  Three, there w i l l  be no wet weather 

discharge t o  the Tolomato River o r  i t s  t r i bu ta r ies .  The Tolomatc 

River i s  r e a l l y  the Intracoastal Waterway tha t  runs along i t s  

east boundary. And, fourth, t h a t  the project  w i l l  have a 100 

percent reuse for i r r i g a t i o n  commitment and tha t  wel ls can only 

be used on an emergency basis for backup should there be some 

mal function o f  the reuse system. 

The Nocatee plan o f  service tha t  i s  before you today 

meets every one o f  those four conditions tha t  have been out l ined 

by the local  government e n t i t i e s  i n  t h e i r  development orders thal 
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they issued. As my testimony described, Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation has entered i n t o  a service agreement w i th  JEA. JEA 

w i l l  provide NUC w i th  operation and maintenance as well as 

wholesale treatment service f o r  a bundled p r i ce  equal t o  80 

percent o f  JEA's r e t a i  1 ra te.  

Complying w i th  the development order, a l l  o f  JEA plant: 

tha t  are provi d i  ng service t o  Nocatee are 1 ocated o f f  - s i t e  . 
Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation's po int  o f  connection t o  the JEA 

system i s  i n  Duval County and the connection i s  t o  an ex is t ing  

20-inch force main and 24-inch water main t h a t  i s  located a t  the 

northwest corner o f  Nocatee. 

red t r i ang le  tha t  i s  j u s t  a t  the northwest corner o f  the pro jec t ,  

you should be on your reduced exhibi ts.  

I f  you look on - - i t ' s  real l y  the 

Reuse service requires Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  Corporation t o  

b u i l d  a p ipe l ine north o f  Nocatee t o  connect i n t o  the JEA reuse 

main and those costs are included i n  our cost estimates f o r  

i n i t i a l  service and i n  Ms. Swain's calculat ions. Nocatee U t i l i t :  

Corporation w i l l  be responsible fo r  the construction o f  a1 1 

on- s i t e  water, wastewater, and reuse 1 ines, 1 i f t  stat ions, and 

the construction o f  a s ta te o f  the a r t  reuse storage and pumping 

fac i  1 i t y  t o  di  s t r i  bute reuse water a t  pressure throughout 

Nocatee, including t o  every s ing le- fami ly  res ident ia l  home. 

A c r i t i c a l  issue i n  the JEA/NUC service agreement i s  

JEA's a b i l i t y  t o  meet the reclaim water needs o f  the project  fror 
day one, and tha t  was very c r i t i c a l  i n  our agreement. And also 
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have capacity t o  provide reuse throughout the bu i ld -ou t  o f  the 

project .  This eliminates any need t o  r e l y  on groundwater f o r  

i r r i g a t i o n  and meets the requirements tha t  have been out l ined by 

both governments i n  t h e i r  development orders issued f o r  the 

approval o f  t h i s  project .  

The f i r s t  area t o  be developed i n  Nocatee w i l l  be the 

town center, which i s  bisected by Duval County and S t  

County l i n e .  I f  you see the exh ib i t  t ha t  I put below 

regional map, i f  you see the A on the town center v i1  

Johns. 

the 

age you 

a major loop road system tha t  depicts the town center. Nocat 

sef 

e 

U t i  1 i t y  Corporation w i  11 construct water, wastewater, and reuse 

throughout the town center through a grided d i s t r i bu t i on  system 

and co l lec t ion  system which w i l l  crisscross back and f o r t h  acros: 

the county l i n e  and create one cohesive uniform u t i l i t y  i n  both 

counties t o  serve t h i s  f i r s t  phase o f  the downtown center. 

That completes the summary o f  my testimony. 

MR. MELSON: Mr. M i l l e r  i s  tendered f o r  cross 

exami nati on. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . M r  . Menton. 

MR. MENTON: Yes, s i r .  Just a couple o f  questions, 

M r .  Chairman. Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MENTON: 

Q Good afternoon, M r .  M i l l e r .  

A Good afternoon. 
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I j u s t  have a couple o f  quick questions f o r  you. Q I n  

‘our d i rec t  testimony you indicate t h a t  you were invo ved i n  

;he negotiat ion o f  the l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  agreement between DDI  

ind JEA. Do you reca l l  that? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Could you explain t o  the Commission how those 

liscussions and negotiations came about? 

A Well, i n  order t o  meet the environmental standards 

;hat have been established fo r  the project ,  my job was t o  

levelop a plan o f  service tha t  would meet those standards. 

\nd i t  became obvious t o  us i n  the ea r l y  analysis o f  u t i l i t y  

;ervice tha t  we were going t o  have a reuse deficiency. And so 

ve i n i t i a l l y  contacted the JEA because i t  was our understanding 

;hat they had excess wastewater e f f l uen t  t ha t  they were 

lischarging t o  the S t .  Johns River. And we f e l t  l i k e  tha t  

vould be benef ic ia l  i f  we could u t i l i z e  tha t ,  tha t  resource t o  

neet the reuse deficiency as well  as el iminate tha t  discharge 

From the r i v e r  

Q So was it DDI  then tha t  approached JEA about t h i s  

rrangement t o  begin with? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Were you also involved in the negotiations tha t  lead 

~p t o  the wholesale agreement, which i s  Exhib i t  13A t o  your 

test i mony? 

A Yes, I was. 
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Q And who was the primary negotiator on behalf o f  DDI  

v i th respect t o  tha t  agreement? 

A 

Q 

It was myself and one or two attorneys. 

And during the course o f  those negotiations, d i d  JEA 

w e r  request Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation t o  be a f ron t  o r  a 

strawman f o r  JEA r e t a i l  service i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A No, they d i d  not. 

Q 

jevel opment? 

I s  t ha t  your understanding o f  the JEA/NUC 

A No, i t  i s  not. 

MR. MENTON: I don't have any fur ther  questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: No questions, M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Wharton. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR . WHARTON : 

Q Good afternoon, M r .  M i l l e r .  

A Good afternoon. 

Q Le t ' s  s t a r t  w i th  a question tha t  Commissioner Jaber 

3sked e a r l i e r .  You have got some color maps attached t o  your 

supplemental d i  rec t  , correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And one o f  those maps i s  labeled Exhib i t  B, Page 19 

D f  26? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Actua ly I th ink  tha t  i s  the d i rec t ,  
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rlr. Wharton, where the color maps are. I may be wrong. 

MR. WHARTON: I th ink  we are t a l  k ing about a l a t e r  - - 

and i t  may very w e l l  be both, M r .  Chairman, but I t h ink  t h i s  i s  

a l a t e r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Sorry . 
MR. WHARTON: No, t h a t ' s  okay. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Those colored 1 ines - - are you looking a t  t h a t  map 

now, M r .  M i l l e r ?  

A Yes, s i r ,  I am. Exhib i t  B? 

Q Yes. 

A Yes. 

Q Those colored 1 ines running through the development 

there, red i s  force main, blue i s  water main, and green i s  

reuse main, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And those are the so-cal led j o i n t  projects, 

correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And the j o i n t  projects are f a c i l i t i e s  tha t  are t o  be 

over-sized per the request o f  JEn such tha t  there w i l l  be more 
capacity i n  those f a c i l i t i e s  t h a n  i s  necessary t o  serve only 

the development , correct? 

A These l i nes  were i d e n t i f i e d  by JEA as l i n e s  tha t  they 

would l i k e  the option t o  over-size i f  they so choose, tha t  i s  
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:orrect. 

Q 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Okay. And those l i nes  w i l l  be b u i l t  t o  JEA's 

And tha t  i s  an option tha t  your agreement gave them? 

jpeci f icat ions? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Who w i l l  pay f o r  those l ines? 

Well, i t  w i l l  be j o i n t l y  pa id fo r  by Nocatee U t i l i t y  

:orPoration w i l l  pay f o r  t h e i r  hydraul ic share o f  the capacity 

needed t o  serve Nocatee U t i l i t y  and a l l  the service area for 
UUC, and then the cost o f  upsizing f o r  any excess capacity tha t  

JEA wants t o  s ize them f o r  t o  serve areas outside o f  NUC's 
franchise JEA w i l l  pay fo r .  

Q 
A Yes, tha t  i s  correct. 

Q And then they w i l l  be given t o  JEA, correct? 

A 

But NUC w i l l  pay f o r  par t  o f  the l i nes ,  correct? 

JEA w i l l  have ownership o f  the l i nes  and NUC w i l l  

have ownership o f  the hydraul ic share necessary t o  serve the 

Nocatee devel opment. 

Q But tha t  por t ion o f  those l i nes  t h a t  NUC paid f o r  

w i l l  be contr ibuted t o  JEA a t  no cost, correct? 

A A t  no cost, no. JEA i s  going t o  pay for t h e i r  share 

o f  the l i n e  and Nocatee w i l l  pay f o r  t h e i r  share o f  the l i n e  

tha t  they are going t o  reserve, and so i t  w i l l  be j o i n t l y  

funded . 
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Q 

A 

But afterwards JEA w i l l  own 100 percent o f  the l i n e ?  

JEA w i l l  own the pipe and NUC w i l l  own par t  o f  the 

hole i n  the pipe. 

Q So NUC w i l l  have reserved some o f  the capacity o f  the 

system, but JEA w i l l  own the physical property, correct? 

A That i s  correct, they w i l l  own the physical l i n e .  

Q All r i g h t .  S i r ,  do you agree t h a t  when you f i l e d  

your d i rec t  testimony you only had a l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  agreement 

w i th  JEA, such as it i s ?  

A That i s  correct. 

Q And, i n  fact ,  t h a t  l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  only contemplated 

tha t  you would f i n a l i z e  the deal a f te r  NUC received a 

c e r t i f i c a t e ,  correct? 

A I don' t  reca l l  t ha t  spec i f ic  item, but i t  was not 

f i na l i zed  a t  tha t  po int  i n  time. 

Q Now, do you agree t h a t  i n i t i a l l y  when you were doing 

the l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  w i th  JEA there was language i n  the l e t t e r  

o f  i n ten t  tha t  contemplated the p o s s i b i l i t y  of on-s i te  well 

f i e l  ds? 

A A t  tha t  po int  i n  time i t  was - -  JEA requested tha t  

option i n  the l e t t e r  o f  in ten t ,  but as I reca l l  i t  also 

required JEA t o  meet a l l  the conditions o f  the development 

order 

Q But tha t  language regarding the p o t e n t i a l i t y  f o r  

on -s i t e  well s i tes was i n  there, correct? 
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d have t o  review it, 

Q Do you agree t h a t  your direct testimony only says 
says ;hat there will be no groundwater for irrigation, i t  never 

:here will be no on-site wells or facilities? 
A 

Q 

I'm sorry, could you repeat t h a t  question. 
Yes. Do you agree - - does your direct testimony 

mywhere i n  i t  t h a t  there will not be any on-site wells or 
creatment pl ants? 

A I d o n ' t  recall specifically. I mean, I could re\ 
it i f  i t  would be helpful. 

i ew 

Q Do you t h i n k  i t  will speak for itself i n  t h a t  regard? 
A We1 1 ,  I just d o n ' t  remember. I t  has been over a year 

since I filed t h a t .  
Q Do you recall t h a t  when you f i  

there t h a t  there would be no groundwater 
t h a t ,  s i r ,  i s  a t  Page 7 ,  Line 3. 

ed t h a t  you did put i n  

for irrigation? And 

A There is no groundwater for irrigation as a primary 
ir secondary source other t h a n  the backup, emergency backup for 
meuse 

Q And do you agree a t  the time you filed your direct 
testimony the application for development approval was a1 ready 
f i 1 ed? 

A I ,  quite frankly, don ' t  remember the timing. 

Q I want you t o  take a look a t  Page 4, Line 6 ,  of your 
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d i rect  testimony. 

A Okay. 

Q So you would agree tha t  when you f i l e d  t h i s  testimony 

the appl i ca t i on  f o r  development approval had a1 ready been 

f i 7 ed? 

A What was - - i f  you would help me w i th  the date o f  n 

f i l i n g  o f  the d i rec t  testimony. 

Q I th ink  i t  says on the f ron t ,  M r .  M i l l e r ,  February 

11. 

A Yes. And i t  says the pro jec t  was f i l e d  i n  Februar) 

so i t  was w i th in  probably days o f  t h i s .  

Q 

A Yes . 
Q 
A 

And i t  says i s  i n  the process o f  being reviewed? 

Wouldn't tha t  make you th ink  i t  was already f i l e d ?  

Yes. 

t h i s  testimony was f i l e d .  

I believe i t  was only  a few days maybe before 

Q Let me ask you something. You said tha t  NUC - -  i n  

your summary you said tha t  NUC would be responsible f o r  a l l  

on-s i te  water and wastewater l ines ,  i s  t ha t  r i gh t?  

A That i s  correct. 

Q Is NUC going t o  have a pol i c y  requi r ing developers LO 

contr ibute l i nes  tha t  l i e  w i th in  t h e i r  development? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Is the Nocatee - -  what we have been re fe r r ing  t o  the 

Nocatee development i s  r e a l l y  going t o  be possibly a series o f  
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opments, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. And w i th in  each one o f  those the developers 

be required t o  contr ibute the types o f  f a c i l i t i e s  t h a t  

u t i 1  i t i e s  normally require developers t o  contribute? 

- A Well, the in ternal  development parcels w i l l  be 

contributed l i nes  by the developer and not the u t i l i t y  pa r t  

w i l l  provide the master what I w i l l  c a l l  the spine or backbone 

system and master reuse wastewater/water transmi ssion mains, i f  

you w i l l ,  t ha t  go t o  each parcel. And costs o f  those 

f a c i l i t i e s  are out l ined i n  the cost estimates tha t  I have 

provided t o  Ms. Swain f o r  phase one o f  t h i s  case. 

Q Let me ask you a couple o f  questions about your 

re la t ionship w i th  JEA. Do you agree tha t  any speci f ic  type o f  

customer tha t  hooks up on NUC' s side o f  the point  o f  del i ve ry  

w i l l  be charged a connection fee which w i l l  be col lected as i f  

tha t  customer was a customer o f  JEA and then tha t  amount o f  

money w i l l  be sent t o  JEA? 

A Well, not exactly, no. I f  you are a Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation customer you w i l l  pay - - there w i l l  be a connection 

fee tha t  i s  col lected based on the t a r i f f  tha t  i s  issued by 

t h i s  Commission and tha t  por t ion tha t  i s  equivalent t o  JEA's 

connection fee w i l l  be remitted t o  JEA. 

Q 

w i l l  be larger than the fee tha t  i s  owed t o  JEA? 

So i t ' s  safe t o  say then tha t  i n  each case the fee 
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A 

Q 
Assuming our current rates are approved, yes. 

So t h a t  i s  the way the rates are set up, i s  tha t  tha t  

1 go t o  JEA and the Dortion o f  what JEA would have charged w i  

rest  w i l l  go t o  NUC? 

A That i s  correct. That pays f o r  

treatment fac i  1 i ti es. 

the cost o f  t h e i r  

Q And I th ink  I asked you t h i s  question a few moments 

ago about the j o i n t  projects, but  i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  NUC i s  

required t o  design a l l  o f  the f a c i l i t i e s  t o  JEA's standards and 

specs? 
A Yes. JEA's standards and specs are somewhat the 

industry standard fo r  northeast Florida, so t h a t  would be 
pre t ty  typ ica l  . 

Q Do you agree tha t  JEA required tha t  your contract 

d i t h  them contain a r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  refusal i n  favor o f  JEA? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q And so i f  the system i s  ever offered f o r  sale t o  a 

t h i r d  par ty  or  a t h i r d  par ty  offered t o  buy it, i n  tha t  case 

JEA would be able t o  exercise tha t  r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  refusal? 

A 

Q 

I th ink  the r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  refusal speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  

And JEA has indicated t o  you tha t  a t  some point  they 

would be interested i n  buying the system, haven't they? 

A Not d i rec t l y ,  no. 

Q S i r ,  do you reca l l  - -  
MR. WHARTON: And you w i l l  have t o  forgive me, 
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Commissioners. Poor Mr. M i l l e r  has been deposed three times i n  

h i s  own capacity and once s i t t i n g  as the voice o f  NUC, so I am 

wrest l ing w i th  four d i f f e ren t  deposition t ranscr ip ts  here. 

BY MR . WHARTON : 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  do you reca l l  t ha t  1 took your deposition 

on July 25th. 2000? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And a t  Page 45, Line 16 thereof, and I w i l l  l e t  you 

f i n d  that .  

I am. 

It looks l i k e  you are wrest l ing w i th  the same th ing  

A Bear w i th  me, I'll get there. 

Q Sure. 

A 1 don ' t  know i f  t h i s  means my answers are too long or 

your questions are too many. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Probably equal par ts  o f  both, I'm 
sure 

A 

Q A l l  r i gh t ,  s i r .  Do you reca l l  a t  Page 45, Line 16 o f  

I am on Page 45, what was the l i ne?  

tha t  deposi ti on : 

"Question: Did JEA ever say, you know, we would be 

interested i n  buying the system, o r  NUC or any a f f i l i a t e d  par ty  

ever say, you know, we would be interested i n  se l l i ng  t h i s  systei 

a t  some point? 

"Answer: O f  course. That 's what the r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  

refusal was about. I' 
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Do you stand by tha t  answer today? 

A Wel l ,  I t h ink  tha t  i s  - -  I wouldn't c a l l  tha t  - -  yes, 

I stand by my answer. 

Q Okay. And do you agree tha t  the agreement requires 

tha t  i f  the system i s  ever sold tha t  developer contributed 

port ions o f  the u t i l i t y  i n  Duval County would be given t o  JEA 
free? 

A I f  those l i n e s  are normally contr lbuted under JEA's 
po l ic ies ,  JEA would not be paying fo r  those i f  i t  was an asset 

purchase. 

i s  correct. 

I f  JEA purchased, or i f  JEA became the owner, t ha t  

Q Okay. Let me make sure I have t h i s  s t ra ight .  I f  

someone e l  se bought the system, doesn ' t your agreement requi r e  

tha t  tha t  par t  i n  Duval County t o  the extent t ha t  i t  has been 

contributed t o  the u t i l i t y  and not paid f o r  by NUC, would be 

given t o  JEA fo r  free? 

A No. No, t ha t  i s  not my understanding o f  the 

agreement. I f  i t  i s  - -  i f  the u t i l i t y  was b i furcated such tha t  

the S t .  Johns County por t ion  was sold t o  one- th i rd  par ty  

u t i l i t y  provider and JEA purchased the Duval County port ion o f  

the system, tha t  those l i n e s  tha t  would normally have been 

contributed under JEA's pol icy ,  not NUC's po l i cy  which w i l l  be 

d i f f e ren t  than JEA's po l icy ,  but under JEA's p o l i c y  those l i nes  

they woul d not pay f o r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: What happens w i th  the l i nes  tha t  



1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

161 

woul d have been contributed under Nocatee ' s pol icy? 

THE WITNESS: Well, i f  they were contributed, and I 

th ink I have previously t e s t i f i e d  tha t  I believe that  NUC's 

po l i cy  may be more str ingent than JEA's pol icy ,  so we may have 

more devel oper contributed 1 i nes than JEA' s pol i cy woul d 

require. Under tha t  circumstance, then JEA would have t o  

purchase the l i nes  tha t  were contributed t o  NUC, but would not 

have been contributed under JEA's pol i cy .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Well, l e t  me ask you something, M r .  M i l l e r ,  j u s t  so 

the record i s  clear. You agree tha t  i f  NUC was sold t o  a t h i r d  

party, JEA would get a l l  the port ions i n  Duval County that  NUC 

had not paid f o r  free? 

A No, I th ink  I j us t  t e s t i f i e d  t o  the contrary. 

Q Okay. Let's take a look a t  Page 48 of the deposition 

that  we took on Ju ly  25th, 2000. 

A Okay. 

Q And do you recal 

a t  Page 48, Line 6: 

t h i s  question and answer s ta r t ing  

"Question: Te l l  me your understanding o f  what tha t  

means. 

"Answer: My understanding i s  tha t  the portions o f  the 

u t i l i t y  tha t  the u t i l i t y  has not made an investment i n  wi th in  

Duval County, i n  other words , developer contributed portions o f  
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;he u t i l i t y  t ha t  JEA would not pay fo r  i f  there was a t h i r d  part) 

iurchaser and tha t  for those port ions i n  Duval County. 

"Question: So, i n  fact ,  i f  NUC was sold t o  a t h i r d  

iarty purchaser, JEA would get a l l  the port ions i n  Duval County 

that NUC had not paid for? 

"Answer: That i s  correct. 'I 

A Well, 1 th ink I have j u s t  added 

that statement. 

Q You are now saying that  JEA wou 

those portions? 

a c l a r i f i c a t i o n  t o  

d have t o  pay f o r  

A I'm saying they would have t o  pay fo r  those port ions 

that were contributed but would not have been contributed under 

JEA's pol icy.  

but under tha t  circumstance i t  ' s j u s t  a c l  a r i  f i  cation. 

I mean, we are speculating what tha t  might be, 

Q And, M r .  M i l l e r ,  I apologize f o r  going backwards, but 

while I am on t h i s  page. You d id  agree, s i r ,  i t  seemed t o  me 

l i k e  you gave an answer that  was a l i t t l e  more complex, tha t  

JEA has expressed a t  some point  an in te res t  i n  acquiring the 

system? 

A Well, and I th ink my answer was that  we haven't - - 
there has been no d i rec t  expression other than what i s  i n  the 

r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  refusal ,  and I th ink tha t  t h a t  i s  exact ly what I 

t e s t i f i e d  to .  

Q Do you reca l l  i n  the same deposition we have been 
re fe r r ing  t o  a t  Page 46, Line 22: 
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"Question: So JEA expressed a t  some point  an in te res t  

i n  acquiring the system? 

"Answer: Absol u te l  y. " 

A What l i n e  i s  that? 

Q Page 46, -ine 22. 

A Yes. 

Q 

A Yes, absolutely. Related t o  the r i g h t  o f  f i r s t  

And you stand by tha t  testimony? 

refusal. 

Q Okay. And you agree, s i r ,  don ' t  you, t ha t  i f  the 

system i s  sold, JEA i s  the most log ica l  purchaser? 

A 

Q 

A 

We are not evaluating sale. 

Does t h a t  mean you don' t  agree w i th  that? 

That means there has been no evaluation, so I don' t  

have an opinion one way or the other. 

Q 

deposition. Do you see a t  Line 14 thereof your answer: 

Well, l e t ' s  take a look a t  Page 49 o f  t ha t  same 

"Answer: I would say JEA i s  ce r ta in l y  the most logica- 

purchaser. 

A 

Q 

I don' t  th ink  there i s  any question about tha t . "  

I would agree w i th  tha t ,  yes. 

And do you agree tha t  the Nocatee developer would not 

be desirous of seeing s p l i t  service i n  the development unless 

he was get t ing a very, very handsome pr ice  f o r  the remaining 

part  o f  h i s  u t i l i t y ?  

A Yes, I don' t  th ink  s p l i t  service would be i n  the 
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Q Well, but tha t  would be unless the developer was 

ge t t ing  a very, very handsome p r i ce  for the remaining par t  o f  

the u t i l i t y ,  i s  tha t  correct? 

A Well , I th ink what I was saying i s  i t  i s  very 

un l ike ly .  I mean, obviously everything can be bought a t  a 

price. 

Q But you do agree t h a t  you made tha t  statement i n  your 

deposition? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q You agree, don' t  you, t ha t  i t  wou 

JEA t o  run a reuse l i n e  alone i n t o  the deve 

reuse t o  Nocatee, tha t  could be done? 

d be possible for 
opment and provide 

A Well, we investigated that ,  and JEA said they would 

not dot tha t .  Although i t  phys ica l ly  i s  possible, they 

decl i ned t o  provi de reuse on1 y servi  ce . 
Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  d i d  JEA make a proposal t o  S t .  Johns 

County w i th in  the l a s t  couple o f  months tha t  would have 

i nvol ved JEA essenti a1 1 y forwardi ng monies t o  S t  . Johns County 

so tha t  the county would agree t o  allow JEA t o  provide r e t a i l  

sa t i s fac t ion  over a large area i n  northern S t .  Johns County? 

MR. MENTON: Mr. Chairman, a t  t h i s  po int  I would 

interpose an objection. He i s  asking Mr. M i l l e r ,  who i s  a 

r e l a t i v e  of Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation, about a proposal tha t  

JEA made t o  the County Commission i n  response t o  a request by 
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the County Commission f o r  a proposal. M r .  M i l l e r  was not 

d i r e c t l y  involved i n  tha t  presentation and cannot speak on 

behalf o f  JEA w i th  respect t o  the proposal, nor can he speak on 
behalf o f  the county as t o  why the county requested such a 

proposal from JEA. 

MR. WHARTON: You know, neither one o f  those things 

vas my question. And I am less interested about hearing tha t  

from JEA who has a contractual ob l igat ion t o  support everything 

NUC says than I am about what t h i s  witness knows about the deal. 

I am leading up t o  a meeting tha t  he had w i th  people from JEA. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why don ' t  you get t o  t h a t  meeting, 

because I don' t  reca l l  t ha t  t ha t  i s  a par t  o f  - -  t h a t  par t i cu la r  

JEA encounter i s  a par t  o f  h i s  testimony, i s  it? 

MR. WHARTON: Well, but t o  the extent t h a t  he says 

t h i s  i s  the arrangement we are going t o  have w i th  JEA, and tha t  

since tha t  has been entered i n t o  they have had a s i t  down 

meeting w i th  JEA wanting t o  t a l k  about acquiring them, I th ink  

it is  re1 evant . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I th ink  i t  i s  a b i t  f a r  a f i e ld .  I 

w i l l  al low questioning as t o  d i r e c t  discussions t h a t  he was i n  

d i r e c t l y  or i n d i r e c t l y  through h i s  association w i t h  NUC a par t  

o f .  Going i n t o  del iberations before JEA's governing body i s  a 

b i t  f a r  a f i e ld .  

MR. WHARTON: And I w i l l  ask no questions i n  tha t  

regard and d i d  not intend to .  
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3Y MR. WHARTON : 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  are you aware o f  the JEA proposal? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q And i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  a t  some po in t  JEA came t o  

inquire whether you were w i l l i n g  t o  discuss JEA's provision o f  

r e t a i l  services t o  the development? 

A Yes. As I understand JEA's proposal a t  the County 

Sommission, and I was not a t  tha t  meeting, but my understanding 

das t h a t  they made a proposal t o  service areas i n  the 

northeastern par t  o f  S t .  Johns County exclusive o f  Nocatee, the 

Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation franchise. And t h a t  as I 

understand it, S t .  Johns County requested them t o  meet w i th  

Nocatee U t i l i t y  Corporation t o  see i f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation would want t o  enter i n t o  or be a pa r t  o f  tha t  

master agreement . 
Q So they came i n  there, they came i n  t o  discuss the 

provision o f  r e t a i l  service wi th  you by JEA? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q 

A Yes, I would say i n  the l a s t  two months. Whenever 

And tha t  j u s t  occurred i n  the l a s t  couple o f  months? 

JEA - -  shor t l y  a f t e r  the presentation t o  the County Commission. 

Q Do you agree, Mr. Mi l l e r ,  t h a t  under your agreement 

wi th  JEA there could be other j o i n t  projects other than the one 

tha t  we have talked about? 

A Yes. The agreement a1 ows for JEA t o  choose other 
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pipel ines tha t  are proposed for construction t o  be considered a 

j o i n t  pro ject  . 
Q Okay. But the one tha t  we talked about i s  the only 

one they have i d e n t i f i e d  a t  t h i s  t ime? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And when I say the one, I mean a l l  three l ines,  

correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Has JEA indicated t o  you why they might want t o  b u i l d  

l i nes  w i th  excess capacity tha t  e x i t  out the east side o f  the 

devel opment? 

A No, they have not. 

Q Okay. Would you agree tha t  t ha t  appears t o  be headed 

d i r e c t l y  i n t o  lands tha t  i t  i s  your c l i e n t ' s  pos i t ion there i s  

not need fo r  service fo r?  

A That i s  correct w i th  the exception o f  one small 

development a t  the east end ca l led Marsh Harbor, which you and 

I have talked about many times i n  the many depositions. 

Q Okay. So there i s  potent ia l  development l y i n g  i n  

between Intercoastal ' s  service area and Nocatee refer red t o  as 

Marsh Harbor? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q You agree tha t  your agreement w i th  JEA indicates tha t  

they only have the current capacity f o r  phase one o f  the 

devel opment? 
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The agreement i s  they have reserved capacity f o r  

phase one and they have guaranteed capacity throughout the 

bui ld-out  o f  the project .  

A 

Q And you agree tha t  they w i l l  maintain t o t a l  control 

over how they w i l l  provide tha t  capacity i n  the subsequent 

phases? 

A 

Q 

A f te r  phase one, tha t  i s  correct. 

Le t ' s  t a l k  about the groundwater study tha t  the 

developer caused t o  have done. The Nocatee landowner d i d  cause 

a water supply study t o  be done t o  evaluate what water supply 

was avai lable i n  the lands beneath the Nocatee development, 

correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And you would agree tha t  t ha t  was an elaborate study 

o f  the avai 1 abi 1 i t y  o f  water  resources w i th in  the devel opment? 

A 

Q 
It was an excel lent study. 

And one resu l t  o f  tha t  par t i cu la r  data co l lec t ion  

e f f o r t  was a determination tha t  there were adequate water 

resources under the development? 

A That the development could be - - yes, t ha t  i s  

correct. 

Q Now, t h a t  par t i cu la r  study t o  your mind became moot 

once you entered the deal w i th  JEA, correct? 

A Yes. That wasn't why i t  became moot, but it d i d  

become moot. 
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Q And as we s i t  here today you don' t  t h ink  there was 

anything de f ic ien t  or incorrect  about tha t  study, r i gh t?  

A 

Q 

The study i t s e l f  was correct. 

Do you agree tha t  your appl icat ion f o r  development 

approval had several a f f i rmat ive statements about ge t t ing  

service from JEA even though when the ADA was submitted the 

deal w i th  JEA wasn't f ina l ized? 

A Well, the commitments t h a t  a re  i n  the development 

order are commitments no matter who provides service, so those 

are commitments regardl ess o f  who the servi ce provider i s .  

Q I understand tha t ,  s i r .  But do you agree tha t  your 

ADA appl icat ion had several a f f i rmat ive  statements about 

ge t t ing  service from JEA even though a t  tha t  time your deal 

w i th  JEA wasn't f ina l ized? 

A I believe a t  tha t  po int  i n  time we had a l e t t e r  o f  

i n ten t  and we had a service a v a i l a b i l i t y  l e t t e r  tha t  was a par t  

o f  the ADA submittal package, which i s  the standard documents 

tha t  are submitted as par t  o f  the ADA process. 

Q 

several a f f i rmat ive statements about receiving service from 

JEA? 

And do you agree tha t  i n  your ADA appl i ca t i on  you had 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And the parts o f  the application tha t  you 

draf ted never mentioned Intercoastal,  d i d  they? 

A No, they d i d  not. 
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Q And i n  July of l a s t  year, you f i l e d  something ca l led 

a suf f i c i  ency response, d i  dn I t you? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And i s  i t  f a i r  t o  say tha t  a suf f ic iency response was 

required by the fac t  t ha t  the process allowed several o f  the 

commenting agencies t o  send you several questions they s t i l l  

had about your appl icat ion? 

A Is tha t  a question? 

Q 
A It's a f a i r  statement. 

Q Okay. And you agree tha t  i n  tha t  July suff ic iency 

response you made the fol lowing representation, and you were 

re fe r r i ng  t o  the groundwater study we have j u s t  been 

discussing, "The study demonstrates tha t  the s i t e  contains an 

adequate and sustai nab1 e groundwater supply o f  high qual i t y  

water suf f i c i  ent t o  serve the bui 1 der o f  the Nocatee project  

w i th  minimal impacts o f f - s i t e  or t o  ex is t ing  users under the 

Nocatee 1 and"? 

Is i t  a f a i r  statement? 

A I have not read tha t ,  but tha t  sounds correct. 

Q 

A That i s  correct. 

Q 

And tha t  was a peer review study, i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

And you s t i l l  agree w i th  the statement tha t  the study 

demonstrated there was enough high qua l i t y  water under the 

lands o f  Nocatee t o  serve the needs o f  the development a l l  the 

way through bui ld-out? 
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A That i s  correct. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Let me ask you a couple o f  questions 

about when the Nocatee developer f i r s t  began t o  look fo r  

u t i l i t y  service. Do you agree tha t  a t  some po in t  you made a 

decision about who you were going t o  s o l i c i t  information from 

i n  terms o f  potent ia l  u t i l i t y  providers? 

A I don' t  reca l l  tha t ,  no. 

Q Well, do you agree tha t  the only e n t i t i e s  the 

devel oper approached f o r  u t i  1 i t y  servi ce were JEA and United 

Water? 

A I don' t  know tha t  t ha t  i s  t o t a l l y  correct, no. I 

mean, there was an evaluation as par t  o f  the data co l lec t ion  

phase o f  a l l  the potent ia l  sources and providers, and I believe 

we decided tha t  only JEA and United Water were potent ia l  

providers fo r  the project .  

Q And the reason tha t  you decided tha t  was based on the 

fac t  t ha t  those were the two largest  providers, rather than any 

negative information you had about anyone else? 

A Well, as I reca l l ,  they were the only  ones tha t  were 

on the west side o f  the Intracoastal Waterway that had 

substantial resources avai lable t o  them. And we f e l t  l i k e  they 

were the only potent ia l  v iab le service al ternat ives.  

Q And you made tha t  decision because they were the two 

largest  providers rather than any negative feel ings you had 

about any other en t i t i es ,  correct? 
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A I mean, qu i te  f rankly,  i t  has been about two and a 

h a l f  years, so I don' t  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y  what the basis was. 

Q Okay. Le t ' s  go t o  a new deposition. The one we took 

3n March 1, 2000. Are you there, s i r ?  

A I ' m  sorry. 

Q March 1, 2000. That was the very f i r s t  one. 

A I was th ink ing 2001, sorry. What was the page? 

Q Page 54. Do you reca l l  t h i s  exchange, Line 23: 

"Question: So tha t  then was the basis o f  the decision 

on who t o  s o l i c i t  the information from rather than any negative 

feel ings about anybody tha t  you d i d n ' t  s o l i c i t  the information 

from. 

"Answer: I don ' t  have any negative feel ings about 

anybody. 

"Question: Rea 

"Answer: Yes 

"Question: But 

United and JEA. 

1 y? 

tha t  was the reason tha t  you went t o  

"Answer: It was because they were the two largest 

providers. " 

Do you stand by t ha t  testimony? 

A I do. 

Q Okay. I t  i s  NUC's posit ion, i s n ' t  it, tha t  20 

percent o f  the i r r i g a t i o n  demand for Nocatee can be sa t i s f i ed  

w i th  stormwater? 
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A We do not bel ieve more than i t  i s  feasible t o  - - more 
than 20 percent could be sa t i s f i ed  by stormwater. Our desire 

i s  t o  use no stormwater and use 100 percent reuse. 

Q But you do bel ieve tha t  20 percent o f  the i r r i g a t i o n  

demand fo r  Nocatee could be sa t i s f i ed  by stormwater? 

A A t  bu i ld -ou t  I do. 
Q Okay. And t h a t  stormwater wouldn't be something tha t  

would be going through the reuse system o f  the u t i l i t y ,  it i s  

going t o  be i n  separate and delineated areas? 

That i s  correct. 

And tha t  may or  may not be operated by the u t i l i t y ,  

That i s  correct. 

Okay. So i t  i s  possible tha t  20 percent o f  the reuse 

the Nocatee development will be provided by e n t i t i e s  

and apart from the u t i l i t y ?  

It may be. 

Do you agree tha t  the project ions you have i n  your 

application f o r  reuse demand fo r  your g o l f  courses are on the 

high end? 

A I t h ink  they are appropriate f o r  t h i s  stage o f  the 
project  f o r  pl anni ng purposes . 

Q But you would agree tha t  those par t i cu la r  projections 

are on the high end? 

A Well, since none o f  the go1 f courses have been 
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designed and/or s i ted,  I th ink  i t  would be speculation t o  say 

whether they are high o r  low. I t h ink  they a re  appropriate fo r  

p l  anni ng purposes. 

Q Well, l e t  me have you 

March 1, 2000. 

A What page? 

Q Page 69, Line 6: 

ook a t  t ha t  same deposition, 

"Question: Would you say they are on the high end? 

"Answer: The project ions? 

"Question: Yes. 

"Answer: Yes. I' 

Do you reca l l  we were t a l k i n g  about the golf courses 

there, i f  you go back a couple o f  l i nes .  And i f  you th ink  tha t  

they are on the high end i s  appropriate, I mean, tha t  reconciles 

your answers. But you do agree those project ions are on the higt 

end? 

A As I reca l l  we were t a l k i n g  about are these higher 

than other g o l f  courses tha t  use less, and I believe I said 

yes, there are, and there are ones t h a t  use more, and I said 

yes, and you asked me t o  name some and so you said a re  these 

high, and I said well - -  

Q I may be stupid, M r .  Miller, but I don't th ink  I 

asked you i f  they were higher than other g o l f  courses who use 

less. I th ink  we were ta l k ing  about the average g o l f  courses 
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there i n  tha t  northeast par t  o f  F lo r ida  and you agreed they 

w r e  on the high end. 

that  independently r i g h t  now? 
Let me j u s t  ask you i f  you agree w i th  

A Yes. 

Q Thank you. Do you agree tha t  JEA i s  discharging a 

l o t  o f  e f f luen t  i n t o  the S t .  Johns River r i g h t  now tha t  they 

would l i k e  t o  use as reuse? 

MR. MENTON: I'm going t o  object t o  the question. I 

don' t  know that  he has established tha t  Mr. M i l l e r  has the 

adequate predicate t o  answer what JEA i s  doing. 

MR. WHARTON: Mr. M i l l e r  has ta lked about J E A ' s  

capacity t o  provide m i  11 ions o f  gal 1 ons o f  reuse t o  t h i  s 

devel opment . 
MR. MENTON: But I don' t  know tha t  he i s  f a m i l i a r  wi th 

what JEA i s  doing wi th  respect t o  i t s  treatment plants or how i t 

i s  disposing o f  i t s  e f f luen t  a t  i t s  treatment plants. 

MR. WHARTON: That's what h i s  answer w i l l  reveal. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Your question was d id  he know i f  JEA 

was del iver ing the e f f luen t  i n t o  the r i ve r .  

MR. WHARTON: S t .  Johns River. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And I th ink tha t  i s  - -  the objection 

has some m e r i t  t o  that .  Do you want t o  rephrase that? He has 

not demonstrated he has any idea what i s  happening wi th  J E A ' s  

ef f luent  disposal. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 
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Q Do you have any idea what i s  happening wi th  JEA's 
eff luent disposal from i t s  Mandarin plant current ly? 

A 

Q 

r i gh t?  

I have a l im i ted  knowledge o f  JEA's system, yes. 

There i s  some e f f luen t  coming out o f  t h a t  p lant,  

A That i s  correct. 

Q Where i s  i t  going? 

A My understanding o f  today that  i t  i s  being discharged 

i n t o  the S t .  Johns River.  

Q And w i th in  tha t  understanding you understand that  

about 6 m i l l i o n  gallons a day is  going i n t o  the S t .  Johns River 

from tha t  plant? 

A 

Q A l l  r i gh t .  Let me ask you some questions about your 

That i s  my understanding, yes. 

appl icat ions f o r  development approval. Those were appl icat ions 

that  you were the primary indiv idual  f o r  working on, e i ther  you 

or  your f i r m ?  

A We1 1 , the appl i ca t i on  fo r  development approval was 

worked on by a team o f  about 14 professionals representing f i v e  

o r  s ix d i f f e ren t  consulting f i rms,  as well as the developer and 

the owner. 

Q Is i t  f a i r  t o  say tha t  you were the point  man, 

though, on that? 

A 

issues . 
I was the point  man on the u t i l i t y  and water resource 
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Q And you understood throughout t h i s  process tha t  a l l  

D f  the commitments tha t  you made i n  the appl icat ion fo r  

3evel opment approval woul d become b i  ndi ng , correct? 

A 

Q 
In the development order or i n  the ADA or both? 

That i f  you made a commitment i n  the ADA i t  was 

1 i ke ly  t o  become a requirement o f  the development order? 

A Yes. Ord inar i ly  i t ' s  t ha t  plus some, yes. 

Q And you draf ted tha t  ADA f u l l y  understanding tha t  

everything you put i n  there, again, would be incorporated i n t o  

the f ina l  product tha t  comes out o f  t h i s  process, the 

devel opment order? 

A Not necessarily, no. The development order i s  

actua l ly  f i n a l l y  draf ted and adopted by S t .  Johns County and 

the City o f  Jacksonville. So they are, i f  you w i l l ,  the 

ul t imate authors o f  the development order, not the ADA 

appl i cant. 
Q Well, l e t  me ask you then, s i r ,  t o  tu rn  t o  the 

deposition, again, t h a t  I took on July 25th, 2000. 

A What pages? 

Q Page 33. Do you reca l l  t h i s  question and answer a t  

Line 24: 

"Question: You had j u s t  said tha t  you would expect 

t ha t  when the development order comes out t ha t  the conditions 

which the applicant had of fered w i l l  most l i k e l y  be i n  there. 

icant  make an offer l i k e  that? How does the app 
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i n  the ADA i s  incorporated i n  the deve 

Do you stand by t ha t  answer? 

A Yes, tha t  i s  correct. 
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o f  a l l ,  everything t h a t  i: 

opment order. I' 

Q And i s  i t  true, s i r ,  tha t  you are not aware o f  

myth ing other than the development orders tha t  would fo rb id  

dastewater d i  scharges i nto the intercoastal ? 

A 

Q 
Well ,  there would have t o  be permitt ing. 

But you are not aware o f  anything t h a t  would fo rb id  

that, woul d prevent such permitting? 

A I don't  t h ink  any permit t ing has been applied fo r ,  so 

I don' t  th ink  I ' m  qua l i f i ed  t o  answer tha t .  

Q Do you agree tha t  you haven't evaluated whether 

on-s i te  service, the type tha t  could be proposed by 

Intercoastal could be permittable i n  the absence o f  the 

devel opment order or the condi ti ons i n  the devel opment order? 

A Are you asking me i f  I have evaluated that? 

Q Correct. 

A The? 

Q Correct. 

A I have not done h a t .  

Q Now, r i g h t  around the t ime I took your deposition i n  

July, you had recent ly f i l e d  tha t  suf f ic iency response we 

ta lked about ea r l i e r ,  r i g h t ?  

A I believe tha t  i s  correct. 
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understanding about Nocatee's request f o r  a condit ion tha t  

there be no on-s i te  u t i l i t i e s ,  correct? 

A I don' t  reca l l  tha t ,  no. 

Q S i r ,  look a t  Page 106 o f  the deposition, Ju ly  25th, 

2000, and see i f  tha t  refreshes your recol lect ion.  And 

s ta r t i ng  a t  Page 6 thereof do you remember t h i s  exchange: 

"Question: So the su f f i c iency  response comes r i g h t  oul 

and says that .  We w i l l  accept t h a t  as a condi t ion or we propose 

as a condit ion i n  the development order tha t  there not be any 

on-s i te  u t i l i t y .  

"Answer: What i t  says i s  there are no wells, there 

are no we1 1 s proposed fo r  Nocatee. 

"Question: What about treatment plants? 

"Answer: 

"Question: Did you feel  l i k e  you needed t o  say t h a t  i r  

There w i l l  be no treatment plants on-s i te .  

the suf f i c i  ency response because tha t  hadn I t been c l  ear l  y sai d 

before? 

"Answer: Well, others had asked fo r  c la r i f i ca t i on ,  s( 

we provided c la r i f i ca t i on .  

"Question: Apparently those points weren't c lear t o  at  

leas t  some o f  the readers o f  t h i s  document, so you c l a r i f i e d  

them? 

"Answer : That s r i g h t  . 
I Do you stand by t ha t  testimony? 
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A Yes. I think we were a t  t h i s  point  as I reca l l  

t a l  k ing about NEWRAP, and NEWRAP which was sor t  o f  the  

environmental pr inc ip les that  were 1 a id  out f o r  the development 

o f  the Nocatee project ,  and i t  was not - - those pr inc ip les i n  

that  document were not formalized as par t  o f  the ADA submittal e 

I believe what we are ta l k ing  about i n  t h i s  exchange was tha t  

NEWRAP, i n  fact ,  i t  was a request by the agencies t o  

incorporate those environmental pr inc ip les tha t  were out1 i ned 

i n  NEWRAP, which we did, and i t  subsequently became a par t  o f  

the ADA appl i cat i on 

Q And completely consistent wi th  what you j u s t  

t e s t i f i e d  to,  i s n ' t  it t rue tha t  a t  tha t  time the commenting 

agencies appeared t o  be confused about whether you were 

o f fe r ing  tha t  as a condit ion and you c l a r i f i e d  it? 

A Because they were confused whether NEWRAP was par t  o f  

the application or not. 

Q Okay. And you made clear tha t  you d i d  want tha t  as 

par t  o f  the appl icat ion and you d i d  want that  as a condition? 

A We provided NEWRAP and made i t  par t  o f  the ADA 

appl icat ion t o  provide that  c l a r i t y .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Wharton, are you a t  a good 

breaking point  or  do you have much more? 

MR. WHARTON: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why don' t  we break f o r  15 minutes, 

I t ' s  probably a good point .  

we w i l l  come back. 
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(Recess 1 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  go back on the record. I 

bel ieve we were i n  the middl e o f  cross-examination by M r .  

Wharton. You may proceed. 

MR. WHARTON: Well, I t h ink  for tunate ly  fo r  a l l  

concerned, Mr. Chairman, I'm not i n  the middle. I am very close 

t o  the end. 

BY MR . WHARTON : 

Q M r *  M i l l e r ,  do you agree tha t  the suf f ic iency 

response tha t  we were j u s t  t a l k ing  about was something tha t  

f i l e d  i n  Ju ly  o f  l a s t  year? 

A I don' t  reca l l  the speci f ic  date. But we went 

through two rounds o f  suf f ic iency,  so I don ' t  reca l l  the 

speci f i c date. That sounds approximate1 y correct. 

And you would agree tha t  the or ig ina l  ADA as we Q 
discussed ear l  i e r  was f i  l e d  i n  February o f  2000? 

I th ink  tha t  i s  correct, yes. 

Do you reca l l  tha t  the ADA appl icat ion represented 

A 

Q 
the f o l l  owing statement, the appl i can t  bel ieves Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  

Corporation w i l l  be awarded the u t i l i t y  franchise by the PSC? 

A I don' t  reca l l  t ha t  spec i f i ca l l y ,  no. But i t  could 

have been i n  there as a response t o  one o f  the questions from 
one o f  the agencies on the status. 

Q I'm sorry. 

A On the status. I th ink  there was a question on what 
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rJas the status o f  the PSC proceedings, and I bel ieve tha t  was a 

Oesponse t o  a e i ther  DEP, o r  water management d i s t r i c t ,  or  DCA 

juestion i n  suff iciency. 

Q And do you reca l l  a s im i la r  response i n  tha t  same 

suff ic iency response document which said the applicant has not 

2xplored any other options f o r  service? 

A I th ink  tha t  had been presented - -  as f a r  as being 

presented i n  the ADA, t ha t  i s  correct .  We weren't proposing 

any other form o f  service i n  our ADA appl icat ion. 

NUC/JEA service program, that  was our plan o f  service f o r  

Nocatee tha t  we submitted i n  the  DRI  appl icat ion. 

It was the 

Q Okay. Do you agree there are three wel ls i n  the 

development now tha t  can be used as a back-up supply f o r  the 

reuse system? 

A That hasn't  been eval uated, they can be used from the 

perspective o f  the development order allows them t o  be used, or 
I should say doesn't p roh ib i t  t ha t  they be used f o r  e i ther  f i r e  

protect ion o r  f o r  reuse. 

o r  are appropriate t o  be, used tha t  evaluation hasn' t  been made 

yet 

But whether or not they w i l l  be used 

Q But the development order does al low them t o  be used 

t husl y? 

A 

Q 

I t  does not p roh ib i t  t h e i r  use, t ha t  i s  correct. 

And you would agree you are not 1 i m i  ted  only t o  those 

three wel ls  tha t  are cur ren t ly  i n  existence under the 
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level opment order? 

A The only other wel ls t ha t  could be used a re  wel ls 

that would be used as emergency backup f o r  the reuse system i n  

the event there was some mal function. As an example, a 7 i ne  

break on the JEA main tha t  was coming t o  the reuse storage and 

pumping f a c i l i t y ,  or  i f  there was a water q u a l i t y  problem i n  

the reuse water. Obviously when you are i n  the r e t a i l  reuse 

business, you have got t o  be i n  it every day and so you do need 

some backup i n  the event t ha t  there i s  some disrupt ion o f  your 

supply o r  some mechanical f a i l u re .  

Q 

M i l l e r .  You do agree t h a t  the Nocatee development was kept 

c losely under wraps p r i o r  t o  i t s  announcement t o  the publ ic,  

correct ? 

Just a few more kind o f  miscellaneous questions, Mr. 

A 

Q 
I would say t h a t  i s  correct, yes. 

And t h a t  agreement, t ha t  par t i cu la r  development was 

pub1 i c l y  announced a f t e r  Intercoastal f i l e d  i t s  appl icat ion 

before the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Regulatory 

Authority, correct? 

A I honestly don ' t  reca l l  the timing. I t  could be, but 

I'm j u s t  not sure. 

Q You agree, don ' t  you, tha t  the appl icat ion 

Intercoastal f i l e d  i n  t h a t  case and the appl icat ion 

Intercoastal has f i l e d  in t h i s  case don ' t  propose the same plan 

o f  service? 
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A Well, I t h i n k  I have reviewed a l l  the plans o f  

;ervices t h a t  Intercoastal has provided, and I t h i n k  there has 
ieen a t  least three t h a t  I recall, and each seems t o  be 
?volving, bu t  I believe t h a t  they have changed over time, yes. 

Q And you agree, a lso,  t h a t  Nocatee's plans f o r  the 
jevelopment, a t  least early on, continuously changed? 

A No. I would say t h a t  the plan of service has been 
iery consistent since our f i l i n g .  Once the plan was finalized 
then I t h i n k  we have been very consistent i n  our commitments 
md our plan of service. 
d h a t  we have proposed here today. 

I don ' t  see i t  any different t h a n  

Q And, I'm sorry, M r .  Miller, I confused you. I 

neant the plan f o r  the development, a t  least early on 
zontinuously changed, not the plan for the plan of service for 
the u t i l i t y?  

A Well, the plan was an iterative process t h a t  you and 

I have talked about previously. I mean, we spent almost a year 
dorth o f  visioning and da ta  collection t o  achieve, you know, 
the environmental goal s , set the envi ronmental standards. And 

i t  really wasn't  u n t i l  we had gone through t h a t  process, and i f  

you want t o  call t h a t  part o f  the planning process, you can say 
t h a t  was evolving, but  i t  was really part o f  a da ta  collection 
process t o  see what  should be incorporated i n t o  the plan,  w h a t  
the principles behind the plan ,  both from a land use and from 
an environmental prospective, wha t  they should be. So once 
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;hat was set, then I don' t  th ink  there has been much deviat ion 

iince the ADA was f i l e d  from t ha t  o r ig ina l  plan or those 

ri nci p l  es tha t  we establ i shed. 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  even though you 

ittached the Water and Sewer Regulatory Author i ty 's  order as an 

?xh ib i t  t o  your testimony, you haven't reviewed the f indings o f  

;hat order and you weren't prepared t o  comment on those 

'indings a t  the time I took your deposition? 

A I ' m  sorry, I ' m  not - -  can you repeat that .  

Q You attached the order from the author i ty  t o  

:estimony, correct? 

four 

A Are you t a l  k ing about the S t .  Johns County Water and 

sewer Author i ty? 

Q Correct. 

A That i s  correct .  

Q But a t  the t i m e  I took your deposition, you t o l d  me 
you hadn't reviewed the f indings o f  the order and you weren't 

repared t o  comment on the f indings, i s  tha t  correct? 

A I th ink tha t  i s  correct. I d id  t e s t i f y  a t  tha t  

hearing, but I don' t  recal l  - - as we s i t  here today, I don' t  

know i f  I have reviewed that  f i n a l  document o r  not. 

Q Okay. Do you agree, M r .  M i l l e r ,  tha t  r i g h t  now you 

think we are looking a t  probably the end o f  2002 as being the 

date when service w i l l  be needed? 

A Yes. I th ink fourth quarter 2002 w i l l  be when 
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Q M r .  Mil 

Oender an opi n i  on 

186 

f o r  Nocatee. 
er,  isn't i t  true t h a t  you d o n ' t  seek t o  
on the managerial, operational, or technical 

abi 1 i t y  o f  Intercoastal? 
A T h a t  is correct. I have not been asked t o  evaluate 

lor have I evaluated Intercoastal ' s abi 1 i t y  t o  manage or t o  
technically perform what  is  necessary for their u t i l i t y  t o  
serve Nocatee. 

Q And you d o n ' t  have an opin ion  one way or another 
whether i f  Intercoastal were able t o  secure the same k i n d  o f  

commitment from JEA t h a t  NUC got i f  Intercoastal would be able 
t o  provide service t o  the development and meet the 
development ' s envi ronmental standards? 

A I f  I could before I answer t h a t  le t  me just clarify 
my 1 ast answer. 

Q Please do. 

A And t h a t  i s  I have evaluated their technical plan o f  

service t o  service Nocatee. I have not evaluated their ab i l i t y  

t o  manage uti l i t ies.  And, I apologize, but  could you repeat 
the second question. 

Q Yes. You don ' t  have an opinion one way or another 
whether i f  Intercoastal were able t o  secure the types o f  

commitments from JEA t h a t  NUC secured whether Intercoastal 
would be able t o  provide service t o  the development and meet 
the devel opments envi ronmental standards? 
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A Well, I have seen no plan o f  service presented by 

Intercoastal,  I have only been able t o  evaluate the one they 

have presented i n  t h i s  proceeding. So, i t  would be impossible, 

I th ink,  for anyone t o  render an opinion on tha t  since no facts 

have been provided t o  eval uate. 

Q So tha t  means you don ' t  have an opinion about tha t  

one way or the other, correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

MR. WHARTON: That 's a l l  we have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  has a few questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MS. CIBULA: 

Q H i ,  Mr. M i l l e r .  How are you? 

A Good afternoon. 

Q What i s  the status o f  the construction o f  the on-s i te  

and o f f - s i t e  water, wastewater, and reuse l i n e s  tha t  w i l l  serve 

the Nocatee devel opment? 

A We are doing the topographic work t ha t  i s  necessary 

t o  do the water and sewer master planning and design. We have 

i d e n t i f i e d  the reuse d i s t r i b u t i o n  s i t e  where the storage 

f a c i l i t i e s  and high service pumps w i l l  be located as well as 

well  as the master l i f t  s ta t ion  s i t e .  We have configured tha t  

s i t e  plan, and I believe we conveyed a proposed deed, I th ink  

i t  i s ,  t o  the Commission as I understand required by the rules. 
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We are proceeding w i th  the master planning o f  the pro ject .  So 

tha t  i s  i n  ant ic ipat ion o f  needing service i n  2002. 

Q 

devel opment? 

What i s  the status o f  the o f f - s i t e  l i n e s  t o  the 

A Well, the o f f - s i t e  l i n e s  ex i s t  f o r  water and 

wastewater, as I previously t e s t i f i e d .  As you can see on t h i s  

map where the red t r i ang le  i s  there i s  an ex is t i ng  20-inch 

sewer force main and a 24-inch water main tha t  we w i l l  be able 

t o  connect t o  j u s t  as soon as you are k ind enough t o  award us 

the franchise, I guess. And on reuse, we are evaluating the 

best route t o  access JEA's reuse system which i s  under 

construction t o  come south t o  serve Nocatee. 

Q You had previously mentioned tha t  you had given t o  

s t a f f  an unexecuted copy o f  the deed upon which the ground 

storage tank w i l l  be located. I f  NUC i s  granted a c e r t i f i c a t e  

t o  serve the Nocatee development, would the u t i l i t y  execute and 

f i l e  w i th  the Commission a deed f o r  the land upon which the 

ground storage tank w i l l  be located w i th in  30 days o f  any 

Commi ssion order rendered i n  the mat ter? 

A Yes, they w i l l .  

MS. CIBUIA: That 's a l l  the questions s t a f f  has. 

(Transcript cont i  nues i n  sequence w i t h  Vol ume 2 . ) 
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